UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE TO

(Rule 14d-100)

Tender Offer Statement Under Section 14(d)(1) or 13(e)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

(Name of Subject Company (Issuer) and Filing Person (Offeror))

Options to Purchase Ordinary Shares, \$0.00001 par value (Title of Class of Securities)

G8807B106

(CUSIP Number of Class of Securities (Underlying Ordinary Shares))

Renee D. Gala Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer Theravance Biopharma, Inc. c/o Theravance Biopharma US, Inc. 901 Gateway Boulevard South San Francisco, California 94080 (650) 808-6000

(Name, address and telephone numbers of person authorized to receive notices and communications on behalf of filing persons)

Copies to:

David T. Young, Esq. Richard C. Blake, Esq. Gunderson Dettmer Stough Villeneuve Franklin & Hachigian, LLP 1200 Seaport Boulevard Redwood City, CA 94063 (650) 321-2400 Bradford J. Shafer, Esq. Senior VP and General Counsel Theravance Biopharma, Inc. c/o Theravance Biopharma US, Inc. 901 Gateway Boulevard South San Francisco, California 94080 (650) 808-6000

CALCULATION OF FILING FEE

Transaction Valuation*	Amount of Filing Fee
\$13,783,792	\$1,601.68

* Calculated solely for purposes of determining the filing fee. This amount assumes that options to purchase 2,262,221 ordinary shares of Theravance Biopharma, Inc. having an aggregate value of \$13,783,792 as of August 26, 2015 will be exchanged or cancelled pursuant to this offer. The aggregate value of such securities was calculated based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The amount of the filing fee, calculated in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, equals \$116.20 for each \$1,000,000 of the value of this transaction.

□ Check the box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing with which the offsetting fee was previously paid. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

Amount Previously Paid: Not applicable. Form or Registration No.: Not applicable. Filing Party: Not applicable. Date Filed: Not applicable.

Check the box if the filing relates solely to preliminary communications made before the commencement of a tender offer.

Check the appropriate boxes below to designate any transactions to which the statement relates:

□ third-party tender offer subject to Rule 14d-1.

- ⊠ issuer tender offer subject to Rule 13e-4.
- □ going-private transaction subject to Rule 13e-3.
- \square amendment to Schedule 13D under Rule 13d-2.

Check the following box if the filing is a final amendment reporting the results of the tender offer: \Box

This Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO relates to an offer by Theravance Biopharma, Inc., a Cayman Islands exempted company ("Theravance Biopharma" or the "Company"), to exchange (the "Exchange Offer") certain outstanding options (the "Eligible Options") to purchase the Company's ordinary shares, whether vested or unvested, that (i) were granted before August 4, 2015, (ii) were granted under either the Company's 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (including the UK Addendum to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan) or the Company's 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan, and (iii) are held by Eligible Option Holders (as defined below) who are employees of Theravance Biopharma and its subsidiaries (the "Theravance Biopharma Group"), except as otherwise described in the Offer to Exchange (as defined below).

An "Eligible Option Holder" is an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group who works in the U.S. or the United Kingdom (each an "eligible country") as of the start of the Exchange Offer and through the expiration of the Exchange Offer and the restricted share unit grant date. For this purpose, an employee on an international assignment within the Theravance Biopharma Group will be considered to be working in the employee's home country and not in the country of the international assignment. Our executive officers, other members of our senior leadership group, members of our board of directors and consultants are not Eligible Option Holders and may not participate in the Exchange Offer.

The Eligible Options may be exchanged for restricted share units ("RSUs") upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in (i) the Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units, dated August 28, 2015 (the "Offer to Exchange"), attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(A), (ii) the Cover E-mails, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(B), (iii) the Election Form, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(C), and (iv) the Withdrawal Form, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(D). The following disclosure materials also were made available to Eligible Option Holders: (I) the Form of Confirmation E-mail, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(E), (II) the Form of Reminder E-mails, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(F), (III) the Screenshots from Offer Website, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(G), (IV) the Employee Presentation, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(H), and (V) the Intranet Communications and Newsletter Announcements, attached hereto as Exhibit (a)(1)(I). These documents, as they may be amended or supplemented from time to time, together constitute the "Disclosure Documents."

The information in the Disclosure Documents, including all schedules and exhibits to the Disclosure Documents, is incorporated herein by reference to answer the items required in this Schedule TO.

Item 1. Summary Term Sheet.

The information set forth under the caption "Summary Term Sheet and Questions and Answers" in the Offer to Exchange is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 2. Subject Company Information.

(a) *Name and Address.*

Theravance Biopharma is the issuer of the securities subject to the Exchange Offer. The Company's registered office address in the Cayman Islands is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1 1104, Cayman Islands and the principal office of the Company's wholly owned U.S. operating subsidiary, Theravance Biopharma US, Inc., is 901 Gateway Boulevard, South San Francisco, California 94080, and the telephone number at that address is (650) 808-6000. The information set forth in the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Information concerning Theravance Biopharma" is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Securities.

The subject class of securities consists of the Eligible Options. The actual number of ordinary shares subject to the RSUs to be issued in the Exchange Offer will depend on the number of ordinary shares subject to the unexercised options tendered by Eligible Option Holders and accepted for exchange and cancelled. The information set forth in the Offer to Exchange under the captions "Summary Term Sheet and Questions and Answers," "Risks of Participating in the Offer," and the sections under the caption "The Offer" titled "Number of awards; expiration date," "Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units," and "Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units" is incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Trading Market and Price.

The information set forth in the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Price range of shares underlying the options" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 3. Identity and Background of Filing Person.

(a) Name and Address.

The filing person is the issuer. The information set forth under Item 2(a) above is incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to General Instruction C to Schedule TO, the information set forth on Schedule A to the Offer to Exchange is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Terms of the Transaction.

(a) *Material Terms*.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "Summary Term Sheet and Questions and Answers" and the sections under the caption "The Offer" titled "Eligibility," "Number of awards; expiration date," "Purposes of the offer," "Procedures for electing to exchange options," "Withdrawal rights and change of election," "Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units," "Conditions of the offer," "Price range of shares underlying the options," "Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units," "Status of options acquired by us in the offer; accounting consequences of the offer," "Legal matters; regulatory approvals," "Material income tax consequences," "Extension of offer; termination; amendment" and Schedule B attached to the Offer to Exchange is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) *Purchases*.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 5. Past Contacts, Transactions, Negotiations and Arrangements.

(e) Agreements Involving the Subject Company's Securities.

The information set forth in section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 6. Purposes of the Transaction and Plans or Proposals.

(a) **Purposes**.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "Summary Term Sheet and Questions and Answers" and the section under the caption "The Offer" titled "Purposes of the offer" is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Use of Securities Acquired.

The information set forth in the sections of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units" and "Status of options acquired by us in the offer; accounting consequences of the offer" is incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Plans.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Purposes of the offer" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Source and Amount of Funds or Other Consideration.

(a) Source of Funds.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units" is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) *Conditions*.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Conditions of the offer" is incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Borrowed Funds.

Not applicable.

Item 8. Interest in Securities of the Subject Company.

(a) Securities Ownership.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options" is incorporated herein by reference.



(b) Securities Transactions.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Person/Assets, Retained, Employed, Compensated or Used.

(a) Solicitations or Recommendations.

Not applicable.

Item 10. Financial Statements.

(a) Financial Information.

The information set forth in Schedule B to the Offer to Exchange and in the sections of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Financial statements," "Information concerning Theravance Biopharma" and "Additional information" is incorporated herein by reference. The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q can also be accessed electronically on the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at www.sec.gov.

(b) **Pro Forma Information**.

Not applicable.

Item 11. Additional Information.

(a) *Agreements, Regulatory Requirements and Legal Proceedings.*

The information set forth in the sections of the Offer to Exchange under the caption "The Offer" titled "Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options" and "Legal matters; regulatory approvals" is incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Other Material Information.

Not applicable.

Item 12. Exhibits.

(a)(1)(A)	Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units, dated August 28, 2015.
(a)(1)(B)	Cover E-mails.
(a)(1)(C)	Election Form.
(a)(1)(D)	Withdrawal Form.
(a)(1)(E)	Form of Confirmation E-mail.
(a)(1)(F)	Forms of Reminder E-mails.
(a)(1)(G)	Screenshots from Offer Website.
(a)(1)(H)	Employee Presentation.
	3

(a)(1)(I)	Intranet Communications and Newsletter Announceme	ents.
-----------	---	-------

- (b) Not applicable.
- (d)(1) Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of award agreement thereunder, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.1 from the Company's Form S-8, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 18, 2014.
- (d)(2) Theravance Biopharma, Inc. UK Addendum to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2014.
- (d)(3) Forms of Non-Executive Officer Restricted Share Unit Agreement under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan.
- (d)(4) Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan and form of option agreement thereunder, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.1 from the Company's Form S-8, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2014.
- (d)(5) Governance Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, dated March 3, 2014, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.26 to Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Form 10, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2014.
- (d)(6) Registration Rights Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, dated March 3, 2014, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Form 10, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2014.
- (d)(7) Rights Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Computershare Inc., incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 26, 2015.

4

- (g) Not applicable.
- (h) Not applicable.
- Item 13. Information Required by Schedule 13E-3.
- (a) Not applicable.

SIGNATURE

After due inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this Schedule TO is true, complete and correct.

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

/s/ Renee D. Gala Renee D. Gala Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer

Date: August 28, 2015

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number	Description
(a)(1)(A)	Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units, dated August 28, 2015.
(a)(1)(B)	Cover E-mails.
(a)(1)(C)	Election Form.
(a)(1)(D)	Withdrawal Form.
(a)(1)(E)	Form of Confirmation E-mail.
(a)(1)(F)	Forms of Reminder E-mails.
(a)(1)(G)	Screenshots from Offer Website.
(a)(1)(H)	Employee Presentation.
(a)(1)(I)	Intranet Communications and Newsletter Announcements.
(b)	Not applicable.
(d)(1)	Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and forms of award agreement thereunder, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.1 from the Company's Form S-8, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 18, 2014.
(d)(2)	Theravance Biopharma, Inc. UK Addendum to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 14, 2014.
(d)(3)	Forms of Non-Executive Officer Restricted Share Unit Agreement under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan.
(d)(4)	Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan and form of option agreement thereunder, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 99.1 from the Company's Form S-8, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2014.
(d)(5)	Governance Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, dated March 3, 2014, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.26 to Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Form 10, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2014.
(d)(6)	Registration Rights Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, dated March 3, 2014, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Form 10, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2014.
(d)(7)	Rights Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Computershare Inc., incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 26, 2015.
(g)	Not applicable.
(h)	Not applicable.

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

OFFER TO EXCHANGE CERTAIN OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

This document constitutes part of the prospectus relating to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan covering securities that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

August 28, 2015

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units

This offer and withdrawal rights will expire at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 unless we extend the expiration date.

By this offer, Theravance Biopharma, Inc. ("Theravance Biopharma," the "Company," "we," "our" or "us") is giving eligible option holders of Theravance Biopharma and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Theravance Biopharma Group") the opportunity to exchange some or all of their outstanding options granted under the Company's 2013 Equity Incentive Plan or the Company's 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan before August 4, 2015, whether vested or unvested, for restricted share units. Restricted share units are a promise by Theravance Biopharma to issue ordinary shares in the future provided the vesting criteria are satisfied.

You are an eligible option holder if you are an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group who works in the U.S. or the United Kingdom (each an "eligible country") as of the start of the offer and through the expiration of the offer and the restricted share unit grant date. For this purpose, an employee on an international assignment within the Theravance Biopharma Group will be considered to be working in the employee's home country and not in the country of the international assignment. Our executive officers, members of our senior leadership group, the members of our board of directors and consultants are not eligible option holders and may not participate in the offer.

If you participate in the offer, you will receive one (1) restricted share unit for every two (2) shares subject to eligible options that you exchange.

We will grant restricted share units following the expiration of the offer but on the same U.S. calendar day on which we cancel the exchanged options (the "restricted share unit grant date"). We expect the exchange offer expiration date and the restricted share unit grant date to be September 25, 2015. If the expiration date is extended, the restricted share unit grant date similarly will be delayed. The restricted share units will be granted under the terms of the Company's 2013 Equity Incentive Plan.

The restricted share units will have a new vesting schedule, which will vary based on the date of grant of the options exchanged. The new vesting schedules of the restricted share units are detailed in Section 9 of this Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units (the "Offer to Exchange"). Vesting of the restricted share units is conditioned upon your continued service with the Theravance Biopharma Group through each applicable vesting date.

Our ordinary shares are traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol "TBPH." On August 27, 2015, the closing price of our ordinary shares was \$13.74 per share. You should evaluate the risks related to our business, our ordinary shares, and this offer, and review current market quotes for our ordinary shares, among other factors, before deciding to participate in this offer.

i

See "Risks of Participating in the Offer" beginning on page 14 for a discussion of risks that you should consider before participating in this offer.

IMPORTANT

If you choose to participate in the offer, you must submit your election via the offer website at the website address: www.corpaction.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015. Alternatively, you may send your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to Computershare (the specialized provider of employee equity plan services that we have engaged to assist with the implementation of the offer) at the following address:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

If you submit your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), Computershare must receive the completed election form on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

The delivery of all documents, including elections and withdrawals, is at your own risk. Only responses that are complete and actually received by Computershare by the deadline will be accepted. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Computershare intends to confirm the receipt of your election and/or any withdrawal via an e-mail generated from the offer website within two (2) U.S. business days if your election or withdrawal was received by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Please note that if you submit an election form or withdrawal form via mail or delivery service within the last two (2) U.S. business days prior to the expiration of the offer, time constraints may prevent Computershare from providing a confirmation by e-mail prior to the expiration of the offer. Confirmation statements for submissions through the offer website may be obtained by printing the "Election Confirmation" page after submitting your election or withdrawal; you should print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records. If you have not received a confirmation, it is your responsibility to confirm that Computershare has received your election and/or any withdrawal. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any state or local securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed judgment upon the accuracy or adequacy of this offer. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

You should direct questions about this offer and requests for additional copies of this Offer to Exchange and the other offer documents to the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., five days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time.

Offer to Exchange dated August 28, 2015

You should rely only on the information contained in this Offer to Exchange or documents to which we have referred you. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. We are not making an offer of the restricted share units in any jurisdiction where the offer is not permitted. However, we may, at our discretion, take any actions necessary for us to make the offer to holders of options in any of these jurisdictions. You should not assume that the information provided in this Offer to Exchange is accurate as of any date other than the date as of which it is shown, or if no date is indicated otherwise, the date of this Offer to Exchange. This Offer to Exchange summarizes various documents and other information. These summaries are qualified in their entirety by reference to the documents and information to which they relate.

ii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1

SUMMARY TERM SHEET AND QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

	Q1.	What is the offer?	2
	Q2.	Why is Theravance Biopharma making this offer?	2
	Q3.	What is an option?	3
	Q4.	What is a restricted share unit (RSU)?	3
	Q5.	Who may participate in this offer?	3
	Q6.	Which of my options are eligible?	3
	Q7.	How do I participate in this offer?	4
	Q8.	What resources are available to assist with my decision?	5
	Q9.	How many restricted share units will I receive for the options that I exchange?	5
	Q10.	Are there circumstances under which I would not be granted restricted share units after electing to participate in the exchange?	6
	Q11.	Am I required to participate in this option exchange?	6
	Q12.	Do I have to pay for my restricted share units?	6
	Q13.	When will my restricted share units vest?	6
	Q14.	If I participate in this offer, do I have to exchange all of my eligible option grants?	7
	Q15.	What happens if I have an eligible option grant that is subject to a domestic relations order or comparable legal document	_
	017	resulting from the end of a marriage?	1
	Q16.	When will I receive restricted share units?	8
	Q17.	When will my exchanged options be cancelled?	8
	Q18.	Once I surrender my exchanged options, is there anything I must do to receive the restricted share units?	8
	Q19. Q20.	Do I need to exercise my restricted share units in order to receive shares? Can I exchange Theravance Biopharma ordinary shares that I acquired upon a prior exercise of Theravance Biopharma options?	8
	Q20. Q21.	Will I be required to give up all of my rights under the exchanged options?	9
	Q21. Q22.	Will the terms and conditions of my restricted share units be the same as my exchanged options?	9
	Q22. Q23.	What happens to my options if I choose not to participate or if my options are not accepted for exchange?	9
	Q23. Q24.	How does Theravance Biopharma determine whether an option has been properly elected for exchange?	10
	Q25.	Will I have to pay taxes if I participate in the offer?	10
	Q26.	What if Theravance Biopharma is involved in an acquisition or merger with another company?	10
	Q27.	Will I receive a restricted share unit agreement?	11
	Q28.	Are there any conditions to this offer?	11
	Q29.	If you extend or change the offer, how will you notify me?	11
	Q30.	Can I change my mind and withdraw from this offer?	11
	Q31.	Can I change my mind about which options I want to exchange?	11
	Q32.	How do I withdraw my election?	12
	Q33.	What if I withdraw my election and then decide again that I want to participate in this offer?	13
	Q34.	Are you making any recommendation as to whether I should exchange my eligible options?	13
	Q35.	Whom can I contact if I have questions about the offer, or if I need additional copies of the offer documents?	13
R	ISKS OF F	PARTICIPATING IN THE OFFER	14
	Risks tha	t are Specific to this Offer	15
	Risks Rel	lating to Our Business, Generally	16
	Risks Rel	lated to Legal and Regulatory Uncertainty	33
Т	HE OFFEI	र	40
	1.	Eligibility	40
	2.	Number of awards; expiration date	40

3.	Purposes of the offer	41
4.	Procedures for electing to exchange options	42
5.	Withdrawal rights and change of election	45
6.	Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units	47
7.	Conditions of the offer	47
8.	Price range of shares underlying the options	49
9.	Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units	49
10.	Information concerning Theravance Biopharma	54
11.	Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options	55
12.	Status of options acquired by us in the offer; accounting consequences of the offer	59
13.	Legal matters; regulatory approvals	60
14.	Material income tax consequences	60
15.	Extension of offer, termination; amendment	61
16.	Fees and expenses	62
17.	Additional information	62
18.	Financial statements	63
19.	Miscellaneous	63
SCHEDULE	E A - INFORMATION CONCERNING THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.	
SCHEDULE	B - SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.	

SCHEDULE C - GUIDE TO TAX ISSUES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

iv

SUMMARY TERM SHEET AND QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

The following are answers to some of the questions that you may have about this offer. You should read carefully this entire Offer to Exchange, the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, our Chief Executive Officer, dated August 28, 2015, and the accompanying election and withdrawal forms together with their associated instructions. This offer is made subject to the terms and conditions of these documents as they may be amended. The information in this summary is not complete. Additional important information is contained in the remainder of this Offer to Exchange and the other offer documents. We have included in this summary references to other sections in this Offer to Exchange to help you find more complete information with respect to these topics.

The following are some terms that are frequently used in this Offer to Exchange.

Terms Used in This Offer to Exchange

- "2013 Plan" refers to our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (including the UK Addendum to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan).
- "cancellation date" refers to the same U.S. calendar day as the expiration date. This is the date when exchanged options will be cancelled. We expect that the cancellation date will be September 25, 2015. If the expiration date is extended, then the cancellation date similarly will be delayed.
- "Computershare" refers to Computershare Trust Company, a specialized provider of employee equity plan services that Theravance Biopharma has engaged to assist with the implementation of the offer.
- "eligible country" refers to the United States and the United Kingdom.
- "eligible option grant" refers to all of the eligible options issued by Theravance Biopharma to an employee that are part of the same grant and subject to the same option agreement.
- "eligible option holder" refers to an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group that works in an eligible country as of the start of the offer and remains an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country through the expiration of the offer and the restricted share unit grant date and holds eligible options. For this purpose, an employee on an international assignment within the Theravance Biopharma Group will be considered to be working in the employee's home country and not in the country of the international assignment. Our executive officers, members of our senior leadership group, the members of our board of directors and consultants are not eligible option holders and may not participate in the offer.
- "eligible options" refers to options to purchase Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares that were granted under the Plans that were granted before August 4, 2015, and remain outstanding and unexercised as of the expiration date. However, options will not be eligible options (and any election with regard to such options will be disregarded) if, on the expiration date of the offer, the exercise price of the option is equal to or less than the closing price of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares on the expiration date.
- "exchanged options" refers to all options that you exchange pursuant to this offer.
- "executive officers" refers to those officers of Theravance Biopharma listed on Schedule A to this Offer to Exchange.
- "expiration date" refers to the date that this offer expires. We expect that the expiration date will be September 25, 2015, at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time. We may extend the expiration date at our discretion. If we extend the offer, the term "expiration date" will refer to the time and date at which the extended offer expires.
- "offer period" or "offering period" refers to the period from the commencement of this offer to the expiration date. This period will commence on August 28, 2015, and we expect it to end at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

1

- "Offer to Exchange" refers to this Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units.
- "options" refers to options to purchase Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares.
- "option exchange analysis tool" refers to a tool prepared by Computershare which allows eligible option holders to enter hypothetical future share prices and see the share price's effect on the potential future values of your eligible options or restricted share units. The option exchange analysis tool is available on the offer website at the website address: www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. The option exchange analysis tool does not calculate the actual or future value of eligible options or restricted share units, as the values generated by the tool depends on your estimate of the future value of our shares and does not take into account all relevant factors that may affect the actual value of your eligible options or restricted share units, such as taxes, vesting, etc. Further, the future value of our ordinary shares is unknown, indeterminable and cannot be predicted with certainty. Note that the option exchange analysis tool is being provided to you solely for your convenience, for purposes of providing limited mathematical simulations of the potential value that could be received from exchanging your eligible options for restricted share units. The option exchange analysis tool does not take into account all of the factors that you should consider in deciding whether to participate in the offer. The option exchange analysis tool is only an aid and does not in any way change or supplement the terms of the Offer to Exchange, nor does it constitute a recommendation as to whether you should or should not participate in the offer.
- "ordinary shares" refers to Theravance Biopharma ordinary shares of par value US\$0.00001 each.
- "Plans" refers to our 2013 Plan and our 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan.
- "restricted share unit grant date" refers to the date that is the same U.S. calendar date as the expiration date and the cancellation date. This is the date when restricted share units will be granted. We expect that the restricted share unit grant date will be September 25, 2015. If the expiration date is extended, then the restricted share unit grant date similarly will be delayed.
- "restricted share units" refers to the restricted share units issued pursuant to this offer that replace your exchanged options. Restricted share units are promises by Theravance Biopharma to issue its ordinary shares in the future provided the vesting criteria are satisfied. Restricted share units granted in connection with this offer will be granted on the restricted share unit grant date pursuant to the 2013 Plan and subject to the terms and conditions of a restricted share unit agreement (and any country-specific appendix, if applicable) between you and Theravance Biopharma.
- "Theravance Biopharma" refers to Theravance Biopharma, Inc.
- "Theravance Biopharma Group" refers to Theravance Biopharma and its subsidiaries.

Q1. What is the offer?

A1. This offer is a one-time voluntary opportunity for eligible option holders to exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule. Outstanding options that were granted under the Plans before August 4, 2015 are eligible for this offer. However, options will not be eligible options (and any election with regard to such options will be disregarded) if, on the expiration date of the offer, the exercise price of the option is equal to or less than the closing price of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares on the expiration date.

Q2. Why is Theravance Biopharma making this offer?

A2. We are making this offer to restore the intended retention and incentive value of certain of our equity awards. We issued the currently outstanding options to attract and retain the best available talent and to provide additional incentives to employees of the Theravance Biopharma Group. The market price of our shares declined significantly and a significant number of our outstanding options have exercise prices that are higher than the current market price for our shares. These options are commonly referred to as being "underwater." By making this offer, we intend to provide eligible option holders with the opportunity to receive restricted share units that have a greater retention value because such restricted share units have immediate intrinsic value and are more certain to provide a return than the underwater options. (See Section 3; Purposes of the offer)

Q3. What is an option?

A3. An option is the right to purchase our ordinary shares in the future at a fixed price. You earn this right over time, known as vesting. The fixed purchase price, or "exercise" price, is typically equal to the closing price of one of our ordinary shares on the date the option is granted. Due to subsequent price fluctuations of our ordinary shares, at any given time following the grant of the option, the price of our ordinary shares may be greater than, equal to, or less than the exercise price of the option. When the price of our ordinary shares is greater than the exercise price of the option (otherwise known as an option being "in-the-money"), the option holder receives value from exercising the option (i.e., purchasing the shares at the fixed exercise price), because he or she is able to buy the shares at less than its current market price. The holder of an option to purchase shares at an exercise price that is greater than the current price of our ordinary shares (otherwise known as an option being "our-of-the-money" or "underwater") generally would not exercise the option because he or she would have to pay more than the current market price to buy the shares associated with the option. The eligible options available for exchange under this offer are currently "underwater".

Q4. What is a restricted share unit (RSU)?

A4. Restricted share units, or RSUs, are the right to receive ordinary shares in the future. As with options, you earn this right over time, provided vesting criteria and other relevant terms and conditions are satisfied. However, unlike options, RSUs do not have an exercise price. The value of a RSU is equal to the value of an ordinary share, as opposed to an option where the value of an option reflects the difference between the exercise price and the market price of an ordinary share. Although the intrinsic value of a RSU goes up and down with the price of our ordinary shares, a RSU can never be "underwater." RSUs granted in connection with this offer will be granted on the expiration date of the offer and subject to the terms and conditions of the associated RSU award agreement (and any country-specific appendix, if applicable) between you and Theravance Biopharma.

Q5. Who may participate in this offer?

A5. You may participate in this offer if you hold eligible options and are an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group that works in an eligible country as of the start of the offer and remains an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country through the expiration of the offer and the restricted share unit grant date. For this purpose, an employee on an international assignment within the Theravance Biopharma Group will be considered to be working in the employee's home country and not in the country of the international assignment.

Irrespective of the above, our executive officers and other members of our senior leadership group, are not eligible and may not participate in the offer. In addition, members of our board of directors and consultants are not eligible and may not participate in the offer. (See Section 1; Eligibility)

Q6. Which of my options are eligible?

A6. Your eligible options are those options to purchase ordinary shares of Theravance Biopharma that were granted under the Plans, were granted before August 4, 2015, and remain outstanding and unexercised as of the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015. However, your options will not be eligible options (and any election with regard to such options will be disregarded) if, on the expiration date of the offer, the exercise price of the option is equal to or less than the closing price of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares on the expiration date. To help you recall your outstanding eligible options and give you the information necessary to make an informed decision, please refer to the offer website at the website address: www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange which lists your eligible option grants, the grant date of your eligible option grants, the number of vested and unvested shares subject to your eligible option grants, the exercise price of your eligible option grants, the number of restricted share units you will receive if you exchange your eligible option grants for restricted share units pursuant to the terms of the offer, and the vesting schedule of your restricted share units if you participate in the offer. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date)



Q7. How do I participate in this offer?

A7. You may elect to participate in one of two ways: (i) through the offer website, or (ii) by sending your election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service).

Electing Through the Offer Website:

- 1. To access the offer website, go to www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. On the welcome page of the website, you may access various documents that provide further details about the offer. Select the "Continue" button to log in to the site.
- To log in to the site, enter your Theravance Biopharma e-mail address and your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received in the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com on August 28, 2015 and select the "Continue" button. If you do not know your PIN, you may select the "Forgot Your PIN" link or contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.).
- 3. You will be directed to the Option Exchange Election Form where you can view your eligible options and access the option exchange analysis tool, which will enable you to enter hypothetical future share prices and see the share price's effect on the potential future values of your eligible options or restricted share units.
- 4. To make your election, indicate the eligible options that you would like to exchange by selecting "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" next to the eligible option grants.
- 5. Click on the "Submit" button to finalize your elections.
- 6. After you submit your election, you will be directed to the "Election Confirmation" page. Print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records.

Your election must be received by Computershare on or before the expiration date, currently expected to be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

Electing via Mail or Delivery Service:

If you choose not to utilize the offer website acceptance process, you may submit your election by sending your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address provided below. You do not need to submit an election by mail or delivery service if you accept the offer via the offer website. To send your election by mail or delivery service, you must do the following on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015:

- 1. Properly complete and sign the attached election form.
- 2. Send the completed and signed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

If you submit your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), Computershare must <u>receive</u> the completed election form on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015.



Elections by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity may not be submitted via the offer website and may be submitted only by mail or delivery service. Please see the election form for further details.

The delivery of all documents, including elections and withdrawals, is at your risk. Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by the deadline will be accepted. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Computershare intends to confirm the receipt of your election and/or any withdrawal via an e-mail generated from the offer website within two (2) U.S. business days if your election or withdrawal was received by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Please note that if you submit an election or withdrawal form via mail or delivery service within the last two (2) U.S. business days prior to the expiration of the offer, time constraints may prevent Computershare from providing a confirmation by e-mail prior to the expiration of the offer. Confirmation statements for submissions through the offer website may be obtained by printing the "Election Confirmation" page after submitting your election or withdrawal; you should print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records. If you have not received a confirmation, it is your responsibility to confirm that Computershare has received your election and/or any withdrawal. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.

This is a one-time offer, and we will strictly enforce the offering period. We reserve the right to reject any options elected for exchange that we determine are not in appropriate form or that we determine are unlawful to accept. Subject to the terms and conditions of this offer, we will accept all eligible options properly elected for exchange promptly after the expiration of this offer. (See Section 4; Procedures for electing to exchange options)

We may extend this offer. If we extend this offer, we will issue a press release, e-mail or other communication disclosing the extension no later than 6:00 a.m., Pacific Time, on the U.S. business day following the previously scheduled expiration date.

Q8. What resources are available to assist with my decision?

A8. You should carefully review the information contained in this Offer to Exchange, including the country-specific tax disclosures and supplemental exhibits. In addition, the offer website contains a tool prepared by Computershare, called the "option exchange analysis tool," which allows you to enter hypothetical future share prices and see the share price's effect on the potential future values of your eligible options or restricted share units. Note that this tool will not calculate the actual or future value of eligible options or restricted share units, as the tool depends on your estimate of the future value of our shares and does not take into account all relevant factors that may affect the actual value of your eligible options or restricted share units, such as taxes, vesting, etc. Further, the future value of our ordinary shares is unknown, indeterminable and cannot be predicted with certainty. The option exchange analysis tool is being provided to you solely for your eligible options for restricted share units. The option exchange analysis tool does not take into account all of the factors that you eligible options for restricted share units. The option exchange analysis tool is being provided to you solely for your convenience, for purposes of providing limited mathematical simulations of the potential value that could be received from exchanging your eligible options for restricted share units. The option exchange analysis tool does not take into account all of the factors that you should consider in deciding whether to participate in the offer. The option exchange analysis tool is only an aid and does not in any way change or supplement the terms of the Offer to Exchange, nor does it constitute a recommendation as to whether you should or should not participate in the offer.

Q9. How many restricted share units will I receive for the options that I exchange?

A9. If you elect to participate, you will receive one (1) restricted share unit for every two (2) shares subject to your exchanged options. For example, if you are an eligible option holder and you exchange an eligible option grant for 1,000 shares, you will receive 500 restricted share units on the restricted share unit grant date. The exchange applies to each of your eligible option grants separately, and any fractional restricted share units will be rounded down to the nearest whole restricted share unit on a grant by grant basis. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date)

Q10. Are there circumstances under which I would not be granted restricted share units after electing to participate in the exchange?

A10. Yes. If, for any reason, you no longer are an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group working in an eligible country on the restricted share unit grant date, you will not receive any restricted share units. Instead, you will keep your current eligible options and the options will vest and expire in accordance with their original terms. Except as provided by applicable law and/or any employment or service agreement between you and the Theravance Biopharma Group, your employment or service with the Theravance Biopharma Group will remain "at-will" regardless of your participation in the offer and can be terminated by you or your employer at any time with or without cause or notice. (See Section 1; Eligibility)

Moreover, even if we accept your eligible options, we will not grant restricted share units to you if we are prohibited from doing so by applicable laws. For example, we could become prohibited from granting restricted share units as a result of changes in the SEC or Nasdaq Global Market rules. We do not anticipate any such prohibitions at this time. (See Section 13; Legal matters; regulatory approvals)

Q11. Am I required to participate in this option exchange?

A11. No. Participation in this offer is completely voluntary. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date)

Q12. Do I have to pay for my restricted share units?

A12. No. You do not have to make any cash payment to Theravance Biopharma to receive your restricted share units or the ordinary shares upon vesting of your restricted share units. (See Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units) However, you may owe taxes in connection with the vesting of your restricted share units. (See Question 25)

Q13. When will my restricted share units vest?

- A13. Each restricted share unit will represent a right to receive one of our ordinary shares on a specified future date according to a vesting schedule, subject to you continuing to be an employee or other service provider of the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant Company Vesting Date. None of the restricted share units will be vested on the restricted share unit grant date. Our "Company Vesting Dates" are February 20th, May 20th, August 20th and November 20th each year. The vesting schedule of the restricted share units will be determined on a grant-by-grant basis, based on the date the exchanged options were granted as described below:
 - Eligible Options Granted Prior to January 1, 2015: 1/12th of the restricted share units will vest on the first Company Vesting Date following the restricted share unit grant date and an additional 1/12th of the restricted share units will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter.
 - Eligible Options Granted On or After January 1, 2015: 1/16th of the restricted share units will vest on the first Company Vesting Date following the restricted share unit grant date and an additional 1/16th of the restricted share units will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter.

We expect the restricted share unit grant date will be on September 25, 2015, in which case the first Company Vesting Date would be November 20, 2015. Vesting of your restricted share units is subject to the following conditions:

- Vesting on any given Company Vesting Date is subject to your continued service with the Theravance Biopharma Group through such Company Vesting Date. If your service with the Theravance Biopharma Group terminates (except in certain circumstances following a change in control of Theravance Biopharma) before your restricted share units vest, your unvested restricted share units will expire and you will not be issued any additional ordinary shares pursuant to the unvested portions of your restricted share unit award. (See Section 1; Eligibility)
- After the restricted share units vest, continued service with the Theravance Biopharma Group is not required to retain the ordinary shares issued under the restricted share units.
- We will make minor modifications to the vesting schedule of any restricted share units to eliminate fractional vesting (such that a whole number of restricted share units will vest on each vesting date). (See Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units)



Example:

Assume that an eligible option holder elects to exchange an eligible option grant covering 1,920 shares with an exercise price of \$23.00 per share granted prior to January 1, 2015. Assume that on September 25, 2015 (the expected expiration date of the offer), the eligible option holder surrenders the option and receives 960 restricted share units. Subject to the eligible option holder continuing to provide service to the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant date, the vesting schedule of the restricted share units will be as follows:

Vesting Schedule

Zero (0) shares will be vested as of September 25, 2015.

Eighty (80) shares (or 1/12th of the restricted share units) will vest on November 20, 2015 (the first Company Vesting Date after the restricted share unit grant date).

Eighty (80) shares (or 1/12th of the restricted share units) will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter until the restricted share units become fully vested on August 20, 2018.

Vesting is subject to the eligible option holder continuing to provide services to the Theravance Biopharma Group through each respective vesting date.

Restricted share units that do not vest will be forfeited to Theravance Biopharma.

Q14. If I participate in this offer, do I have to exchange all of my eligible option grants?

A14. No. You may pick and choose which of your eligible option grants you wish to exchange. However, if you decide to participate in this offer and to exchange an eligible option grant, you must elect to exchange all shares subject to such eligible option grant. You should note that we are not accepting elections of partial eligible option grants, except that (a) you may elect to exchange an eligible option grant covered by a domestic relations order (or comparable legal document resulting from the end of a marriage) (See Question 15) and (b) you may elect to exchange the entire remaining portion of an eligible option grant that you have partially exercised. You otherwise may not elect to exchange only some of the shares covered by any particular eligible option grant. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date)

Q15. What happens if I have an eligible option grant that is subject to a domestic relations order or comparable legal document resulting from the end of a marriage?

A15. If you have an eligible option grant that is subject to a domestic relations order (or comparable legal document resulting from the end of a marriage) and a person who is not an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country beneficially owns a portion of that eligible option grant, you may elect to exchange only the portion beneficially owned by you. Any portion beneficially owned by a person who is not an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country may not be exchanged in this offer (even if legal title to that portion of the eligible option grant is held by you and you are an eligible option holder).

For instance, if you are an eligible option holder and you hold an eligible option grant to purchase 3,000 shares that is subject to a domestic relations order, 1,000 shares of which are beneficially owned by your former spouse, and you have exercised 500 of the remaining 2,000 shares, then you may elect to exchange the portion of the eligible option grant that you beneficially own covering 1,500 shares, or you may elect not to participate in the offer at all with respect to this eligible option grant. These are your only choices with respect to this eligible option grant. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date)



Q16. When will I receive restricted share units?

- A16. We will grant the restricted share units on the restricted share unit grant date. The restricted share unit grant date will be the same U.S. calendar day as the cancellation date of your exchanged option grant(s). We expect the restricted share unit grant date will be September 25, 2015. If the expiration date for the exchange offer is extended, the restricted share unit grant date similarly will be delayed. You will receive your restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) shortly after the expiration of the offer. You must then accept your restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) in order to receive your restricted share units by doing the following:
 - Go to E*TRADE.com and log in to your TBPH Stock Plan account.
 - Select "Accounts," "My Stock Plan," "Plan Elections" to view your restricted share unit award(s) dated September 25, 2015.
 - Under the "Status" column, click on the "Requires Acceptance" link to view and read the restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) and the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan-Summary & Prospectus for each restricted share unit award.
 - Read the entire restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) and the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan-Summary &
 Prospectus, then click the "Accept" button for each restricted share unit award.

You will receive the shares subject to the restricted share unit award when and if your restricted share unit award vests. (See Section 6; Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units)

Q17. When will my exchanged options be cancelled?

A17. Your exchanged options will be cancelled following the expiration of the offer but on the same U.S. calendar day as the expiration date. We refer to this date as the cancellation date. We expect that the cancellation date will be on September 25, 2015, unless the offer period is extended. (See Section 6; Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units)

Q18. Once I surrender my exchanged options, is there anything I must do to receive the restricted share units?

A18. Yes. All restricted share units will be subject to your acceptance of the restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix), which will be provided to you promptly after your exchanged options have been cancelled.

Your restricted share units will be granted to you on the same day that the exchanged options are cancelled. We expect that the restricted share unit grant date will be on September 25, 2015. In order to receive the shares covered by the restricted share unit grant, you will need to remain a service provider of the Theravance Biopharma Group through the applicable vesting date(s), as described in Question 13, and accept the terms of the applicable restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix), as described in Question 16. (See Section 1; Eligibility) There is nothing additional that you must do to receive your restricted share units.

Q19. Do I need to exercise my restricted share units in order to receive shares?

A19. No. Unlike options, which you must exercise in order to receive the vested shares subject to the option, you do not need to exercise restricted share units in order to receive shares. If your restricted share units vest in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in your restricted share unit agreement, you automatically will receive the shares subject to the restricted share units promptly thereafter. Restricted share units that do not vest will be forfeited to Theravance Biopharma.

8

Q20. Can I exchange Theravance Biopharma ordinary shares that I acquired upon a prior exercise of Theravance Biopharma options?

A20. No. This offer relates only to certain outstanding options to purchase Theravance Biopharma ordinary shares. You may not exchange Theravance Biopharma ordinary shares in this offer. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date)

Q21. Will I be required to give up all of my rights under the exchanged options?

A21. Yes. Once we have accepted your exchanged options, your exchanged options will be cancelled and you no longer will have any rights under those options. We intend to cancel all exchanged options following the expiration of the offer but on the same U.S. calendar day as the expiration date. We refer to this date as the cancellation date. We expect that the cancellation date will be on September 25, 2015. (See Section 6; Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units)

Q22. Will the terms and conditions of my restricted share units be the same as my exchanged options?

A22. No. Because restricted share units are a different type of award than options, the terms and conditions of your restricted share units necessarily will be different from your options. Options give you the right to purchase a specified number of our ordinary shares at a fixed price (the "exercise price") during a prescribed period of time. The principal benefit of your option is the potential to profit from any increase in the value of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares during the period in which the option is exercisable, without risking any of your money. If the value of the Company's ordinary shares increases above your exercise price during its term, you will be able to buy the shares at a discount from that increased price. On the other hand, if the value of the Company's ordinary shares does not increase above your exercise price, you will not recognize a benefit from your option.

Restricted share units represent a right to receive ordinary shares upon vesting in accordance with terms and conditions established by Theravance Biopharma. Upon vesting, you benefit by assuming full ownership of the vested shares. Unlike options, which you must exercise in order to receive the vested shares subject to the option, you do not need to exercise the restricted share units in order to receive shares and you do not pay an exercise price for the shares. If your restricted share units vest in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in your restricted share unit agreement, you will automatically receive the shares subject to the restricted share units promptly thereafter.

Your restricted share units will be granted under the 2013 Plan and will be subject to a restricted share unit agreement. The current forms of the restricted share unit agreement for non-executive officers are filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO with which this Offer to Exchange has been filed and are available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. See "Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units" for more details on the terms and conditions of restricted share units.

The tax treatment of the restricted share units will differ significantly from the tax treatment of your options. Please see Question 25 and the remainder of this Offer to Exchange, including "Section 14; Material income tax consequences" for further details.

The vesting schedule of your restricted share units will be different from the vesting schedule of your exchanged options. (See Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units)

Q23. What happens to my options if I choose not to participate or if my options are not accepted for exchange?

A23. If you choose not to participate or your options are not accepted for exchange, your existing options will (a) remain outstanding until they are exercised or cancelled or they expire per their original terms, (b) retain their current exercise price, (c) retain their current vesting schedule and (d) retain all of the other terms and conditions as set forth in the relevant agreement related to such option grant. (See Section 6; Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units)

Q24. How does Theravance Biopharma determine whether an option has been properly elected for exchange?

A24. We will determine, in our discretion, all questions about the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance of any options. Our determination of these matters will be given the maximum deference permitted by law. However, you have all rights accorded to you under applicable law to challenge such determination in a court of competent jurisdiction. Only a court of competent jurisdiction can make a determination that will be final and binding upon the parties. We reserve the right to reject any election or any options elected for exchange that we determine are not in an appropriate form or that we determine are unlawful to accept. We will accept all options that are properly elected for exchange and are not validly withdrawn, subject to the terms of this offer. No election of options for exchange will be deemed to have been made properly until all defects or irregularities have been cured or waived by us. We have no obligation to give notice of any defects or irregularities in any election and we will not incur any liability for failure to give any notice. (See Section 4; Procedures for electing to exchange options)

Q25. Will I have to pay taxes if I participate in the offer?

A25. If you participate in the offer and are a U.S. taxpayer, you generally will not be required under current U.S. law to recognize income for U.S. federal income tax purposes at the time of the exchange or the restricted share unit grant date. However, you normally will have taxable income when the shares underlying your restricted share units vest and are issued to you. Theravance Biopharma will also typically have a tax withholding obligation when the shares underlying your restricted share units vest and are issued to you. Theravance Biopharma will satisfy tax withholding obligations, if applicable, in the manner specified in your restricted share unit agreement. Unless you elect at the time you accept your RSU agreement to satisfy Theravance Biopharma to instruct a selected broker to sell a sufficient manner, your restricted share unit agreement will authorize Theravance Biopharma to instruct a selected broker to sell a sufficient number of shares in the market to satisfy any withholding taxes. You also may have taxable capital gain when you sell the shares underlying the restricted share units. Note that the tax treatment of restricted share units differs significantly from the tax treatment of your options and, as a result of participating in the offer, your tax liability could be higher than if you had kept your eligible options. Please see "Section 14; Material income tax consequences" for a reminder of the general U.S. tax consequences associated with your eligible options.

If you participate in the offer and are an employee residing in the United Kingdom (or if your home country is the United Kingdom), please refer to Schedule C of this Offer to Exchange for a description of the local tax, social insurance and other legal consequences that may apply to you.

If you are a citizen or resident of more than one country or are considered a resident of another country for local law purposes, you should be aware that there may be additional or different tax and social insurance consequences that may apply to you.

You should consult with your tax advisor to determine the personal tax consequences to you of participating in this offer.

Q26. What if Theravance Biopharma is involved in an acquisition or merger with another company?

A26. We periodically evaluate a wide array of possible strategic transactions, including acquisitions. Although we cannot predict whether or not we will complete any such acquisition or other transactions in the future, any of these transactions could be material in relation to our market capitalization, financial condition, or results of operations. The process of integrating an acquired company, business, or technology or being acquired may create unforeseen difficulties and expenditures. In addition, we face various risks in integrating acquired businesses. See "Risks of Participating in the Offer" beginning on page 14 for information regarding some of these risks. Future acquisitions could result in potentially dilutive issuances of our equity securities, the incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities, amortization expenses, and write-offs of goodwill, any of which could harm our operating results or financial condition. Future acquisitions may also require us to obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available on favorable terms or at all.

If there is an acquisition or merger with another company, your exchanged options might be worth more than the restricted share units that you receive in exchange for them.

A transaction involving us, such as a merger or other acquisition, could have a substantial effect on our share price, including significantly increasing the price of our ordinary shares. Depending on the structure and terms of this type of transaction, eligible option holders who elect to participate in the offer might be deprived of the benefit of the appreciation in the price of our ordinary shares resulting from the merger or acquisition. This could result in a greater financial benefit for those option holders who did not participate in this offer and retained their original options.

Q27. Will I receive a restricted share unit agreement?

A27. Yes. All restricted share units will be subject to a restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) between you and Theravance Biopharma, as well as to the terms and conditions of the 2013 Plan. The current forms of the restricted share unit agreement for nonexecutive officers are filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO with which this Offer to Exchange has been filed and are available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. (See Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units)

Q28. Are there any conditions to this offer?

A28. Yes. The completion of this offer is subject to a number of customary conditions that are described in "Section 7; Conditions of the offer." If any of these conditions are not satisfied, we may waive the condition at our discretion. Any such waiver will be made with respect to all eligible option holders in a uniform and nondiscriminatory manner. For instance, one customary condition is that we may terminate the offer if there is a suspension of payments in respect of banks in the U.S. Even if this were to occur, we might decide to waive this condition and continue the offer. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date and Section 7; Conditions of the offer)

Q29. If you extend or change the offer, how will you notify me?

A29. If we extend or change this offer, we will issue a press release, e-mail or other form of communication disclosing the extension no later than 6:00 a.m., Pacific Time, on the next U.S. business day following the previously scheduled expiration date or the date on which we change the offer, as applicable. (See Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date and Section 15; Extension of offer; termination; amendment)

Q30. Can I change my mind and withdraw from this offer?

A30. Yes. You may change your mind after you have submitted an election and withdraw some or all of your elected options from the offer at any time before the expiration date (expected to be September 25, 2015). If we extend the expiration date, you may withdraw your election at any time until the extended offer expires. You may change your mind as many times as you wish, but you will be bound by the last properly submitted election and/or withdrawal Computershare receives before the expiration date. The exception to this rule is that if we have not accepted your properly elected options by 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 you may withdraw your options at any time thereafter. (See Section 5; Withdrawal rights and change of election)

Q31. Can I change my mind about which options I want to exchange?

A31. Yes. You may change your mind after you have submitted an election and change the eligible option grants you elect to exchange at any time before the expiration date by making such election on the offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange, or completing and submitting to Computershare a new election or withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Only responses that are properly completed and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare by the deadline will be accepted. If we extend the expiration date, you may change your election at any time until the extended offer expires. You may change your mind as many times as you wish, but you will be bound by the last properly submitted election or withdrawal Computershare receives before the expiration date. Please be sure that any final election you submit includes all the eligible option grants with respect to which you want to accept this offer and is clearly dated after your last-submitted election or withdrawal. (See Section 4; Procedures for electing to exchange options)

Q32. How do I withdraw my election?

A32. To withdraw some or all of the options that you previously elected to exchange, you must deliver a valid withdrawal for the options you wish to withdraw from the offer prior to the expiration date. You may withdraw your eligible options in two ways: (i) through the offer website, or (ii) by sending your withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Any withdrawals must be received on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015.

Withdrawal Through the Offer Website:

- Go to www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange and log in to the site by entering your Theravance Biopharma e-mail address and your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received in the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com on August 28, 2015. If you do not know your PIN, you may select the "Forgot Your PIN" button or contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.).
- 2. If you have already made an election with respect to your eligible options, you will be directed to the "Election Summary" page which summarizes your prior election.
- 3. To make your withdrawal election, select the "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" buttons next to the eligible option grants.
- 4. Click on the "Submit" button to finalize your elections.
- 5. After you submit your withdrawal, you will be directed to the "Election Confirmation" page. Print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records.

Your withdrawal must be received by Computershare on or before the expiration date, currently expected to be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

Withdrawal via Mail or Delivery Service:

If you choose not to utilize the offer website, you may submit your withdrawal by sending your withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address provided below. You do not need to submit your withdrawal by mail or delivery service if you already have done so via the offer website. To send your withdrawal by mail or delivery service, you must do the following before the expiration date:

- 1. Properly complete and sign the attached withdrawal form.
- 2. Send the completed and signed withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

If you submit your completed withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), Computershare must receive the completed withdrawal form on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the offer's expiration date.

Withdrawals by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity may not be submitted via the offer website and may be submitted only by mail or delivery service. Please see the withdrawal form for further details. (See Section 5; Withdrawal rights and change of election)



Q33. What if I withdraw my election and then decide again that I want to participate in this offer?

A33. If you have withdrawn your election to participate and then decide again that you would like to participate in this offer, you may re-elect to participate by submitting a new, properly completed election via the offer website after the date of your withdrawal or by sending a new properly completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) before the expiration of the offer that is signed and dated after the date of your withdrawal. Any new election form you submit must include all of the eligible option grants with respect to which you want to accept this offer. (See Question 7 and Section 5; Withdrawal rights and change of election)

Q34. Are you making any recommendation as to whether I should exchange my eligible options?

A34. No. We are not making any recommendation as to whether you should accept this offer. We understand that the decision whether or not to exchange your eligible options in this offer will be a challenging one for many eligible option holders. The program does carry risk (see "Risks of Participating in the Offer" beginning on page 14 for information regarding some of these risks), and there are no guarantees that you ultimately would receive greater value from the restricted share units you will receive in exchange. In addition, tax implications may differ between your eligible options and restricted share units. (See Section 14; Material income tax consequences and Schedule C) As a result, you must make your own decision as to whether or not to participate in this offer. For questions regarding personal tax implications or other investment-related questions, you should talk to your personal legal counsel, accountant, and/or financial advisor. (See Section 3; Purposes of the offer)

Q35. Whom can I contact if I have questions about the offer, or if I need additional copies of the offer documents?

A35. You should direct questions about this offer and requests for additional copies of this Offer to Exchange and the other offer documents to the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., five days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time.



RISKS OF PARTICIPATING IN THE OFFER

Participating in the offer involves a number of risks and uncertainties, including those described below. These risk factors and the risks described under the heading entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015 and our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 highlight the material risks of participating in this offer. You should carefully consider these risks and are encouraged to speak with an investment and tax advisor as necessary before deciding to participate in the offer. In addition, we strongly urge you to read the sections in this Offer to Exchange discussing the tax consequences, as well as the rest of this Offer to Exchange for a more in-depth discussion of the risks that may apply to you before deciding to participate in the exchange offer.

This Offer to Exchange and our SEC reports referred to above include "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements in this Offer to Exchange and our SEC reports, other than statements of historical facts, including statements regarding our strategy, future operations, future financial position, future revenues and other financial and operating results, projected costs, prospects, plans, intentions, expectations and objectives could be forward-looking statements. The words "anticipates," "believes," "could," "designed," "estimates," "expects," "goal," "intends," "may," "plans," "projects," "pursuing," "will," "would" and similar expressions (including the negatives thereof) are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements and the assumptions underlying our forward-looking statements may prove incorrect. Therefore, you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements that we make. We assume no obligation to update our forward-looking statements on account of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

Actual results may differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including the risks set forth in this section and other factors elsewhere in this Offer to Exchange. You should carefully consider these risks, in addition to the other information in this Offer to Exchange and in our other filings with the SEC. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. Moreover, neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of these forward-looking statements. The documents we file with the SEC, including the reports referred to above, discuss some of the risks that could cause our actual results to differ from those contained or implied in the forward-looking statements. The safe harbor afforded by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 to certain forward-looking statements does not extend to forward-looking statements made by us in connection with the offer.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the summary financial information attached as Schedule B, as well as our financial statements and notes to the financial statements included in our most recent Form 10-K and Form 10-Q. We caution you not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements contained in this Offer to Exchange, which speak only as of the date hereof.

14

Risks that are Specific to this Offer

If the price of our ordinary shares increases after the date on which your exchanged options are cancelled, your cancelled options might be worth more than the restricted share units that you receive in exchange for them.

Because the exchange ratio of this offer is not one-for-one with respect to options, it is possible that, at some point in the future, your exchanged options would have been economically more valuable than the restricted share units granted pursuant to this offer. For example, if you exchange an eligible option grant for 1,000 shares with an exercise price of \$20.00, you would receive 500 restricted share units. Assume, for illustrative purposes only that the price of our ordinary shares increases to \$50.00 per share. Under this example, if you had kept your exchanged options and sold them at \$50.00 per share, you would have realized pre-tax gain of \$30,000 (\$50.00 less \$20.00 times 1,000 shares), but if you exchanged your options and sold the shares subject to the restricted share unit grant at \$50.00 per share, you would realize only a pre-tax gain of \$25,000 (\$50.00 times 500 shares).

In addition, you may have paid more taxes for your restricted share units than you did for your exchanged options. For example, if you are a U.S. taxpayer and you exchange an eligible option grant for 1,000 shares with an exercise price of \$20.00, you would receive 500 restricted share units. If the eligible options were held instead and exercised for \$20.00 per share while the fair market value of our ordinary shares was \$30.00 per share, you would recognize ordinary income on \$10,000 at exercise. If you later sold the shares at \$35.00 per share, you would have capital gain on \$5,000, which is the difference between the sale price of \$35.00 and the \$30.00 fair market value at exercise times 1,000 shares. If you held the shares more than twelve (12) months, this would be taxed at long-term capital gains rates, and if you held the shares for twelve (12) months or less, this would be taxed at short-term capital gains rates. Long-term capital gains recognized by certain non-corporate U.S. taxpayers, including individuals, are currently subject to a reduced tax rate. If, instead, you had exchanged your eligible options for restricted share units, you would be subject to ordinary income tax on the full fair market value of our shares is \$30.00 per share, you will recognize ordinary income on \$1,230. You then would be subject to additional long- or short-term capital gain, as applicable (depending on the length of time you have held such shares) on any additional gain when you sell the shares. For instance, if you sold the shares at \$35.00 per share, you would have a capital gain of \$205. When analyzing the tax consequences to you, you should keep in mind that you do not pay a cash purchase price for the restricted share units or the shares thereunder, while, in the example above, you would have paid \$20.00 per share of post-tax dollars for the shares subject to your eligible options. For tax consequences in the United Kingdom please refer to Schedule C of this Offer to Exchange.

If there is a merger or other acquisition with another company, your exchanged options might be worth more than the restricted share units that you receive in exchange for them.

A transaction involving us, such as a merger or other acquisition, could have a substantial effect on our share price, including significantly increasing the price of our ordinary shares. Depending on the structure and terms of this type of transaction, eligible option holders who elect to participate in the offer might receive less of a benefit from the appreciation in the price of our ordinary shares resulting from the merger or acquisition. This could result in a greater financial benefit for those eligible option holders who did not participate in this offer and retained their original options.

Your restricted share units will not be vested on the restricted share unit grant date.

The restricted share units will be subject to a vesting schedule. If you do not remain an employee or other service provider with the Theravance Biopharma Group through the date your restricted share units vest, you will not receive the shares subject to those restricted share units. Instead, your restricted share units generally will expire immediately upon your termination. As a result, you would not receive full value from your restricted share units. (See Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units regarding exceptions relating to certain terminations following a change in control of Theravance Biopharma)



Tax effects of restricted share units for U.S. Taxpayers.

If you participate in the offer, you generally will not be required under current U.S. law to recognize income for U.S. federal income tax purposes at the time of the exchange and on the restricted share unit grant date. However, you generally will have taxable ordinary income when the shares underlying your restricted share units vest and are issued to you. Theravance Biopharma will also typically have a tax withholding obligation when the shares underlying your restricted share units vest and are issued to you. Theravance Biopharma will satisfy all tax withholding obligations, if applicable, in the manner specified in your restricted share unit agreement. The current forms of the restricted share unit agreement for non-executive officers are filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO with which this Offer to Exchange has been filed and are available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. You also may have taxable capital gains when you sell the shares underlying the restricted share units. Note that the tax treatment of restricted share units differs significantly from the tax treatment of your options and as a result of your participation in this offer, your tax liability could be higher than if you had kept your eligible options. Please see "Section 14; Material income tax consequences" for a reminder of the general tax consequences associated with options.

Please note that, depending on where you live, state income taxes also may apply to you and Theravance Biopharma may have withholding obligations with respect to such taxes. You should be certain to consult your own tax advisor to discuss these consequences.

If you are subject to the tax laws in more than one jurisdiction, you should be aware that there may be tax and social insurance consequences of more than one country that may apply to you. You should be certain to consult your own tax advisor to discuss these consequences.

If you participate in the offer and are an employee residing in the United Kingdom (or if your home country is the United Kingdom), please refer to Schedule C of this Offer to Exchange for a description of the local tax, social insurance and other legal consequences that may apply to you. If you are a citizen or resident of more than one country or are considered a resident of another country for local law purposes, you should be aware that there may be additional or different tax and social insurance consequences that may apply to you. You should consult with your tax advisor to determine the personal tax consequences to you of participating in this offer.

Non-U.S. option holders should carefully review Schedule C of this Offer to Exchange to determine whether participation in the offer could trigger any negative income tax, social insurance or other tax or legal consequences.

Risks Relating to Our Business, Generally

We anticipate that we will incur losses for the foreseeable future. We may never achieve or sustain profitability.

First as Theravance, Inc. ("Theravance"), and since June 2, 2014 as Theravance Biopharma, we have been engaged in discovery and development of compounds and product candidates since mid-1997. We may never generate sufficient revenue from the sale of medicines or royalties on sales by our partners or via our interest in Theravance Respiratory Company, LLC ("TRC") to achieve profitability. During the six months ended June 30, 2015 and years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we recognized losses of \$90.1 million, \$237.0 million and \$156.3 million, respectively, which are reflected in the Shareholders' Equity on our condensed consolidated balance sheets. We reflect cumulative net loss incurred and retained after June 2, 2014, the effective date of the Spin-Off, as accumulated deficit on our consolidated balance sheets. We expect to continue to incur net losses over the next several years as we continue our drug discovery efforts and incur significant preclinical and clinical development costs related to our current product candidates and commercialization and development costs relating to VIBATIV® (telavancin). In particular, to the extent we advance our product candidates into and through later stage clinical studies without a partner, such as axelopran (TD-1211) in our Peripheral Mu Opioid Receptor Antagonist program for opioid-induced constipation, we will incur substantial expenses. We are also making additional investments in telavancin, our approved antibiotic. For example, in February 2015 we initiated a Phase 3 registrational study for bacteremia and a patient registry study. In addition, we have increased the number of sales representatives and medical science liaisons in the U.S. supporting physician education on the proper usage of VIBATIV and beginning in the second quarter of 2015, we began implementing a next phase of expansion, with a plan to increase our sales force to approximately 50 representatives by the end of the third quarter 2015. We are incurring all of the costs and expenses associated with the commercialization of VIBATIV in the U.S., including the creation of an independent sales and marketing organization with appropriate technical expertise, supporting infrastructure and distribution capabilities, expansion of medical affairs presence, manufacturing and third party vendor logistics and consultant support, and post-marketing studies. Our commitment of resources to VIBATIV, to the continued development of our existing product candidates and to our discovery programs will require significant additional funding. Our operating expenses also will increase if:



- our earlier stage potential products move into later stage clinical development, which is generally a more expensive stage of development;
- additional preclinical product candidates are selected for clinical development;
- we pursue clinical development of our potential products in new indications;
- · we increase the number of patents we are prosecuting or otherwise expend additional resources on patent prosecution or defense; or
- we acquire additional technologies, product candidates, products or businesses.

Other than revenues from sales of VIBATIV, our only approved medicine, and potential contingent payments under collaboration agreements, we do not expect to generate sales revenues from our programs for the foreseeable future. Since we or our collaborators or licensees may not successfully develop additional products, obtain required regulatory approvals, manufacture products at an acceptable cost or with appropriate quality, or successfully market and sell such products with desired margins, our expenses may continue to exceed any revenues we may receive.

In the absence of substantial licensing, contingent payments or other revenues from third-party collaborators, royalties on sales of products licensed under our intellectual property rights, future revenues from our products in development or other sources of revenues, we will continue to incur operating losses and will require additional capital to fully execute our business strategy. The likelihood of reaching, and time required to reach, sustained profitability are highly uncertain. As a result, we expect to continue to incur substantial losses for the foreseeable future. We are uncertain when or if we will ever be able to achieve or sustain profitability. Failure to become and remain profitable would adversely affect the price of our securities and our ability to raise capital and continue operations.

If additional capital is not available, we may have to curtail or cease operations or we could be forced to share our rights to commercialize our product candidates with third parties on terms that may not be favorable to us.

Based on our current operating plans and financial forecasts, we believe that our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities will be sufficient to meet our anticipated operating needs for at least the next twelve months. If our current operating plans or financial forecasts change, we may require additional funding sooner in the form of public or private equity offerings, debt financings or additional collaborations and licensing arrangements. For example, if we choose to progress axelopran (TD-1211) in our Peripheral Mu Opioid Receptor Antagonist program for opioid-induced constipation into later-stage development on our own, our capital needs would increase substantially. We also are making additional investments in telavancin, our approved antibiotic, which will increase our operating expenses. For example, in February 2015 we announced initiation of a Phase 3 registrational study for bacteremia and initiation of a patient registry study. In addition, we have increased the number of sales representatives and medical science liaisons in the U.S. supporting physician education on the proper usage of VIBATIV and, beginning in the second quarter of 2015, we began implementing a next phase of expansion, with a plan to increase our sales force to approximately 50 representatives by the end of the third quarter 2015.

Although we expect that we will have sufficient cash to fund our operations and working capital requirements for at least the next twelve months based on current operating plans and financial forecasts, we may need to raise additional capital in the future to, among other things:

- fund our discovery efforts, research and development programs and commercialization strategies for VIBATIV;
- progress mid-to-late stage product candidates into later stage development, if warranted;
- respond to competitive pressures; and
- acquire complementary businesses or technologies.

Our future capital needs depend on many factors, including:

- the scope, duration and expenditures associated with our discovery efforts and research and development programs;
- continued scientific progress in these programs;
- the extent to which we encounter technical obstacles in our research and development programs;
- the outcome of potential licensing or partnering transactions, if any;
- competing technological developments;
- the extent of our proprietary patent position in our product candidates;
- our facilities expenses, which will vary depending on the time and terms of any facility lease or sublease we may enter into;
- the scope and extent of the expansion of our sales and marketing efforts;
- potential litigation and other contingencies; and
- the regulatory approval process for our product candidates.

We may seek to raise additional capital or obtain future funding through public or private equity offerings, debt financings or additional collaborations and licensing arrangements. We may not be able to obtain additional financing on terms favorable to us, if at all. General market conditions may make it very difficult for us to seek financing from the capital markets. We may be required to relinquish rights to our technologies, product candidates or territories, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us, in order to raise additional funds through collaborations or licensing arrangements. If adequate funds are not available, we may have to sequence preclinical and clinical studies as opposed to conducting them concomitantly in order to conserve resources, or delay, reduce or eliminate one or more of our research or development programs and reduce overall overhead expenses. If we are unable to raise additional capital or obtain future funding in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, we may have to make reductions in our workforce and may be prevented from continuing our discovery, development and commercialization efforts and exploiting other corporate opportunities. This would likely harm our business, prospects and financial condition and cause the price of our securities to fall.

We may seek to obtain future financing through the issuance of debt or equity, which may have an adverse effect on our shareholders or may otherwise adversely affect our business.

If we raise funds through the issuance of debt, convertible debt or equity, any debt securities or preferred shares issued will have rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of holders of our ordinary shares in the event of liquidation. In such event, there is a possibility that once all senior claims are settled, there may be no assets remaining to pay out to the holders of ordinary shares. In addition, if we raise funds through the issuance of additional equity, whether through private placements or public offerings, such an issuance would dilute ownership of our current shareholders that do not participate in the issuance. For example, in connection with entering into a collaboration agreement with Mylan for the development and commercialization of a nebulized formulation of our long-acting muscarinic antagonist ("LAMA") TD-4208 in February 2015, Mylan made a \$30.0 million equity investment in us by purchasing 1,585,790 newly issued ordinary shares, which issuance resulted in dilution of ownership to our shareholders. In addition, if we seek to raise funds and this becomes known publicly, the market price of our shares could decline upon the expectation of dilution, regardless of whether dilution actually occurs. In July, 2015, our shelf registration statement on Form S-3 for the potential offering, issuance and sale by us of up to a maximum aggregate offering price of \$250 million of our debt securities, ordinary shares, and/or warrants was declared effective. Up to \$50 million of the maximum aggregate offering price of \$250 million under the registration statement may be issued and sold pursuant to an at-the-market offering program for sales of our ordinary shares unable to obtain any needed additional funding, we may be required to reduce the scope of, delay, or eliminate some or all of, our planned research, development and commercialization activities or to license to third parties the rights to develop and/or commercialize ourselves or on terms that are less attractive than they might otherwi



Furthermore, the terms of debt securities may impose restrictions on our operations, which may include limiting our ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends on or repurchase our share capital, or make certain acquisitions or investments. In addition, we may be subject to covenants requiring us to satisfy certain financial tests and ratios, and our ability to satisfy such covenants may be affected by events outside of our control.

We do not control TRC and, in particular, have no control over or access to non-public information about the respiratory programs that Theravance partnered with GSK and assigned to TRC in connection with the Spin-Off (the "GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs").

Theravance has assigned to TRC its strategic alliance agreement with GSK and all of its rights and obligations under its LABA collaboration agreement other than with respect to RELVAR[®] ELLIPTA[®]/BREO[®] ELLIPTA[®], ANORO[®] ELLIPTA[®] and vilanterol monotherapy. Our equity interest in TRC entitles us to an 85% economic interest in any future payments made by GSK under the strategic alliance agreement and under the portion of the collaboration agreement assigned to TRC (the "GSK Agreements"). These other drug programs include the Closed Triple combination of fluticasone furoate (FF)/umeclidinium (UMEC)/vilanterol (VI) (ICS/LAMA/LABA) and the MABA program, as monotherapy and in combination with other therapeutically active components, such as an inhaled corticosteroid (ICS), and any other product or combination of products that may be discovered and developed in the future under the GSK Agreements. Our economic interest does not include any payments by GSK associated with RELVAR[®] ELLIPTA[®]/BREO[®] ELLIPTA[®], ANORO[®] ELLIPTA[®] or vilanterol monotherapy. Theravance controls TRC and, except for certain limited consent rights, we have no right to participate in the business and affairs of TRC. Theravance has the exclusive right to appoint TRC's manager who, among other things, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs and exercises the rights relating to the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs and no right to enforce rights under the GSK Agreements assigned to TRC. Moreover, we have many of the same risks with respect to our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have with respect to our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have with respect to our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have with respect to our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have with respect to our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have with respect to our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have with respect to our and TRC's dependence on our own partners.

If the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs in which we have a substantial economic interest, including the Closed Triple program and MABA program, encounter delays, do not demonstrate safety and efficacy, are terminated, or if there are any adverse developments or perceived adverse developments with respect to these programs, our business will be harmed, and the price of our securities could fall.

We have no access to confidential information regarding the progress of, or plans for, the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs, including the Closed Triple program and the MABA program, and we have little, if any, ability to influence the progress of those programs because our interest in these programs is only through our economic interest in TRC, which is controlled by Theravance. However, if any of the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs assigned to TRC in which we have a substantial economic interest, including the Closed Triple program and MABA program, encounter delays, do not demonstrate safety and efficacy, are terminated, or if there are any adverse developments or perceived adverse developments with respect to such programs, our business will be harmed, and the price of our securities could fall. Examples of such adverse developments include, but are not limited to:

- GSK deciding to delay or halt development of any of the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs assigned to TRC in which we have a substantial economic interest, including the Closed Triple, GSK961081 ('081), the lead compound in the MABA program, or '081/FF;
- the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") and/or other regulatory authorities determining that any of the studies under these programs do not demonstrate adequate safety or efficacy, or that additional non-clinical or clinical studies are required with respect to such programs;
- safety, efficacy or other concerns arising from clinical or non-clinical studies in these programs; or
- any particular FDA requirements or changes in FDA policy or guidance regarding these programs.

19

In early August 2015 we reduced our projected U.S. net sales target for VIBATIV for the second half of 2015, and our current U.S. net sales target for VIBATIV for 2015 is based on increasing sales growth during the balance of the year that may not be achieved; if we further revise downward or fail to meet our current 2015 U.S. net sales target for VIBATIV, the price of our securities could fall.

In early August 2015 we reduced our projected U.S. net sales target for VIBATIV for the second half of 2015. Our current U.S. net sales target for VIBATIV for 2015 of approximately \$9-\$12 million is based on increasing sales growth throughout the balance of the year. This forecast is based on a number of assumptions, including assumptions about the productivity of new and existing sales representatives, the pace of market penetration, the acceptance of VIBATIV onto formulary by multiple hospitals and healthcare systems, the amount of chargebacks and government rebates, our customer mix, and the timing, frequency and impact of price increases, among other factors. Our forecast plans for a significantly higher level of VIBATIV net sales to occur in the fourth quarter versus the third quarter of 2015, so even small delays in market penetration and sales representative productivity, or higher than expected attrition in our sales force, among other factors, could have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve our targeted 2015 VIBATIV net sales. If we further revise our net sales guidance downward in the future or fail to meet our publicly announced 2015 net sales target for VIBATIV or other expectations about VIBATIV commercialization for these or other reasons, the price of our securities could fall.

VIBATIV may not be broadly accepted by physicians, patients, third party payors, or the medical community in general and if we fail to meet our publicly announced net sales targets for VIBATIV or other expectations about our VIBATIV business, the price of our securities could fall.

The commercial success of VIBATIV depends upon its acceptance by physicians, patients, third party payors and the medical community in general. VIBATIV may not be sufficiently accepted by these parties. VIBATIV competes with vancomycin, a relatively inexpensive generic drug that is manufactured by a variety of companies, and a number of existing antibacterials manufactured and marketed by major pharmaceutical companies and others, and may compete against new antibacterials that are not yet on the market. If we are unable to demonstrate to physicians that, based on experience, clinical data, sideeffect profiles and other factors, VIBATIV for the treatment of complicated skin and skin structure infections (cSSSI) and HABP/VABP caused by susceptible Gram- positive bacteria in adult patients is a suitable alternative to vancomycin and other antibacterial drugs in certain clinical situations, we may never generate meaningful revenue from VIBATIV which could cause the price of our securities to fall. If we fail to meet our publicly announced net sales targets for VIBATIV or other expectations about our VIBATIV commercialization strategy, the price of our securities could fall. The degree of market acceptance of VIBATIV depends on a number of factors, including, but not limited to:

- the demonstration of the clinical efficacy and safety of VIBATIV;
- the experiences of physicians, patients and payors with the use of VIBATIV;
- potential negative perceptions of physicians related to product shortages and regional supply outages that halted commercialization of VIBATIV, stemming from the manufacturing issues at the previous drug product supplier;
- potential negative perceptions of physicians related to the European Commission's previous suspension of marketing authorization for VIBATIV (which suspension was lifted in March 2014) because the prior VIBATIV commercialization partner's single-source VIBATIV drug product supplier did not meet the cGMP requirements for the manufacture of VIBATIV;
- any adverse developments or perceived adverse developments with respect to whether Pfizer's planned acquisition of Hospira Worldwide, Inc. ("Hospira") may lead to changes in Hospira's operations which may adversely impact our single source of supply for VIBATIV drug product;
- the advantages and disadvantages of VIBATIV compared to alternative therapies;
- our ability to educate the medical community about the appropriate circumstances for use of VIBATIV;

20

- our ability to attract, train and retain targeted numbers of sales and marketing personnel;
- our ability to retain medical science liaisons in the U.S. supporting physician education on the proper usage of VIBATIV;
- the effectiveness of sales personnel, and particularly newly hired personnel, to obtain access to or educate adequate numbers of physicians about prescribing VIBATIV in appropriate clinical situations;
- the lack of complementary products to be offered by our sales personnel, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage relative to companies with more extensive product lines;
- the reimbursement policies of government and third party payors; and
- the market price of VIBATIV relative to competing therapies.

We are bearing the full cost of developing the capability to market, sell and distribute VIBATIV in the U.S.

We evaluate commercial strategy on a product by product basis either to engage pharmaceutical or other healthcare companies with an existing sales and marketing organization and distribution system to market, sell and distribute our products or to commercialize a product ourselves. However, we may not be able to establish these sales and distribution relationships on acceptable terms, or at all, or may encounter difficulties in commercializing a product ourselves. For any of our product candidates that receive regulatory approval in the future and are not covered by our current collaboration agreements, we will need a partner in order to commercialize such products unless we establish independent sales, marketing and distribution capabilities with appropriate technical expertise and supporting infrastructure. VIBATIV was returned to Theravance by Astellas Pharma Inc. ("Astellas"), Theravance's former VIBATIV collaboration partner, in January 2012, and Astellas is entitled to a ten-year, 2% royalty on future net sales of VIBATIV. On August 14, 2013, Theravance announced the reintroduction of VIBATIV to the U.S. market with the commencement of shipments into the wholesaler channel and we have increased, and are working to more than double, our VIBATIV sales force in the U.S. The risks of commercializing VIBATIV in the U.S. without a partner include:

- costs and expenses associated with creating an independent sales and marketing organization with appropriate technical expertise and supporting infrastructure and distribution capability, including third party vendor logistics and consultant support, which costs and expenses could, depending on the scope and method of the marketing effort, exceed any product revenue from VIBATIV for several years;
- our unproven ability to retain adequate numbers of effective sales and marketing personnel;
- our unproven ability to retain medical science liaisons in the U.S. supporting physician education on the proper usage of VIBATIV;
- the unproven ability of sales personnel to obtain access to or educate adequate numbers of physicians about prescribing VIBATIV in appropriate clinical situations;
- the lack of complementary products to be offered by sales personnel, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage relative to companies with more extensive product lines; and
- bearing the full costs of further U.S. development of telavancin.

If we are not successful in building an internal sales and marketing organization with appropriate experience, technical expertise and supporting infrastructure and distribution capability, we will have difficulty commercializing VIBATIV in the U.S., which would adversely affect our business and financial condition and the price of our securities could fall.

With regard to all of our programs, any delay in commencing or completing clinical studies for product candidates and any adverse results from clinical or non-clinical studies or regulatory obstacles product candidates may face, would harm our business and the price of our securities could fall.

Each of our product candidates must undergo extensive non-clinical and clinical studies as a condition to regulatory approval. Non-clinical and clinical studies are expensive, take many years to complete and study results may lead to delays in further studies or decisions to terminate programs. The commencement and completion of clinical studies for our product candidates may be delayed and programs may be terminated due to many factors, including, but not limited to:

- lack of effectiveness of product candidates during clinical studies (for example, as Theravance experienced when TD-9855 did not meet the primary efficacy endpoints in the Phase 2 study in adult patients with Attention-Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder);
- adverse events, safety issues or side effects relating to the product candidates or their formulation into medicines;
- inability to raise additional capital in sufficient amounts to continue our development programs, which are very expensive;
- inability to enter into partnering arrangements relating to the development and commercialization of our programs and product candidates;
- the need to sequence clinical studies as opposed to conducting them concomitantly in order to conserve resources;
- our inability or the inability of our collaborators or licensees to manufacture or obtain from third parties materials sufficient for use in nonclinical and clinical studies;
- governmental or regulatory delays and changes in regulatory requirements, policy and guidelines;
- failure of our partners to advance our product candidates through clinical development;
- delays in patient enrollment and variability in the number and types of patients available for clinical studies;
- difficulty in maintaining contact with patients after treatment, resulting in incomplete data;
- varying regulatory requirements or interpretations of data among the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities; and
- a regional disturbance where we or our collaborative partners are enrolling patients in clinical trials, such as a pandemic, terrorist activities or war, political unrest or a natural disaster.

If our product candidates that we develop on our own or with collaborative partners are not approved by regulatory authorities, including the FDA, we will be unable to commercialize them.

The FDA must approve any new medicine before it can be marketed and sold in the U.S. We must provide the FDA and similar foreign regulatory authorities with data from preclinical and clinical studies that demonstrate that our product candidates are safe and effective for a defined indication before they can be approved for commercial distribution. We will not obtain this approval for a product candidate unless and until the FDA approves a new drug application, or NDA. The processes by which regulatory approvals are obtained from the FDA to market and sell a new product are complex, require a number of years and involve the expenditure of substantial resources. In order to market our medicines in foreign jurisdictions, we, or our collaborative partners, must obtain separate regulatory approvals in each country. The approval procedure varies among countries and can involve additional testing, and the time required to obtain approval may differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval by regulatory authorities in other foreign countries or by the FDA. Conversely, failure to obtain approval in one or more jurisdictions may make approval in other jurisdictions more difficult.

22

Clinical studies involving our product candidates may reveal that those candidates are ineffective, inferior to existing approved medicines, unacceptably toxic, or that they have other unacceptable side effects. In addition, the results of preclinical studies do not necessarily predict clinical success, and larger and later-stage clinical studies may not produce the same results as earlier-stage clinical studies.

Frequently, product candidates that have shown promising results in early preclinical or clinical studies have subsequently suffered significant setbacks or failed in later clinical or non-clinical studies. In addition, clinical and non-clinical studies of potential products often reveal that it is not possible or practical to continue development efforts for these product candidates. If these studies are substantially delayed or fail to prove the safety and effectiveness of our product candidates in development, we may not receive regulatory approval of any of these product candidates. Further, the implementation of new laws and regulations, and revisions to FDA clinical trial design guidance have increased uncertainty regarding the approvability of new drugs. In addition, over the past decade, the FDA has implemented additional requirements for approval of new drugs, including advisory committee meetings for new chemical entities, and formal risk evaluation and mitigation strategy at the FDA's discretion. These laws, regulations, additional requirements and changes in interpretation could cause non-approval or further delays in the FDA's review and approval of our and our collaborative partner's product candidates, which would materially harm our business and financial condition and the price of our securities could fall.

We rely on a single manufacturer for the Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient ("API") for telavancin and a separate, single manufacturer for VIBATIV drug product supply. Our business will be harmed if either of these single-source manufacturers are not able to satisfy demand and alternative sources are not available.

We have a single source of supply of API for telavancin and another, separate single source of supply of VIBATIV drug product. If, for any reason, either single-source third party manufacturer of telavancin API or of VIBATIV drug product is unable or unwilling to perform, or if its performance does not meet regulatory requirements, including maintaining current Good Manufacturing Practice ("cGMP") compliance, we may not be able to locate alternative manufacturers, enter into acceptable agreements with them or obtain sufficient quantities of API or finished drug product in a timely manner. Any inability to acquire sufficient quantities of API or future sources would adversely affect the commercialization of VIBATIV and our obligations to our partners and the price of our securities could fall.

Theravance's previous VIBATIV commercialization partner failed to maintain a reliable source of drug product supply which resulted in critical product shortages and, eventually, suspension of commercialization for well over a year. In May 2012, Theravance entered into an agreement with Hospira to supply VIBATIV drug product. In June 2013, the FDA approved Hospira as a VIBATIV drug product manufacturer, and this agreement with Hospira has been assigned to us. Although we believe that Hospira will be a reliable supplier of VIBATIV drug product, if it cannot perform or if its performance does not meet regulatory requirements, including maintaining cGMP compliance, and if commercial manufacture of VIBATIV drug product cannot be arranged elsewhere on a timely basis, the commercialization of VIBATIV will be adversely affected. In addition, in February 2015 it was announced that Pfizer plans to acquire Hospira later this year and we cannot predict whether the acquisition will lead to changes in Hospira's operations which may adversely impact our single source of supply for VIBATIV drug product. Given the time required to locate and qualify another acceptable drug product manufacturer, any supply delay, suspension or cessation by Hospira (whether or not resulting for or related to the proposed acquisition by Pfizer) would adversely affect the commercialization of VIBATIV and our obligations to our partners and the price of our securities could fall.

We rely on a single source of supply for a number of our product candidates, and our business will be harmed if any of these single-source manufacturers are not able to satisfy demand and alternative sources are not available.

We have limited in-house production capabilities for preclinical and clinical study purposes, and depend primarily on a number of third-party API and drug product manufacturers. We may not have long-term agreements with these third parties and our agreements with these parties may be terminable at will by either party at any time. If, for any reason, these third parties are unable or unwilling to perform, or if their performance does not meet regulatory requirements, we may not be able to locate alternative manufacturers or enter into acceptable agreements with them. Any inability to acquire sufficient quantities of API and drug product in a timely manner from these third parties could delay preclinical and clinical studies and prevent us from developing our product candidates in a cost-effective manner or on a timely basis. In addition, manufacturers of our API and drug product are subject to the FDA's cGMP regulations and similar foreign standards and we do not have control over compliance with these regulations by our manufacturers.

Our manufacturing strategy presents the following additional risks:

- because of the complex nature of many of our compounds, our manufacturers may not be able to successfully manufacture our APIs and/or drug products in a cost effective and/or timely manner and changing manufacturers for our APIs or drug products could involve lengthy technology transfer, validation and regulatory qualification activities for the new manufacturer;
- the processes required to manufacture certain of our APIs and drug products are specialized and available only from a limited number of thirdparty manufacturers;
- some of the manufacturing processes for our APIs and drug products have not been scaled to quantities needed for continued clinical studies or commercial sales, and delays in scale-up to commercial quantities could delay clinical studies, regulatory submissions and commercialization of our product candidates; and
- because some of the third-party manufacturers are located outside of the U.S., there may be difficulties in importing our APIs and drug products
 or their components into the U.S. as a result of, among other things, FDA import inspections, incomplete or inaccurate import documentation or
 defective packaging.

Even if our product candidates receive regulatory approval, as VIBATIV has, commercialization of such products may be adversely affected by regulatory actions and oversight.

Even if we receive regulatory approval for our product candidates, this approval may include limitations on the indicated uses for which we can market our medicines or the patient population that may utilize our medicines, which may limit the market for our medicines or put us at a competitive disadvantage relative to alternative therapies. For example, the U.S. labeling for VIBATIV contains a number of boxed warnings. Products with boxed warnings are subject to more restrictive advertising regulations than products without such warnings. In addition, the VIBATIV labeling for hospital-acquired and ventilator associated pneumonia ("HABP/VABP") in the U.S. and the European Union specifies that VIBATIV should be reserved for use when alternative treatments are not suitable. These restrictions make it more difficult to market VIBATIV. With VIBATIV approved in certain countries, we are subject to continuing regulatory obligations, such as safety reporting requirements and additional post- marketing obligations, including regulatory oversight of promotion and marketing.

In addition, the manufacturing, labeling, packaging, adverse event reporting, advertising, promotion and recordkeeping for the approved product remain subject to extensive and ongoing regulatory requirements. If we become aware of previously unknown problems with an approved product in the U.S. or overseas or at contract manufacturers' facilities, a regulatory authority may impose restrictions on the product, the contract manufacturers or on us, including requiring us to reformulate the product, conduct additional clinical studies, change the labeling of the product, withdraw the product from the market or require the contract manufacturer to implement changes to its facilities.

We are also subject to regulation by regional, national, state and local agencies, including the Department of Justice, the Federal Trade Commission, the Office of Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and other regulatory bodies with respect to VIBATIV, as well as governmental authorities in those foreign countries in which any of our product candidates are approved for commercialization. The Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, the Public Health Service Act and other federal and state statutes and regulations govern to varying degrees the research, development, manufacturing and commercial activities relating to prescription pharmaceutical products, including non-clinical and clinical testing, approval, production, labeling, sale, distribution, import, export, post-market surveillance, advertising, dissemination of information and promotion. If we or any third parties that provide these services for us are unable to comply, we may be subject to regulatory or civil actions or penalties that could significantly and adversely affect our business. Any failure to maintain regulatory approval will limit our ability to commercialize our product candidates, which would materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition and the price of our securities could fall.



The risks identified in this risk factor relating to regulatory actions and oversight by agencies in the U.S. and throughout the world also apply to the commercialization of any partnered products by our collaboration partners, and such regulatory actions and oversight may limit our collaboration partners' ability to commercialize such products, which could materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition, which may cause the price of our securities to fall.

If our partners do not satisfy their obligations under our agreements with them, or if they terminate our partnerships with them, we may not be able to develop or commercialize our partnered product candidates as planned.

In October 2012, Theravance entered into an exclusive development and commercialization agreement with Alfa Wassermann S.p.A. ("Alfa Wassermann") for velusetrag, our lead compound in the 5-HT4 program, covering the European Union, Russia, China, Mexico and certain other countries, and Theravance entered into a research collaboration and license agreement with Merck to discover, develop and commercialize novel small molecule therapeutics for the treatment of cardiovascular disease on an exclusive, worldwide basis. In March 2013, Theravance entered into a commercialization agreement with Clinigen Group plc ("Clinigen") for VIBATIV in the European Union and certain other European countries (including Switzerland and Norway). In connection with these agreements, Theravance granted to these parties certain rights regarding the use of its patents and technology with respect to the compounds in our development programs, including development and marketing rights. In September 2013, Merck terminated its research collaboration and license agreement growthere agreements were assigned to us in the Spin-Off. The Alfa Wassermann agreement provides research and development funding for the program under license, and if it decides not to progress the licensed program, we may not be able to develop or commercialize to program on our own. In January 2015, we entered into a collaboration agreement with Mylan for the development and commercialized formulation of our LAMA TD-4208. Under the terms of the agreement, we and Mylan will co- develop nebulized TD-4208 for COPD and other respiratory diseases.

Our partners might not fulfill all of their obligations under these agreements, and, in certain circumstances, they may terminate our partnership with them as Astellas did to Theravance in January 2012 with its VIBATIV agreement and as Merck did to Theravance in September 2013 with the cardiovascular disease collaboration. In either event, we may be unable to assume the development and commercialization of the product candidates covered by the agreements or enter into alternative arrangements with a third party to develop and commercialize such product candidates. If a partner elected to promote its own products and product candidates in preference to those licensed from us, the development and commercialization of product candidates covered by the agreements could be delayed or terminated, and future payments to us could be delayed, reduced or eliminated and our business and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected. Accordingly, our ability to receive any revenue from the product candidates covered by these agreements or breaches its agreements with us, otherwise fails to complete its obligations in a timely manner or alleges that we have breached our contractual obligations under these agreements, the chances of successfully developing or commercializing product candidates under the collaboration could be materially and adversely affected. We could also become involved in disputes with a partner, which could lead to delays in or termination of our development and commercialization programs and time-consuming and expensive litigation or arbitration.

Because GSK is a strategic partner of Theravance, a strategic partner of TRC and a significant shareholder of us, it may take actions that in certain cases are materially harmful to both our business and to our other shareholders.

As of July 31, 2015, GSK beneficially owned approximately 24.5% of our outstanding ordinary shares. GSK is also a strategic partner to Theravance with rights and obligations under the strategic alliance agreement and under the collaboration agreement assigned to TRC (the "GSK-Theravance Agreements") that may cause GSK's interests to differ from the interests of us and our other shareholders. In particular, if the Closed Triple or a MABA/ICS in either the U.S. or the European Union is approved, GSK's diligent efforts obligations under the GSK-Theravance Agreements with regard to commercialization matters will have the objective of focusing on the best interests of patients and maximizing the net value of the overall portfolio of products under the GSK-Theravance Agreements. Following such regulatory approval, GSK's commercialization efforts will be guided by a portfolio approach across products in which we have an indirect interest through TRC and products in which we have no interest. Accordingly, GSK's commercialization efforts may have the effect of reducing the value of our interest in TRC. Furthermore, GSK has a substantial respiratory product portfolio in addition to the products covered



by the GSK-Theravance Agreements. GSK may make respiratory product portfolio decisions or statements about its portfolio which may be, or may be perceived to be, harmful to the respiratory products partnered with Theravance and TRC. For example, GSK could promote its own respiratory products and/or delay or terminate the development or commercialization of the respiratory programs covered by the GSK-Theravance Agreements. Also, given the potential future royalty payments GSK may be obligated to pay under the GSK-Theravance Agreements, GSK may seek to acquire us or acquire our interests in TRC in order to effectively reduce those payment obligations, though the actions GSK may take to acquire us are limited under our governance agreement with GSK which will expire on December 31, 2017 (the "Governance Agreement"). The timing of when GSK may seek to acquire us could potentially be when it possesses information regarding the status of drug programs covered by the GSK-Theravance Agreements that has not been publicly disclosed and is not otherwise known to us. As a result of these differing interests, GSK may take actions that it believes are in its best interest but which might not be in the best interests of either us or our other shareholders. In addition, GSK could also seek to challenge our or Theravance's post-Spin-Off operations as violating or allowing it to terminate the GSK-Theravance Agreements, including by violating the confidentiality provisions of those agreements or the master agreement between GSK, Theravance and us entered into in connection with the Spin-Off, or otherwise violating its legal rights. While we believe our operations fully comply with the GSK-Theravance Agreements, the master agreement and applicable law, there can be no assurance that we or Theravance will prevail against any such claims by GSK. Moreover, regardless of the merit of any claims by GSK, we may incur significant cost and diversion of resources in defending them. In addition, any other action or inaction by either GSK or Theravance that results in a material dispute, allegation of breach, litigation, arbitration, or significant disagreement between those parties may be interpreted negatively by the market or by our investors, could harm our business and cause the price of our securities to fall. Examples of these kinds of issues include but are not limited to non-performance of contractual obligations and allegations of nonperformance, disagreements over the relative marketing and sales efforts for Theravance's partnered products and other GSK respiratory products, disputes over public statements, and similar matters. In general, any uncertainty about the respiratory programs partnered with GSK, the enforceability of the GSK-Theravance Agreements or the relationship/partnership between Theravance and GSK could result in significant reduction in the market price of our securities and other material harm to our business.

Agreements entered into with or for the benefit of GSK in connection with the Spin-Off may significantly restrict our business and affairs.

On March 3, 2014, in connection with the Spin-Off, we, Theravance and GSK entered into a number of agreements that may significantly restrict our business and affairs. In particular, we, Theravance and GSK entered into a three-way master agreement (the "Master Agreement") that, among other things, requires GSK's consent to make any changes to (A) the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Transition Services Agreement, Employee Matters Agreement and Tax Matters Agreement that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to adversely affect GSK in any material respect or (B) the TRC Limited Liability Company Agreement, which consent is not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, provided that GSK may withhold, condition or delay such consent in its sole discretion with respect to certain sections of the TRC Limited Liability Company Agreement and any changes to the governance structure of TRC, the confidentiality restrictions, the consent rights, and the transfer restrictions in the TRC Limited Liability Company Agreement also limits the periods of time that Theravance employees may provide services to us pursuant to the transition services agreement between Theravance and us. We and GSK also entered into (i) the Governance Agreement that, among other things, provides share purchase rights to GSK and exempts GSK from triggering our Rights Agreement until December 31, 2017 (as further described under "Rights Agreement" below), (ii) a registration rights agreement that gives GSK certain registration rights with respect to our ordinary shares held by GSK and (iii) an extension agreement that these restrictions will not materially harm our business, particularly given that GSK's interests may not be aligned with the interests of our business or our other shareholders.

If we are unable to enter into future collaboration arrangements or if any such collaborations with third parties are unsuccessful, we will be unable to fully develop and commercialize all of our product candidates and our business will be adversely affected.

Theravance's collaborations with Alfa Wassermann for velusetrag, with Clinigen for VIBATIV for the European Union, and with other companies for regional development and commercialization of VIBATIV were assigned to us in connection with the Spin-Off. Also, through our interest in TRC we may participate economically

in Theravance's collaborations with GSK with respect to the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs. In addition, in January 2015 we entered into a collaboration agreement with Mylan for the development and commercialization of a nebulized formulation of TD-4208, our LAMA compound. Additional collaborations will be needed to fund later-stage development of our product candidates that have not been licensed to a collaborator, such as axelopran (TD-1211) for opioid-induced constipation, TD-9855 for fatigue/pain, and TD-6450 for hepatitis C, or for a territory that is not covered by existing collaborations, and to commercialize these product candidates if approved by the necessary regulatory authorities. In some instances, we may seek additional third parties with which to pursue collaboration arrangements for the development and commercialization of our development programs and for the future commercialization of VIBATIV in regions where it is not currently partnered. Collaborations with third parties regarding these programs or our other programs may require us to relinquish material rights, including revenue from commercialization of our medicines, or to assume material ongoing development obligations that we would have to fund. These collaborations arrangements are complex and time-consuming to negotiate, and if we are unable to reach agreements with third-party collaborators. We may be unable to find third parties to pursue product collaborations on a timely basis or on acceptable terms. Furthermore, for any collaborators. We may not be able to control the amount of time and resources that our partners devote to our product candidates and our partners may not be to programs. Our inability to successfully collaborate with third parties would increase our development costs and would limit the likelihood of successful commercialization of our product candidates and the price of our securities could fall.

We depend on third parties in the conduct of our clinical studies for our product candidates.

We depend on independent clinical investigators, contract research organizations and other third-party service providers in the conduct of our nonclinical and clinical studies for our product candidates. We rely heavily on these parties for execution of our non-clinical and clinical studies, and control only certain aspects of their activities. Nevertheless, we are responsible for ensuring that our clinical studies are conducted in accordance with good clinical practices ("GCPs") and other regulations as required by the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities, and the applicable protocol. Failure by these parties to comply with applicable regulations, GCPs and protocols in conducting studies of our product candidates can result in a delay in our development programs or non-approval of our product candidates by regulatory authorities.

The FDA enforces GCPs and other regulations through periodic inspections of trial sponsors, clinical research organizations ("CROs"), principal investigators and trial sites. If we or any of the third parties on which we have relied to conduct our clinical studies are determined to have failed to comply with GCPs, the study protocol or applicable regulations, the clinical data generated in our studies may be deemed unreliable. This could result in non-approval of our product candidates by the FDA, or we or the FDA may decide to conduct additional audits or require additional clinical studies, which would delay our development programs, could result in significant additional costs and the price of our securities could fall.

We face substantial competition from companies with more resources and experience than we have, which may result in others discovering, developing, receiving approval for or commercializing products before or more successfully than we do.

Our ability to succeed in the future depends on our ability to demonstrate and maintain a competitive advantage with respect to our approach to the discovery, development and commercialization of medicines. Our objective is to discover, develop and commercialize new small molecule medicines with superior efficacy, convenience, tolerability and/or safety using our proprietary insight in chemistry, biology and multivalency, where applicable. We expect that any medicines that we commercialize with or without our collaborative partners will compete with existing or future market-leading medicines.

Many of our current and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and personnel resources than we have. In addition, many of these competitors have significantly greater commercial infrastructures than we have. Our ability to compete successfully will depend largely on our ability to leverage our experience in drug discovery and development, and, more recently, commercialization, to:

- discover and develop medicines that are superior to other products in the market;
- attract and retain qualified personnel;

- obtain patent and/or other proprietary protection for our medicines and technologies;
- obtain required regulatory approvals;
- develop and effectively implement commercialization strategies, with or without collaborative partners; and
- successfully collaborate with pharmaceutical companies in the discovery, development and commercialization of new medicines.

Pharmaceutical companies, including companies with which we collaborate, may invest heavily to quickly discover and develop or in-license novel compounds that could make our product candidates obsolete. Accordingly, our competitors may succeed in obtaining patent protection, receiving FDA approval or discovering, developing and commercializing medicines before we do. Other companies are engaged in the discovery of medicines that would compete with the product candidates that we are developing.

Any new medicine that competes with a generic or proprietary market leading medicine must demonstrate compelling advantages in efficacy, convenience, tolerability and/or safety in order to overcome severe price competition and be commercially successful. VIBATIV must demonstrate these advantages in certain circumstances, as it competes with vancomycin, a relatively inexpensive generic drug that is manufactured by a number of companies, and a number of existing antibacterial drugs marketed by major and other pharmaceutical companies. If we are not able to compete effectively against our current and future competitors, our business will not grow, our financial condition and operations will suffer and the price of our securities could fall.

As the principles of multivalency become more widely known, we expect to face increasing competition from companies and other organizations that pursue the same or similar approaches. Novel therapies, such as gene therapy or effective vaccines for infectious diseases, may emerge that will make both conventional and multivalent medicine discovery efforts obsolete or less competitive.

Certain of our directors and officers may have actual or potential conflicts of interest because of their equity ownership in Theravance, which actual or potential conflicts may harm our business, prospects and financial condition and result in the diversion of corporate opportunities to Theravance.

Certain of our directors and all of our executive officers hold shares of Theravance's common stock or rights to acquire such shares, and these holdings may be significant for some of these individuals compared to their total assets. This ownership of Theravance common stock by our officers and most of our directors may create, or may create the appearance of, conflicts of interest when these directors and officers are faced with decisions that could have different implications for Theravance and for us. For example, potential or actual conflicts could arise relating to: our relationship with Theravance, including Theravance's and our respective rights and obligations under agreements entered into in connection with the Spin-Off; Theravance's management of TRC, particularly given that we and Theravance have different economic interests in TRC; and corporate opportunities that may be available to both companies in the future. Although we and Theravance have implemented policies and procedures to identify and properly address such potential and actual conflicts of interest, there can be no assurance that, when such conflicts are resolved in accordance with applicable laws, such conflicts of interest will not harm our business, prospects and financial condition and result in the diversion of corporate opportunities to Theravance.

If we lose key management or scientific personnel, or if we fail to attract and retain key employees, our ability to discover and develop our product candidates, and commercialize VIBATIV and any other products that may be approved in the future will be impaired.

We are highly dependent on principal members of our management team and scientific staff, and in particular, our Chief Executive Officer, Rick E Winningham, to operate our business. Mr. Winningham has significant pharmaceutical industry experience. The loss of Mr. Winningham's services could impair our ability to discover, develop and commercialize new medicines.

The Spin-Off represented a significant organizational change and our employees may have concerns about our prospects as a stand-alone company, including our ability to successfully operate the new entity over the long-term, and our ability to maintain our independence after the Spin-Off. If we are not successful in assuring our employees of our prospects as an independent company, our employees may seek other employment, which could materially adversely affect our business. If we fail to retain our qualified personnel or replace them when they leave, we may be unable to continue our discovery, development and commercialization activities, which may cause the price of our securities to fall.

In addition, our U.S. operating subsidiary's facility and most of its employees are located in northern California, headquarters to many other biotechnology and biopharmaceutical companies and many academic and research institutions. As a result, competition for certain skilled personnel in our market is intense. None of our employees have employment commitments for any fixed period of time and they all may leave our employment at will. If we fail to retain our qualified personnel or replace them when they leave, we may be unable to continue our development and commercialization activities and the price of our securities could fall.

Our business and operations would suffer in the event of system failures or security breaches.

Although we have security measures in place, our internal computer systems and those of our CROs and other service providers are vulnerable to damage from computer viruses, unauthorized access, natural disasters, terrorism, war and telecommunication and electrical failures. Any material system failure, accident or security breach could result in a material disruption to our business or other losses. We rely extensively on computer systems to process payment transactions, maintain information and manage our business. Although we have security and fraud prevention measures in place, the Company has been subject to immaterial payment fraud activity. If we suffered material electronic security breaches, we could incur significant liability or significant disruption to our business. For example, the loss of clinical trial data from completed or ongoing clinical trials of our product candidates could result in delays in our regulatory approval efforts and significantly increase our costs to recover or reproduce the data. If a disruption or security breach results in a loss of or damage to our data or regulatory applications, inadvertent disclosure of confidential or proprietary information, or other harm to our business, we could incur liability, the further development of our product candidates could be delayed and the price of our securities could fall.

Our U.S. operating subsidiary's facility is located near known earthquake fault zones, and the occurrence of an earthquake, extremist attack or other catastrophic disaster could cause damage to our facilities and equipment, which could require us to cease or curtail operations.

Our U.S. operating subsidiary's facility is located in the San Francisco Bay Area near known earthquake fault zones and therefore will be vulnerable to damage from earthquakes. In October 1989, a major earthquake struck this area and caused significant property damage and a number of fatalities. We are also vulnerable to damage from other types of disasters, including power loss, attacks from extremist organizations, fire, floods, communications failures and similar events. If any disaster were to occur, our ability to operate our business could be seriously impaired. In addition, the unique nature of our research activities and of much of our equipment could make it difficult for us to recover from this type of disaster. We may not have adequate insurance to cover our losses resulting from disasters or other similar significant business interruptions and we do not plan to purchase additional insurance to cover such losses due to the cost of obtaining such coverage. Any significant losses that are not recoverable under our insurance policies could seriously impair our business and financial condition, which could cause the price of our securities to fall.

We are an "emerging growth company" and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth companies will make our ordinary shares less attractive to investors.

We are an "emerging growth company" under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. Emerging growth companies can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We plan to avail ourselves of this exemption from new or revised accounting standards and, therefore, we may not be subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as other public companies that are not emerging growth companies.



For as long as we continue to be an emerging growth company, we also intend to take advantage of certain other exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies including, but not limited to, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory shareholder vote on executive compensation and any golden parachute payments not previously approved, exemption from the requirement of auditor attestation in the assessment of our internal control over financial reporting and exemption from any requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor's report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements (auditor discussion and analysis). Therefore, the information that we intend to provide shareholders will be different than what is available with respect to some other public companies. We cannot predict if investors will find our ordinary shares less attractive because we rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our ordinary shares less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our ordinary shares and our share price may be more volatile.

We were an emerging growth company for all of 2014 and will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the end of the fiscal year in which the market value of our ordinary shares that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of the end of the second fiscal quarter, (ii) the end of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenues of \$1 billion or more during such fiscal year, (iii) the date on which we issue more than \$1 billion in non-convertible debt in a three-year period or (iv) December 31, 2019, the end of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of the first sale of our ordinary shares pursuant to an effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

We and our shareholders may not realize the potential benefits from the Spin-Off.

On June 2, 2014, the Spin-Off of Theravance Biopharma from Theravance was completed via a pro rata dividend distribution to Theravance stockholders of record of one of our ordinary shares for every three and one half shares of Theravance common stock outstanding on the May 15, 2014 record date. We and our shareholders may not realize the potential benefits that we expected from our Spin-Off from Theravance. By separating from Theravance, there is a risk that our company may be more susceptible to market fluctuations and other adverse events than we would have been were we still a part of Theravance. In addition, we have incurred and will continue to incur significant costs, including those described elsewhere herein, which may exceed our estimates. As a separate company, we will not receive potential royalty revenue derived from certain of Theravance's late-stage partnered respiratory assets (the "Royalty Business").

Our historical financial information prior to the Spin-Off may not reflect what our financial position, results of operations or cash flows would have been as a stand-alone company during the periods presented and is not necessarily indicative of our future financial position, future results of operations or future cash flows.

Our historical financial information prior to the Spin-Off does not necessarily reflect what our financial position, results of operations or cash flows would have been as a stand-alone company during the periods presented and is not necessarily indicative of our future financial position, future results of operations or future cash flows. This is primarily a result of the following factors:

- prior to the Spin-Off, our business was operated by Theravance as part of its broader corporate organization rather than as a stand-alone company, and our business was able to leverage Theravance's financial resources and creditworthiness;
- prior to the Spin-Off, certain general administrative functions were performed by Theravance for the combined entity. Our historical consolidated financial statements reflect allocations of costs for services shared with Theravance. These allocations may differ from the costs we will incur for these services as an independent company;
- our cost of capital will likely be higher than Theravance's cost of capital prior to the Spin-Off; and
- following the Spin-Off, we are now responsible for the additional costs associated with being an independent, public company, including costs related to corporate governance and listed and registered securities.

Our accounting and other management systems and resources may not be adequately prepared to meet the financial reporting and other requirements to which we became subject following the Spin-Off. If we are unable to achieve and maintain effective internal controls, our business, financial position and results of operations could be adversely affected.

As a result of the Spin-Off, we are subject to the reporting and other obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which will require annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. When and if we become a "large accelerated filer" or an "accelerated filer" and are no longer an "emerging growth company," each as defined in the Exchange Act, our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. These reporting and other obligations will place significant demands on our management and administrative and operational resources, including accounting resources.

To comply with these requirements, we anticipate that we may need to upgrade our systems, including information technology, implement additional financial and management controls, reporting systems and procedures and hire additional legal, accounting and/or finance staff. If we are unable to upgrade our financial and management controls, reporting systems, information technology and procedures in a timely and effective fashion, our ability to comply with our financial reporting requirements and other rules that apply to reporting companies could be impaired. In addition, if in the future we are unable to conclude that our internal control over financial reporting is effective (or if the auditors are unable to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls), we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports.

Our management will be responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Any failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls could have an adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of operations.

We have only been operating as a stand-alone entity since June 2, 2014 and therefore we have a limited history operating as an independent company upon which you can evaluate us.

We have only been operating as a stand-alone entity since June 2, 2014 and therefore we have a limited operating history as an independent company upon which you can evaluate us. While our biopharmaceutical business has constituted a substantial part of the historic operations of Theravance, we did not operate as a stand-alone company without the Royalty Business until the Spin-Off. As a new independent company, our ability to satisfy our obligations and achieve profitability will be primarily dependent upon the future performance of our biopharmaceutical business, and we do not rely upon the revenues, capital resources and cash flows of the Royalty Business remaining with Theravance.

We may be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, a corporation generally is considered tax resident in the place of its incorporation. Theravance Biopharma is incorporated under Cayman Islands law and established tax residency in Ireland effective July 1, 2015. Therefore, it should be a non-U.S. corporation under this general rule. However, Section 7874 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), contains rules that may result in a foreign corporation being treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The application of these rules is complex and there is little guidance regarding certain aspects of their application.

Under Section 7874 of the Code, a corporation created or organized outside the U.S. will be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal tax purposes, when (i) the foreign corporation directly or indirectly acquires substantially all of the properties held directly or indirectly by a U.S. corporation, (ii) the former shareholders of the acquired U.S. corporation hold at least 80% of the vote or value of the shares of the foreign acquiring corporation by reason of holding stock in the U.S. acquired corporation, and (iii) the foreign corporation's "expanded affiliated group" does not have "substantial business activities" in the foreign corporation's country of incorporation relative to its expanded affiliated group sworldwide activities. For this purpose, "expanded affiliated group" generally means the foreign corporation and all subsidiaries in which the foreign corporation, directly or indirectly, owns more than 50% of the stock by vote and value, and "substantial business activities" generally means at least 25% of employees (by number and compensation), assets and gross income of our expanded affiliated group are based, located and derived, respectively, in the country of incorporation.



We do not expect to be treated as a U.S. corporation under Section 7874 of the Code, because we do not believe that the assets contributed to us by Theravance constituted "substantially all" of the properties of Theravance (as determined on both a gross and net fair market value basis). However, the IRS may disagree with our conclusion on this point and assert that, in its view, the assets contributed to us by Theravance did constitute "substantially all" of the properties of Theravance. In addition, there could be legislative proposals to expand the scope of U.S. corporate tax residence and there could be changes to Section 7874 of the Code or the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder that could result in Theravance Biopharma being treated as a U.S. corporation.

If it were determined that we should be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we could be liable for substantial additional U.S. federal income tax on our post-Spin-Off taxable income. In addition, payments of dividends to non-U.S. holders may be subject to U.S. withholding tax.

Taxing authorities, such as the U.S. Internal Revenue Service may challenge our structure and transfer pricing arrangements.

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands, maintain subsidiaries in the Cayman Islands, United States, the United Kingdom and Ireland, and effective July 1, 2015, we migrated our tax domicile from the Cayman Islands to Ireland. We are able to achieve a low annual average tax rate through the performance of certain functions and ownership of certain assets in tax-efficient jurisdictions such as the Cayman Islands and Ireland, together with intragroup service and transfer pricing agreements, each on an arm's length basis. Taxing authorities, such as the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, may challenge our structure and transfer pricing arrangements through an audit or lawsuit. Responding to or defending such a challenge could be expensive and consume time and other resources, and divert management's time and focus from operating our business. We cannot predict whether taxing authorities will conduct an audit or file a lawsuit challenging this structure, the cost involved in responding to any such audit or lawsuit, or the outcome. If we are unsuccessful, we may be required to pay taxes for prior periods, interest, fines or penalties, and may be obligated to pay increased taxes in the future which could result in reduced cash flows and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and growth prospects.

We believe that our company (and one of our subsidiaries) is a passive foreign investment company, or "PFIC," for 2014, which may have adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. holders.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, we generally would be classified as a PFIC for any taxable year if either (i) 75% or more of our gross income (including gross income of certain 25%-or-more-owned corporate subsidiaries) is "passive income" (as defined for such purposes) or (ii) the average percentage of our assets (including the assets of certain 25%-or-more-owned corporate subsidiaries) that produce passive income or that are held for the production of passive income is at least 50%. In addition, whether our company will be a PFIC for any taxable year depends on our assets and income over the course of each such taxable year and, as a result, cannot be predicted with certainty until after the end of the year.

Based upon our assets and income during the course of 2014, we believe that our company is a PFIC for the 2014 taxable year and may continue to be a PFIC in subsequent years. In addition, we believe that one of our company's wholly-owned subsidiaries, Theravance Biopharma R&D, Inc. is also a PFIC for the 2014 taxable year. For any taxable year (or portion thereof) in which our company is a PFIC that is included in the holding period of a U.S. holder, the U.S. holder is generally subject to additional U.S. federal income taxes plus an interest charge with respect to certain distributions from Theravance Biopharma or gain recognized on a sale of Theravance Biopharma shares. Similar rules would apply with respect to distributions from or gain recognized on an indirect sale of Theravance Biopharma R&D, Inc. U.S. holders of our ordinary shares may wish to file an election to be treated as owning an interest in a "qualified electing fund" ("QEF") or to "mark-to-market" their ordinary shares to avoid the otherwise-applicable interest charge consequences of PFIC treatment with respect to our ordinary shares. U.S. holders of our ordinary shares should consult their tax advisers regarding the potential PFIC, QEF and mark-to-market treatment of their interests in our ordinary shares, as well as the application of the PFIC rules with respect to their indirect interests in Theravance Biopharma R&D, Inc.



If we are required to indemnify Theravance, or if we are not able to collect on indemnification rights from Theravance, our business prospects and financial condition may be harmed.

We agreed to indemnify Theravance from and after the Spin-Off with respect to (i) all debts, liabilities and obligations transferred to us in connection with the Spin-Off (including our failure to pay, perform or otherwise promptly discharge any such debts, liabilities or obligations after the Spin-Off), (ii) any misstatement or omission of a material fact resulting in a misleading statement in our Information Statement distributed to Theravance stockholders in connection with the Spin-Off and (iii) any breach by us of certain agreements entered into with Theravance in connection with the Spin-Off (namely, the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the Transition Services Agreement, the Employee Matters Agreement, the Tax Matters Agreement, and the Facility Sublease Agreement). We are not aware of any existing indemnification obligations at this time, but any such indemnification obligations that may arise could be significant. Under the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Theravance agreed to indemnify us from and after the Spin-Off with respect to (i) all debts, liabilities or obligations after the Spin-Off) and (ii) any breach by Theravance of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the Transition Services Agreement, the Spin-Off (including its failure to pay, perform or otherwise promptly discharge any such debts, liabilities or obligations after the Spin-Off) and (ii) any breach by Theravance of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the Transition Services Agreement, the Employee Matters Agreement, and the Facility Sublease Agreement. Our and Theravance's ability to satisfy these indemnifies, if called upon to do so, will depend upon our and Theravance's future financial strength. If we are required to indemnify Theravance, or if we are not able to collect on indemnification rights from Theravance, our business prospects and financial condition may be harmed.

Risks Related to Legal and Regulatory Uncertainty

If our efforts to protect the proprietary nature of the intellectual property related to our technologies are not adequate, we may not be able to compete effectively in our market.

We rely upon a combination of patents, patent applications, trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect the intellectual property related to our technologies. Any involuntary disclosure to or misappropriation by third parties of this proprietary information could enable competitors to quickly duplicate or surpass our technological achievements, thus eroding our competitive position in our market. The status of patents in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical field involves complex legal and scientific questions and is very uncertain. As of June 30, 2015, we or one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries owned 398 issued United States patents and 1,429 granted foreign patents, as well as additional pending United States and foreign patent applications. Our patent applications may be challenged or fail to result in issued patents and our existing or future patents may be invalidated or be too narrow to prevent third parties from developing or designing around these patents. If the sufficiency of the breadth or strength of protection provided by our patents with respect to a product candidate is threatened, it could dissuade companies from collaborating with us to develop product candidate and threaten our ability to commercialize products. Further, if we encounter delays in our clinical trials or in obtaining regulatory approval of our product candidates, the patent lives of the related product candidates would be reduced.

In addition, we rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect proprietary know-how that is not patentable, for processes for which patents are difficult to enforce and for any other elements of our drug discovery and development processes that involve proprietary know-how, information and technology that is not covered by patent applications. Although we require our employees, consultants, advisors and any third parties who have access to our proprietary know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology to enter into confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-how, information and technology will not otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or independently develop substantially equivalent information and technologies. Further, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary

Litigation or third-party claims of intellectual property infringement would require us to divert resources and may prevent or delay our drug discovery and development efforts.

Our commercial success depends in part on us and our partners not infringing the patents and proprietary rights of third parties. Third parties may assert that we or our partners are using their proprietary rights without authorization. There are third party patents that may cover materials or methods for treatment related to our product candidates. At present, we are not aware of any patent claims with merit that would adversely and materially affect our ability to develop our product candidates, but nevertheless the possibility of third party allegations cannot be ruled out. In addition, third parties may obtain patents in the future and claim that use of our technologies infringes upon these patents. Furthermore, parties making claims against us or our partners may obtain injunctive or other equitable relief, which could effectively block our ability to further develop and commercialize one or more of our product candidates. Defense of these claims, regardless of their merit, would involve substantial litigation expense and would be a substantial diversion of employee resources from our business.

In the event of a successful claim of infringement against us, we may have to pay substantial damages, obtain one or more licenses from third parties or pay royalties. In addition, even in the absence of litigation, we may need to obtain licenses from third parties to advance our research or allow commercialization of our product candidates, and we have done so from time to time. We may fail to obtain any of these licenses at a reasonable cost or on reasonable terms, if at all. In that event, we would be unable to further develop and commercialize one or more of our product candidates, which could harm our business significantly. In addition, in the future we could be required to initiate litigation to enforce our proprietary rights against infringement by third parties. Prosecution of these claims to enforce our rights against others would involve substantial litigation expenses and divert substantial employee resources from our business. If we fail to effectively enforce our proprietary rights against others, our business will be harmed and the price of our securities could fall.

If the efforts of our partners or future partners to protect the proprietary nature of the intellectual property related to collaboration assets are not adequate, the future commercialization of any medicines resulting from collaborations could be delayed or prevented, which would materially harm our business and could cause the price of our securities to fall.

The risks identified in the two preceding risk factors may also apply to the intellectual property protection efforts of our partners or future partners and to GSK with respect to the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs in which we hold an economic interest. To the extent the intellectual property protection of any partnered assets are successfully challenged or encounter problems with the United States Patent and Trademark Office or other comparable agencies throughout the world, the future commercialization of these potential medicines could be delayed or prevented. Any challenge to the intellectual property protection of a late-stage development asset, particularly those of the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs in which we hold an economic interest, could harm our business and cause the price of our securities to fall.

Product liability lawsuits could divert our resources, result in substantial liabilities and reduce the commercial potential of our medicines.

The risk that we may be sued on product liability claims is inherent in the development and commercialization of pharmaceutical products and have likely increased with the commercial reintroduction of VIBATIV. Side effects of, or manufacturing defects in, products that we or our partners develop or commercialize could result in the deterioration of a patient's condition, injury or even death. Once a product is approved for sale and commercialized, the likelihood of product liability lawsuits tends to increase. Claims may be brought by individuals seeking relief for themselves or by individuals or groups seeking to represent a class. Also, changes in laws outside the U.S. are expanding our potential liability for injuries that occur during clinical trials. These lawsuits may divert our management from pursuing our business strategy and may be costly to defend. In addition, if we are held liable in any of these lawsuits, we may incur substantial liabilities and may be forced to limit or forgo further commercialization of the applicable products.

Although we maintain general liability and product liability insurance, this insurance may not fully cover potential liabilities and we cannot be sure that our insurer will not disclaim coverage as to a future claim. In addition, inability to obtain or maintain sufficient insurance coverage at an acceptable cost or to otherwise protect against potential product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the commercial production and sale of our products, which could adversely affect our business. The cost of defending any product liability litigation or other proceeding, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial and uncertainties resulting from the initiation and continuation of product liability litigation or other proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our ability to compete in the marketplace. Product liability claims could also harm our reputation, which may adversely affect our and our partners' ability to commercialize our products successfully and the price of our securities could fall.

Government restrictions on pricing and reimbursement, as well as other healthcare payor cost-containment initiatives, may negatively impact our ability to generate revenues.

The continuing efforts of the government, insurance companies, managed care organizations and other payors of health care costs to contain or reduce costs of health care may adversely affect one or more of the following:

- our or our collaborators' ability to set and collect a price we believe is fair for our product;
- our ability to generate revenues and achieve profitability; and
- the availability of capital.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, the Veterans Health Care Act and other existing and potential legislative or regulatory actions regarding healthcare and insurance matters, along with the trend toward managed healthcare in the United States, could influence the purchase of healthcare products and reduce demand and prices for our product. This could harm our or our collaborators' ability to market our existing and potential medicines and generate revenues. Cost containment measures that health care payors and providers are instituting and the effect of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, the Veterans Health Care Act and any additional agency regulations that may emerge in the future could significantly reduce potential revenues from the sale of VIBATIV and any product candidates approved in the future. In addition, in certain foreign markets, the pricing of prescription drugs is subject to government control and reimbursement may in some cases be unavailable. We believe that pricing pressures at the state and federal level, as well as internationally, will continue and may increase, which may make it difficult for us to sell VIBATIV and any other potential medicines that may be approved in the future at a price acceptable to us or our collaborators and which may cause the price of our securities to fall.

If we use hazardous and biological materials in a manner that causes injury or violates applicable law, we may be liable for damages.

Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of potentially hazardous substances, including chemical, biological and radioactive materials. In addition, our operations produce hazardous waste products. Federal, state and local laws and regulations govern the use, manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of hazardous materials. We may incur significant additional costs to comply with these and other applicable laws in the future. Also, even if we are in compliance with applicable laws, we cannot completely eliminate the risk of contamination or injury resulting from hazardous materials and we may incur liability as a result of any such contamination or injury. In the event of an accident, we could be held liable for damages or penalized with fines, and the liability could exceed our resources. We do not have any insurance for liabilities arising from hazardous materials. Compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations is expensive, and current or future environmental regulations may impair our research, development and production efforts, which could harm our business, which could cause the price of our securities to fall.

Risks Relating to our Ordinary Shares

The market price for our shares has and may continue to fluctuate widely, and may result in substantial losses for purchasers of our ordinary shares.

Our ordinary shares began trading on June 3, 2014, and the market price for our shares has and may continue to fluctuate widely, and may result in substantial losses for purchasers of our ordinary shares. To date, there is limited securities analyst coverage of our company. Limited securities analyst coverage of our company and shares is likely to reduce demand for our shares from potential investors, which likely will reduce the market price for our shares. To the extent that historically low trading volumes for our ordinary shares continues, our stock price may fluctuate significantly more than the stock market as a whole or the stock prices of similar companies. Without a larger public float of actively traded shares, our ordinary shares are likely to be more sensitive to changes in sales volumes, market fluctuations and events or perceived events with respect to our business, than the shares of common stock of companies with broader public ownership, and as a result, the trading prices for our ordinary shares may be more volatile. Among other things, trading of a relatively small volume of ordinary shares may have a greater effect on the trading price than would be the case if our public float of actively traded shares were larger.

Market prices for securities of biotechnology and biopharmaceutical companies have been highly volatile, and we expect such volatility to continue for the foreseeable future, so that investment in our ordinary shares involves substantial risk. By separating from Theravance, there is a risk that our company may be more susceptible to market fluctuations and other adverse events than we would have been were we still a part of Theravance. Additionally, the stock market from time to time has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies.

The following are some of the factors that may have a significant effect on the market price of our ordinary shares:

- any adverse developments or results or perceived adverse developments or results with respect to the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs, including, without limitation, any delays in development in these programs, any halting of development in these programs, any difficulties or delays encountered with regard to the FDA or other regulatory authorities in these programs, or any indication from clinical or non-clinical studies that the compounds in such programs are not safe or efficacious;
- any further adverse developments or perceived adverse developments with respect to the commercialization of VIBATIV, including whether Pfizer's planned acquisition of Hospira later this year will lead to changes in Hospira's operations which may adversely impact our single source of supply for VIBATIV drug product;
- whether we achieve the rapid and increasing acceleration of sales growth during the second half of 2015 upon which our current publicly announced U.S. net sales target for VIBATIV for 2015 is based or revise downward or fail to meet this sales target;
- any announcements of developments with, or comments by, the FDA or other regulatory authorities with respect to products we or our partners have under development or have commercialized;
- any adverse developments or agreements or perceived adverse developments or agreements with respect to the relationship of Theravance or TRC, on the one hand, and GSK, on the other hand, including any such developments or agreements resulting from or relating to the Spin-Off;
- any adverse developments or perceived adverse developments with respect to our relationship with any of our research, development or commercialization partners, including, without limitation, disagreements that may arise between us and any of those partners, including any such developments resulting from or relating to the Spin-Off;
- any adverse developments or perceived adverse developments in our programs with respect to partnering efforts or otherwise;
- · announcements of patent issuances or denials, technological innovations or new commercial products by us or our competitors;
- publicity regarding actual or potential study results or the outcome of regulatory review relating to products under development by us, our partners or our competitors;
- regulatory developments in the United States and foreign countries;
- announcements of equity or debt financings;
- economic and other external factors beyond our control;
- loss of key personnel;
- likelihood of our ordinary shares to be more sensitive to changes in sales volume, market fluctuations and events or perceived events with respect to our business due to our small public float;
- low public market trading volumes for our ordinary shares related in part to the concentration of ownership of our shares;

- developments or disputes as to patent or other proprietary rights;
- approval or introduction of competing products and technologies;
- results of clinical trials;
- failures or unexpected delays in timelines for our potential products in development, including the obtaining of regulatory approvals;
- delays in manufacturing adversely affecting clinical or commercial operations;
- fluctuations in our operating results;
- market reaction to announcements by other biotechnology or pharmaceutical companies;
- initiation, termination or modification of agreements with our collaborators or disputes or disagreements with collaborators;
- litigation or the threat of litigation;
- public concern as to the safety of drugs developed by us; and
- comments and expectations of results made by securities analysts or investors.

If any of these factors causes us to fail to meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors, or if adverse conditions prevail or are perceived to prevail with respect to our business, the price of the ordinary shares would likely drop significantly. A significant drop in the price of a company's securities often leads to the filing of securities class action litigation against the company. This type of litigation against us could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management's attention and resources.

Concentration of ownership will limit your ability to influence corporate matters.

As of July 31, 2015, GSK beneficially owned approximately 24.5% of our outstanding ordinary shares and our directors, executive officers and investors affiliated with these individuals beneficially owned approximately 3.9% of our outstanding ordinary shares. Based on our review of publicly available filings as of July 31, 2015, our two largest shareholders other than GSK collectively owned approximately 23.9% of our outstanding ordinary shares. These shareholders and GSK could control the outcome of actions taken by us that require shareholder approval, including a transaction in which shareholders might receive a premium over the prevailing market price for their shares.

Certain provisions in our constitutional documents may discourage our acquisition by a third party, which could limit your opportunity to sell shares at a premium.

Our constitutional documents include provisions that could limit the ability of others to acquire control of us, modify our structure or cause us to engage in change-of-control transactions, including, among other things, provisions that:

- require supermajority shareholder voting to effect certain amendments to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association;
- establish a classified board of directors;
- restrict our shareholders from calling meetings or acting by written consent in lieu of a meeting;
- limit the ability of our shareholders to propose actions at duly convened meetings; and
- authorize our board of directors, without action by our shareholders, to issue preferred shares and additional ordinary shares.

These provisions could have the effect of depriving you of an opportunity to sell your ordinary shares at a premium over prevailing market prices by discouraging third parties from seeking to acquire control of us in a tender offer or similar transaction.

Our shareholders may face difficulties in protecting their interests because we are incorporated under Cayman Islands law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, by the Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and by the common law of the Cayman Islands. The rights of our shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors under the laws of the Cayman Islands are different from those under statutes or judicial precedent in existence in jurisdictions in the U.S. Therefore, you may have more difficulty in protecting your interests than would shareholders of a corporation incorporated in a jurisdiction in the U.S., due to the different nature of Cayman Islands law in this area.

Shareholders of Cayman Islands exempted companies such as our company have no general rights under Cayman Islands law to inspect corporate records and accounts or to obtain copies of lists of shareholders. Our directors have discretion under our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association to determine whether or not, and under what conditions, our corporate records may be inspected by our shareholders, but are not obliged to make them available to our shareholders. This may make it more difficult for you to obtain the information needed to establish any facts necessary for a shareholder motion or to solicit proxies from other shareholders in connection with a proxy contest.

Our Cayman Islands counsel, Maples and Calder, is not aware of any reported class action having been brought in a Cayman Islands court. Derivative actions have been brought in the Cayman Islands courts, and the Cayman Islands courts have confirmed the availability for such actions. In most cases, the company will be the proper plaintiff in any claim based on a breach of duty owed to it, and a claim against (for example) the company's officers or directors usually may not be brought by a shareholder. However, based on English authorities, which would in all likelihood be of persuasive authority and be applied by a court in the Cayman Islands, exceptions to the foregoing principle apply in circumstances in which:

- a company is acting, or proposing to act, illegally or beyond the scope of its authority;
- the act complained of, although not beyond the scope of the authority, could be effected if duly authorized by more than the number of votes which have actually been obtained; or
- those who control the company are perpetrating a "fraud on the minority."

A shareholder may have a direct right of action against the company where the individual rights of that shareholder have been infringed or are about to be infringed.

There is uncertainty as to shareholders' ability to enforce certain foreign civil liabilities in the Cayman Islands.

We are incorporated as an exempted company limited by shares with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands. A material portion of our assets are located outside of the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for our shareholders to enforce judgments against us or judgments obtained in U.S. courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States or any state of the United States.

We have been advised by our Cayman Islands legal counsel, Maples and Calder, that the courts of the Cayman Islands are unlikely (i) to recognize or enforce against Theravance Biopharma judgments of courts of the United States predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any State; and (ii) in original actions brought in the Cayman Islands, to impose liabilities against Theravance Biopharma predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any State, on the grounds that such provisions are penal in nature. However, in the case of laws that are not penal in nature, although there is no statutory enforcement in the Cayman Islands of judgments obtained in the United States, the courts of the Cayman Islands will recognize and enforce a foreign money judgment of a foreign court of competent jurisdiction

without retrial on the merits based on the principle that a judgment of a competent foreign court imposes upon the judgment debtor an obligation to pay the sum for which judgment has been given provided certain conditions are met. For a foreign judgment to be enforced in the Cayman Islands, such judgment must be final and conclusive and for a liquidated sum, and must not be in respect of taxes or a fine or penalty, inconsistent with a Cayman Islands' judgment in respect of the same matter, impeachable on the grounds of fraud or obtained in a manner, and or be of a kind the enforcement of which is, contrary to natural justice or the public policy of the Cayman Islands (awards of punitive or multiple damages may well be held to be contrary to public policy). A Cayman Islands' court may stay enforcement proceedings if concurrent proceedings are being brought elsewhere, which would delay proceedings and make it more difficult for our shareholders to bring action against us.

THE OFFER

1. Eligibility.

You are an "eligible option holder" if you are an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group that works in an eligible country as of the start of this offer and remain an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country through the expiration of the offer and the restricted share unit grant date and hold eligible options. For this purpose, an employee on an international assignment within the Theravance Biopharma Group will be considered to be working in the employee's home country and not in the country of the international assignment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, our executive officers, other members of our senior leadership group, members of our board of directors, and consultants are not eligible option holders and may not participate in the offer.

To receive a grant of restricted share units, you must remain an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group or a successor entity in an eligible country through the restricted share unit grant date, which will be the same U.S. calendar day as the cancellation date. If you do not remain an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group or a successor entity in an eligible country through the restricted share unit grant date, you will keep your current eligible options and they will vest and expire in accordance with their terms. If we do not extend the offer, the restricted share unit grant date will be September 25, 2015. Except as provided by applicable law and/or any employment or service agreement between you and the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country, your employment or service with the Theravance Biopharma Group will remain "at-will" and can be terminated by you or the Theravance Biopharma Group at any time, with or without cause or notice. In order to vest in your restricted share units and receive the shares subject to the new award, you must remain an employee or service provider of the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant vesting date. If your service with the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant vesting date. If your service with the Theravance Biopharma Group terminates before your restricted share units vest (other than due to certain terminations following a change in control of Theravance Biopharma), your unvested restricted share units will expire and you will not be issued any additional ordinary shares pursuant to your restricted share unit award.

2. Number of awards; expiration date.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this offer, we will accept for exchange options granted under the Plans that were granted before August 4, 2015, are held by eligible option holders, are outstanding and unexercised as of the expiration date of the offer, that are properly elected to be exchanged, and are not validly withdrawn, before the expiration date of the offer. However, options will not be eligible options (and any election with regard to such options will be disregarded) if, on the expiration date of the offer, the exercise price of the option is equal to or less than the closing price of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares on the expiration date.

Participation in this offer is completely voluntary. You may decide which of your eligible option grants you wish to exchange. If you hold more than one eligible option grant, you may choose to exchange one or more of such eligible option grants without having to exchange all of your eligible option grants. If you elect to participate in this offer, you must exchange all of the shares subject to any particular eligible option grant that you choose to exchange. Except for options that are subject to a domestic relations order (or comparable legal document resulting from the end of a marriage), we are not accepting elections of partial amounts of eligible option grants. If you elect to participate in this offer with respect to any partially exercised eligible option grant, you must exchange the entire remaining portion of such eligible option grant.

For example (and except as otherwise described below), if you hold (1) an eligible option grant to purchase 1,000 shares, 500 of which you have already exercised, (2) an eligible option grant to purchase 1,000 shares, and (3) an eligible option grant to purchase 3,000 shares, you may choose to exchange all three eligible option grants, or only two of the three eligible option grants, or only one of the three eligible option grants, or none at all. You may not elect to exchange a partial amount under any eligible option grant (such as an election to exchange only 150 shares of the remaining 500 shares under the first eligible option grant).

However, this rule will not apply to the portion of any eligible option grant that is subject to a domestic relations order (or comparable legal document resulting from the end of a marriage) and which is beneficially owned by a person who is not an employee of the Theravance Biopharma Group in an eligible country. Any such portion of an otherwise eligible option grant may not be exchanged in this offer (even if title to that portion of the award is held by you and you are an eligible option holder). The portion beneficially owned by the eligible option holder may be exchanged in the offer, but such portion must be exchanged for all remaining shares. For instance, if the award to purchase 3,000 shares in the example above is subject to a domestic relations order, 1,000 of which are beneficially owned by your former spouse, and you have exercised 500 of the remaining 2,000 shares, then you may elect to participate in the offer and exchange the portion of the eligible option grant that you beneficially own covering 1,500 shares.



Exchange Ratio

Subject to the terms of this offer and upon our acceptance of your options properly elected for exchange, your exchanged options will be cancelled and you will receive one (1) restricted share unit for every two (2) shares subject to your exchanged options. For example, if you are an eligible option holder and you exchange an eligible option grant for 1,000 shares, you will receive 500 restricted share units on the restricted share unit grant date. The one (1) restricted share unit for every two (2) shares subject to your exchange ratio applies to each of your eligible option grants separately, and any fractional restricted share units will be rounded down to the nearest whole restricted share unit on a grant by grant basis.

All restricted share units will be subject to the terms of the restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix, if applicable) between you and Theravance Biopharma and the 2013 Plan. The current forms of the restricted share unit agreement for non-executive officers are filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO with which this Offer to Exchange has been filed and are available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov.

The expiration date for this offer will be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, unless we extend the offer. We may, in our discretion, extend the offer, in which event the expiration date will refer to the latest time and date at which the extended offer expires. See "Section 15; Extension of offer; termination; amendment" for a description of our rights to extend, terminate and amend the offer.

3. Purposes of the offer.

The primary purpose of this offer is to restore the intended retention and incentive value of certain of our equity awards. We believe this offer will foster retention of our valuable option holders. We issued the currently outstanding options to attract and retain the best available talent and to provide additional incentives to our employees. The market price of our shares has declined significantly and will also be subject to ongoing market volatility. As a result of these factors, a significant number of our options have exercise prices that are significantly higher than the current market price for our shares. These awards are commonly referred to as being "underwater." The restricted share units may have greater retention value than the exchanged options and therefore benefit Theravance Biopharma in its efforts to retain valuable employees.

The offer also will have the added benefit of reducing the number of options outstanding under our Plans.

Except as otherwise disclosed in this offer or in our SEC filings, we presently have no plans, proposals, or negotiations that relate to or would result in:

- Any extraordinary transaction, such as a merger, reorganization or liquidation, involving Theravance Biopharma;
- Any purchase, sale or transfer of a material amount of our assets;
- Any material change in our present dividend rate or policy, or our indebtedness or capitalization;
- Any change in our present board of directors or management, including, but not limited to, any plans or proposals to change the number or term of
 directors or to change any executive officer's material terms of employment;
- Any other material change in our corporate structure or business;
- Our ordinary shares being delisted from the Nasdaq Global Market or not being authorized for quotation in an automated quotation system operated by a national securities association;

- Our ordinary shares becoming eligible for termination of registration pursuant to Section 12(g)(4) of the Exchange Act;
- The suspension of our obligation to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;
- The acquisition by any person of an additional amount of our securities or the disposition of an amount of any of our securities, other than as contemplated by the terms of that certain Governance Agreement by and between Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, dated March 3, 2014, incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit 10.26 to Amendment No. 4 to the Company's Form 10, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2014; or
- Any change in our certificate of incorporation or bylaws, or any actions that may impede the acquisition of control of us by any person.

In the ordinary course of business, from time to time, Theravance Biopharma evaluates out-licensing, acquisition or investment opportunities. At the present time, we are reviewing a number of opportunities. These transactions may be announced or completed in the ordinary course of business during the pendency of this offer, but there can be no assurance that an opportunity will be available to us or that we will choose to take advantage of an opportunity.

In the ordinary course of business, Theravance Biopharma makes changes in the composition and structure of its board of directors and/or management. Theravance Biopharma expects that it will continue to make changes in this regard.

Neither we nor our board of directors makes any recommendation as to whether you should accept this offer, nor have we authorized any person to make any such recommendation. You should evaluate carefully all of the information in this offer and consult your investment and tax advisors. You must make your own decision about whether to participate in this offer.

4. Procedures for electing to exchange options.

Proper election to exchange options.

Participation in this offer is voluntary. You may elect to participate in one of two ways: (i) through the offer website, or (ii) by sending your election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service).

Electing Through the Offer Website:

- 1. To access the offer website, go to www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. On the welcome page of the website, you may access various documents that provide further details about the offer. Select the "Continue" button to log in to the site.
- To log in to the site, enter your Theravance Biopharma e-mail address and your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received in the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com on August 28, 2015 and select the "Continue" button. If you do not know your PIN, you may select the "Forgot Your PIN" link or contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.).
- 3. You will be directed to the Option Exchange Election Form where you can view your eligible options and access the option exchange analysis tool, which will enable you to enter hypothetical future share prices and see the share price's effect on the potential future values of your eligible options or restricted share units.
- 4. To make your election, indicate the eligible options that you would like to exchange by selecting "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" next to the eligible option grants.
- 5. Click on the "Submit" button to finalize your elections.
- 6. After you submit your election, you will be directed to the "Election Confirmation" page. Print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records.



Your election must be received by Computershare on or before the expiration date, currently expected to be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

Electing via Mail or Delivery Service:

If you choose not to utilize the offer website acceptance process, you may submit your election by sending your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address provided below. You do not need to submit an election by mail or delivery service if you accept the offer via the offer website. To send your election by mail or delivery service, you must do the following on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015:

- 1. Properly complete and sign the attached election form.
- 2. Send the completed and signed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

If you submit your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), Computershare must receive the completed election form on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015.

Elections by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity may not be submitted via the offer website and may be submitted only by mail or delivery service. Please see the election form for further details.

General Information:

If you participate in this offer, you can decide which of your eligible option grants you wish to exchange. Please note that if you elect to exchange an eligible option grant in this offer, you must elect to exchange all shares subject to such eligible option grant. If you hold more than one eligible option grant, however, you may choose to exchange one or more of your eligible option grants without having to exchange all of your eligible option grants. To help you recall your outstanding eligible options and give you the information necessary to make an informed decision, please refer to the grant information available on the offer website at the website address: www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange, which lists your eligible option grants, the grant date of your eligible option grants, the number of vested and unvested shares subject to your eligible option grants, the exercise price of your eligible option grants, the applicable exchange ratio, the number of restricted share units you will receive if you exchange your eligible option grants for restricted share units pursuant to the terms of the offer, and the vesting schedule of your restricted share units if you participate in the offer.

The offer website also contains a tool prepared by Computershare, called the "option exchange analysis tool," which allows eligible option holders to enter hypothetical information regarding our future share price and see the share price's effect on the potential future values of your eligible options or restricted share units. Note that this tool will not calculate actual value of eligible options or restricted share units, as the tool depends on your estimate of the future value of our shares and does not take into account all relevant factors that may affect the actual value of your eligible options or restricted share units, such as taxes, vesting, etc. Further, the future value of our ordinary shares is unknown, indeterminable and cannot be predicted with certainty. The option exchange analysis tool is being provided to you solely for your convenience, by providing limited mathematical simulations of the potential value that could be received from exchanging your eligible options for restricted share units. The option exchange analysis tool does not take into account all of the factors that you should consider in deciding whether to participate in the offer. The option exchange analysis tool is only an aid and does not in any way change or supplement the terms of the Offer to Exchange, nor does it constitute a recommendation as to whether you should or should not participate in the offer.



Your election to participate becomes irrevocable after 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 unless the offer is extended past that time, in which case your election will become irrevocable after the new expiration date. The exception to this rule is that if we have not accepted your options properly elected for exchange by 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, you may withdraw your options at any time thereafter. You may change your mind after you have submitted an election form and withdraw from the offer at any time before the expiration date, as described in "Section 5; Withdrawal rights and change of election." You may change your mind as many times as you wish, but you will be bound by the last properly submitted election and/or withdrawal Computershare receives before the expiration date.

You also may change your mind about which of your eligible option grants you wish to have exchanged. If you wish to add additional eligible option grants to your election, you must complete and submit a new election before the expiration date by following the procedures described above and you must list all of the eligible option grants you wish to exchange. If you are submitting your election via the offer website, the new election must be properly completed and submitted after your prior election and after any withdrawal you have submitted. If you are submitting your new election by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), the new election must be properly completed, signed and dated after your prior election and after any withdrawal you have submitted and must list all eligible option grants you wish to exchange. Any prior elections will be disregarded. If, instead, you wish to withdraw some or all of the eligible options you elected for exchange, you may do so at any time before the expiration date by following the procedures described in "Section 5; Withdrawal rights and change of election."

The delivery of all documents, including elections and withdrawals, is at your risk. Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by the deadline will be accepted. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Computershare intends to confirm the receipt of your election and/or any withdrawal via an e-mail generated from the offer website within two (2) U.S. business days if your election or withdrawal was received by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Please note that if you submit an election or withdrawal form via mail or delivery service within the last two (2) U.S. business days prior to the expiration of the offer, time constraints may prevent Computershare from providing a confirmation by e-mail prior to the expiration of the offer. Confirmation statements for submissions through the offer website may be obtained by printing the "Election Confirmation" page after submitting your election or withdrawal; you should print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records. If you have not received a confirmation, it is your responsibility to confirm that Computershare has received your election and/or any withdrawal. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.

This is a one-time offer, and we will strictly enforce the offering period. We reserve the right to reject any options elected for exchange that we determine are not in appropriate form or that we determine are unlawful to accept.

Computershare's receipt of your election form is not by itself an acceptance of your options for exchange. For purposes of this offer, we will be deemed to have accepted options for exchange that are validly elected to be exchanged and are not properly withdrawn as of the time when we give oral or written notice to the option holders generally of our acceptance of options for exchange. We may issue this notice of acceptance by press release, e-mail or other form of communication. Awards accepted for exchange will be cancelled on the cancellation date, which we presently expect will be September 25, 2015.

Determination of validity; rejection of options; waiver of defects; no obligation to give notice of defects.

We will determine, in our discretion, all questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance of any options. Our determination of these matters will be given the maximum deference permitted by law. However, you have all rights accorded to you under applicable law to challenge such determination in a court of competent jurisdiction. Only a court of competent jurisdiction can make a determination that will be final and binding upon the parties. We reserve the right to reject any election form or any options elected to be exchanged that we determine are not in appropriate form or that we determine are unlawful to accept. We will accept all options properly elected for exchange that are not validly withdrawn. We also reserve the right to waive any of the conditions of the offer or any defect or irregularity in any election to exchange any particular options or for any particular option holder, provided that if we grant any such waiver, it will be granted with respect to all option holders and options. No election to exchange options will be deemed to have been properly made until all defects or irregularities have been cured by the eligible option holder or waived by us. Neither we nor any other person (including Computershare) is obligated to give notice of any defects or irregularities in elections, nor will anyone incur any liability for failure to give any notice. This is a one-time offer. We will strictly enforce the offering period, subject only to an extension that we may grant in our discretion.

Our acceptance constitutes an agreement.

Your election to exchange options through the procedures described above constitutes your acceptance of the terms and conditions of this offer. Our acceptance of your options for exchange will constitute a binding agreement between Theravance Biopharma and you upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this offer.

5. Withdrawal rights and change of election.

You may withdraw some or all of the options that you previously elected to exchange only in accordance with the provisions of this section.

You may withdraw some or all of the options that you previously elected to exchange at any time before the expiration of the offer, which is expected to occur at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015. If we extend the offer, you may withdraw your options at any time until the extended expiration date. In addition, although we intend to accept all options validly elected for exchange promptly after the expiration of this offer, if we have not accepted your options by 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, you may withdraw your options at any time thereafter.

To withdraw some or all of the options that you previously elected to exchange, you must deliver a valid withdrawal for the eligible option grants you wish to withdraw from the offer while you still have the right to withdraw the options. You may withdraw your eligible options in two ways: (i) through the offer website, or (ii) by sending your withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Any withdrawals must be made on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015.

Withdrawal Through the Offer Website:

- 1. Go to www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange and log in to the site by entering your Theravance Biopharma e-mail address and your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received in the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com on August 28, 2015. If you do not know your PIN, you may select the "Forgot Your PIN" button or contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.).
- 2. If you have already made an election with respect to your eligible options, you will be directed to the "Election Summary" page which summarizes your prior election.
- 3. To make your withdrawal election, select the "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" buttons next to the eligible option grants.
- 4. Click on the "Submit" button to finalize your elections.
- 5. After you submit your withdrawal, you will be directed to the "Election Confirmation" page. Print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records.

Your withdrawal must be received by Computershare on or before the expiration date, currently expected to be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

Withdrawal via Mail or Delivery Service:

If you choose not to utilize the offer website, you may submit your withdrawal by sending your withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address provided below. You do not need to submit your withdrawal by mail or delivery service if you already have done so via the offer website. To send your withdrawal by mail or delivery service, you must do the following before the expiration date:

- 1. Properly complete and sign the attached withdrawal form.
- 2. Send the completed and signed withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

If you submit your completed withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), Computershare must receive the completed withdrawal form on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the offer's expiration date.

Withdrawals by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity may not be submitted via the offer website and may be submitted only by mail or delivery service. Please see the withdrawal form for further details.

General Information:

You may change your mind as many times as you wish, but you will be bound by the last properly submitted election and/or withdrawal Computershare receives before the expiration date. Any eligible option grants that you do not withdraw will be bound pursuant to your prior election form.

If you withdraw some or all of your eligible options, you may elect to exchange the withdrawn options again at any time before the expiration date. All options that you withdraw will be deemed not properly elected for purposes of the offer, unless you properly re-elect to exchange such eligible options before the expiration date. To re-elect to exchange some or all of your eligible options, you must submit a new election to Computershare before the expiration date by following the procedures described in "Section 4; Procedures for electing to exchange options." This new election form must be properly completed, signed and dated after your original election form and after your withdrawal form and must list all eligible option grants you wish to exchange, if delivered via mail or delivery service. Elections via the offer website must be submitted after the date of your prior withdrawal. Any prior election will be disregarded.

Neither we nor any other person (including Computershare) is obligated to give you notice of any defects or irregularities in any withdrawal form or any new election form, nor will anyone incur any liability for failure to give any notice. We will determine, in our discretion, all questions as to the form and validity, including time of receipt, of withdrawal forms and new election forms. Our determination of these matters will be given the maximum deference permitted by law. However, you have all rights accorded to you under applicable law to challenge such determination in a court of competent jurisdiction. Only a court of competent jurisdiction can make a determination that will be final and binding upon the parties.

The delivery of all documents, including elections and withdrawals, is at your risk. Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by the deadline will be accepted. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Computershare intends to confirm the receipt of your election and/or any withdrawal via an e-mail generated from the offer website within two (2) U.S. business days if your election or withdrawal was received by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Please note that if you submit an election or withdrawal form via mail or delivery service within the last two (2) U.S. business days prior to the expiration of the offer, time constraints may prevent Computershare from providing a confirmation by e-mail prior to the expiration of the offer. Confirmation statements for submissions through the offer website may be obtained by printing the "Election Confirmation" page after submitting your election or withdrawal; you should print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records. If you have not received a confirmation, it is your responsibility to confirm that Computershare has received your election and/or any withdrawal. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.



6. Acceptance of options for exchange and issuance of restricted share units.

Upon the terms and conditions of this offer and promptly following the expiration date, we will accept for exchange and cancel all eligible options properly elected for exchange and not validly withdrawn before the expiration date. Once the options are cancelled, you no longer will have any rights with respect to those options. Subject to the terms and conditions of this offer, if your eligible options are properly elected by you for exchange and accepted by us, these options will be cancelled and terminated as of the cancellation date, which we anticipate to be September 25, 2015.

Subject to our rights to terminate the offer, discussed in "Section 15; Extension of offer; termination; amendment," we will accept promptly after the expiration date all options that are properly elected for exchange and are not validly withdrawn. We will give oral or written notice to the eligible option holders generally of our acceptance for exchange of the options. This notice may be made by press release, e-mail or other method of communication.

We will grant the restricted share units on the restricted share unit grant date, which is the same U.S. calendar day as the cancellation date. We expect the restricted share unit grant date to be September 25, 2015. All restricted share units will be granted under the 2013 Plan, and will be subject to a restricted share unit agreement between you and Theravance Biopharma. The number of restricted share units you will receive will be half the number of exchanged options as described in "Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date." Shortly following the expiration date, we will send you your restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix, if applicable). You must accept your restricted share unit agreement in order to receive your restricted share units by doing the following:

- Go to E*TRADE.com and log in to your TBPH Stock Plan account.
- Select "Accounts," "My Stock Plan," "Plan Elections" to view your restricted share unit award(s) dated September 25, 2015.
- Under the "Status" column, click on the "Requires Acceptance" link to view and read the restricted share unit agreement (including any countryspecific appendix) and the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan-Summary & Prospectus for each restricted share unit award.
- Read the entire restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) and the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan-Summary & Prospectus and then click the "Accept" button for each restricted share unit award.

You will receive the shares subject to the restricted share units when and if your restricted share units vest, in accordance with the vesting schedule described in "Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units."

Options that we do not accept for exchange will remain outstanding until they expire by their terms and will retain their current exercise price and vesting schedule.

7. Conditions of the offer.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this offer, we will not be required to accept any options elected for exchange, and we may terminate the offer, or postpone our acceptance and cancellation of any options elected for exchange, in each case, subject to Rule 13e-4(f)(5) under the Exchange Act, if at any time on or after the date this offer begins, and before the expiration date, any of the following events has occurred, or has been determined by us, in our reasonable judgment, to have occurred:

- There will have been threatened in writing or instituted or be pending any action, proceeding or litigation seeking to enjoin, make illegal or delay completion of the offer or otherwise relating in any manner, to the offer;
- Any order, stay, judgment or decree is issued by any court, government, governmental authority or other regulatory or administrative authority and
 is in effect, or any statute, rule, regulation, governmental order or injunction will have been proposed, enacted, enforced or deemed applicable to the
 offer, any of which might restrain, prohibit or delay completion of the offer or impair the contemplated benefits of the offer to us (see Section 3;
 Purposes of the offer for a description of the contemplated benefits of the offer to us);

- There will have occurred:
 - any general suspension of trading in, or limitation on prices for, our securities on any national securities exchange or in an over-the-counter market in the U.S.,
 - the declaration of a banking moratorium or any suspension of payments in respect of banks in the U.S.,
 - any limitation, whether or not mandatory, by any governmental, regulatory or administrative agency or authority on, or any event that, in our reasonable judgment, might affect the extension of credit to us by banks or other lending institutions in the United States,
 - in our reasonable judgment, any extraordinary or material adverse change in U.S. financial markets generally,
 - the commencement, continuation, or escalation of a war or other national or international calamity directly or indirectly involving the U.S., which reasonably could be expected to affect materially or adversely, or to delay materially, the completion of the offer, or
 - if any of the situations described above existed at the time of commencement of the offer and that situation, in our reasonable judgment, deteriorates materially after commencement of the offer;
- A tender or exchange offer, other than this offer by us, for some or all of our outstanding ordinary shares, or a merger, acquisition or other business combination proposal involving us, will have been proposed, announced or made by another person or entity or will have been disclosed publicly or we will have learned that:
 - any person, entity or "group" within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act acquires more than 5% of our outstanding ordinary shares, other than a person, entity or group which had publicly disclosed such ownership with the SEC prior to the date of commencement of the offer,
 - any such person, entity or group which had publicly disclosed such ownership prior to such date will acquire additional ordinary shares constituting more than 1% of our outstanding shares, or
 - any new group will have been formed that beneficially owns more than 5% of our outstanding ordinary shares that in our judgment in any such case, and regardless of the circumstances, makes it inadvisable to proceed with the offer or with such acceptance for exchange of eligible awards;
- There will have occurred any change, development, clarification or position taken in generally accepted accounting principles that could or would require us to record for financial reporting purposes compensation expense against our earnings in connection with the offer, other than as contemplated as of the commencement date of this offer (as described in Section 12; Status of options acquired by us in the offer; accounting consequences of the offer);
- Any event or events occur that have resulted or is reasonably likely to result, in our reasonable judgment, in a material adverse change in our business or financial condition;
- Any event or events occur that have resulted or may result, in our reasonable judgment, in a material impairment of the contemplated benefits of the offer to us (see Section 3; Purposes of the offer for a description of the contemplated benefits of the offer to us); or
- Any rules or regulations by any governmental authority, the Nasdaq Global Market, or other regulatory or administrative authority or any national
 securities exchange have been enacted, enforced, or deemed applicable to Theravance Biopharma that will or are likely to result in a material
 impairment of the contemplated benefits of the offer to us (see Section 3; Purposes of the offer for a description of the contemplated benefits of the
 offer to us).

If any of the above events occur, we may:

- Terminate the offer and promptly return all eligible options properly elected for exchange to the holders of such options;
- Complete and/or extend the offer and, subject to your withdrawal rights, retain all eligible options elected for exchange until the extended offer expires;
- Amend the terms of the offer; or
- Waive any unsatisfied condition and, subject to any requirement to extend the period of time during which the offer is open, complete the offer.

The conditions to this offer are for our benefit. We may assert them in our discretion regardless of the circumstances giving rise to them before the expiration date. We may waive any condition, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time before the expiration date, in our discretion, whether or not we waive any other condition to the offer. Our failure at any time to exercise any of these rights will not be deemed a waiver of any such rights, but will be deemed a waiver of our ability to assert the condition that was triggered with respect to the particular circumstances under which we failed to exercise our rights. Any determination we make concerning the events described in this "Section 7; Conditions of the offer" will be given the maximum deference permitted by law. However, you have all rights accorded to you under applicable law to challenge such determination in a court of competent jurisdiction. Only a court of competent jurisdiction that will be final and binding upon the parties.

8. Price range of shares underlying the options.

The Theravance Biopharma ordinary shares that underlie your options are traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol "TBPH." The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low intraday sales price per share of our ordinary shares as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market.

	J	High		Low	
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015				<u>.</u>	
1 st Quarter	\$	22.00	\$	14.59	
2nd Quarter	\$	18.92	\$	12.52	
3rd Quarter (through August 27, 2015)	\$	11.36	\$	14.24	
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014					
1 st Quarter		n/a		n/a	
2nd Quarter	\$	35.675	\$	14.75	
3rd Quarter	\$	34.07	\$	23.01	
4th Quarter	\$	24.06	\$	13.11	

On August 27, 2015, the closing price of our ordinary shares, as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market, was \$13.74 per share.

You should evaluate current market quotes for our ordinary shares, among other factors, before deciding whether or not to accept this offer.

9. Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units.

We will issue restricted share units in exchange for eligible options properly elected to be exchanged by you and accepted by us for such exchange. Restricted share units are equity awards under which Theravance Biopharma promises to issue ordinary shares in the future, provided the vesting criteria are satisfied. Subject to the terms and conditions of this offer, upon our acceptance of your options that are properly elected for exchange, you will be entitled to receive one restricted share unit for each two shares subject to your exchanged options as described in "Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date." Fractional restricted share units will be rounded down to the nearest whole restricted share unit on a grant by grant basis and you will not receive any payment for fractional restricted share units that are rounded down. You do not have to make any cash payment to Theravance Biopharma to receive your restricted share units or the ordinary shares upon vesting.



If Computershare receives and we accept elections to exchange from eligible option holders of all options eligible to be exchanged (a total of options to purchase 2,262,221 shares) subject to the terms and conditions of this offer, we will grant restricted share units covering a total of approximately 1,131,000 ordinary shares, or approximately 3.3% of the total ordinary shares outstanding as of August 27, 2015.

General terms of restricted share units.

Restricted share units will be granted under our 2013 Plan, and subject to a restricted share unit agreement (including any country-specific appendix) between you and Theravance Biopharma. Restricted share units are a different type of equity award from options and therefore, the terms and conditions of the restricted share units will vary from the terms and conditions of the options that you elected for exchange. The current forms of the restricted share unit agreement are filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO with which this Offer to Exchange has been filed and are available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. However, you should note that the vesting schedule of your restricted share units will differ from your exchanged options, as described below.

The following description summarizes the material terms of the 2013 Plan. Our statements in this Offer to Exchange concerning the 2013 Plan and the restricted share units are merely summaries and do not purport to be complete. The statements are subject to, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, the 2013 Plan and the current forms of the restricted share unit agreement under the 2013 Plan, which are available on the SEC website at www.sec.gov. The current forms of the restricted share unit agreement are filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO with which this Offer to Exchange has been filed. Please contact Computershare to receive a copy of the 2013 Plan, and the current forms of the restricted share unit agreements. Computershare will promptly furnish to you copies of these documents upon request at our expense. For copies of the documents, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S.) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., five days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time.

2013 Equity Incentive Plan.

The 2013 Plan provides for the grant of options to purchase ordinary shares (including both incentive options described in Section 422 of the Code and options not described in Section 422 of the Code), restricted share awards, share unit awards and share appreciation rights (collectively, "share awards"), as well as performance cash awards. The number of ordinary shares subject to options outstanding as of August 3, 2015 under the 2013 Plan was 3,641,174 shares. The 2013 Plan is administered by our board of directors or a committee appointed by our board of directors, which we refer to as the "Administrator." Subject to the other provisions of the 2013 Plan, the Administrator has the power to determine the terms, conditions and restrictions of the restricted share units granted, including the number of restricted share units and the vesting criteria.

Purchase price.

The Administrator of the 2013 Plan generally has the authority to determine the terms and conditions of awards granted under the 2013 Plan. Restricted share units granted under the 2013 Plan do not have a purchase price. As a result, you do not have to make any cash payment to Theravance Biopharma to receive your restricted share units or the ordinary shares upon vesting.

Vesting.

The vesting applicable to restricted share units granted under the 2013 Plan generally is determined by the Administrator in accordance with the terms of the 2013 Plan. The restricted share units granted pursuant to this offer will be subject to a set vesting schedule, subject to you continuing to be an employee or other service provider of the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant Company Vesting Date. None of the restricted share units will be vested on the restricted share unit grant date. Our "Company Vesting Dates" are February 20th, May 20th, August 20th and November 20th of each year. The vesting schedule of the restricted share units will be determined on a grant-by-grant basis, based on the date the exchanged options were granted as described below:

- *Eligible Options Granted Prior to January 1, 2015:* 1/12th of the restricted share units will vest on the first Company Vesting Date following the restricted share unit grant date and an additional 1/12th of the restricted share units will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter.
- *Eligible Options Granted On or After January 1, 2015:* 1/16th of the restricted share units will vest on the first Company Vesting Date following the restricted share unit grant date and an additional 1/16th of the restricted share units will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter.

We expect the restricted share unit grant date will be September 25, 2015, in which case the first Company Vesting Date would be November 20, 2015. Vesting of your restricted share units is subject to the following conditions:

- Vesting on any given Company Vesting Date is subject to your continued service with the Theravance Biopharma Group through such Company Vesting Date. If your service with the Theravance Biopharma Group terminates (except in certain circumstances following a change in control of Theravance Biopharma) before your restricted share units vest, your unvested restricted share units will expire and you will not be issued any additional ordinary shares pursuant to the unvested portions of your restricted share unit award. (See Section 1; Eligibility)
- After the restricted share units vest, continued service with the Theravance Biopharma Group is not required to retain the ordinary shares issued under the restricted share units.
- We will make minor modifications to the vesting schedule of any restricted share units to eliminate fractional vesting (such that a whole number of restricted share units will vest on each vesting date). (See Section 9; Source and amount of consideration; terms of restricted share units)

Example 1 (Eligible Option Granted Prior to January 1, 2015):

Assume that an eligible option holder elects to exchange an eligible option grant covering 1,920 shares with an exercise price of \$23.00 per share that was granted prior to January 1, 2015. Assume that on September 25, 2015 (the expected expiration date of the offer), the eligible option holder surrenders the eligible option grant and, in accordance with the exchange ratio listed in "Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date" above, receives 960 restricted share units. Subject to the eligible option holder continuing to provide service to the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant date, the vesting schedule of the restricted share units will be as follows:

Vesting Schedule

Zero (0) shares will be vested as of September 25, 2015.

Eighty (80) shares (or 1/12th of the restricted share units) will vest on November 20, 2015 (the first Company Vesting Date after the restricted share unit grant date).

Eighty (80) shares (or 1/12th of the restricted share units) will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter until the restricted share units become fully vested on August 20, 2018.

Vesting of the restricted share units is subject to the eligible option holder continuing to provide services to the Theravance Biopharma Group through each such respective vesting date.

Example 2 (Eligible Option Granted On or After January 1, 2015):

Assume that an eligible option holder elects to exchange an eligible option grant covering 1,920 shares with an exercise price of \$15 per share that was granted on or after January 1,2015. Assume that on September 25,2015 (the expected expiration date of the offer), the eligible option holder surrenders the eligible option grant and, in accordance with the exchange ratio listed in "Section 2; Number of awards; expiration date" above, receives 960 restricted share units. Subject to the eligible option holder continuing to provide service to the Theravance Biopharma Group through each relevant date, the vesting schedule of the restricted share units will be as follows:



Vesting Schedule

Zero (0) shares will be vested as of September 25, 2015.

Sixty (60) shares (or 1/16th of the restricted share units) will vest on November 20, 2015 (the first Company Vesting Date after the restricted share unit grant date).

Sixty (60) shares (or 1/16th of the restricted share units) will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter until the restricted share units become fully vested on August 20, 2019.

Vesting of the restricted share units is subject to the eligible option holder continuing to provide services to the Theravance Biopharma Group through each respective vesting date.

Restricted share units that do not vest will be forfeited to Theravance Biopharma.

Form of payout.

Restricted share units granted under this offer and subsequently earned by a recipient will be paid out in our ordinary shares. The Company will satisfy all tax withholding obligations in the manner specified in your restricted share unit agreement.

Adjustments upon certain events.

Events Occurring Before the Restricted Share Unit Grant Date. Although we are not anticipating a merger or acquisition, if we merge or consolidate with or are acquired by another entity, prior to the expiration of the offer, you may choose to withdraw any options which you elected for exchange and your options will be treated in accordance with the applicable Plan and award agreement under which they were granted. Further, if Theravance Biopharma is acquired prior to the expiration of the offer, we reserve the right to withdraw the offer, in which case your options and your rights under them will remain intact and exercisable for the time period set forth in your option agreement and you will receive no restricted share units in exchange for them. If Theravance Biopharma is acquired prior to the expiration of the offer but does not withdraw the offer, we (or the successor entity) will notify you of any material changes to the terms of the offer or the new restricted share units, including any adjustments to the options if they are not exchanged and to the number of shares that will be subject to the restricted share units. Under such circumstances, the type of security and the number of shares covered by your restricted share unit award would be adjusted based on the consideration per share given to holders of our ordinary shares in connection with the acquisition. As a result of this adjustment, you may receive restricted share units covering more or fewer shares of the acquiror's ordinary shares than the number of shares subject to the eligible options that you elected for exchange or than the number you would have received pursuant to the restricted share units if no acquisition had occurred.

A transaction involving us, such as a merger or other acquisition, could have a substantial effect on our share price, including significantly increasing the price of our ordinary shares. Depending on the structure and terms of this type of transaction, eligible option holders who elect to participate in the offer might be deprived of the benefit of the appreciation in the price of our ordinary shares resulting from the merger or acquisition. This could result in a greater financial benefit for those eligible option holders who did not participate in this offer and retained their original options.

Finally, if another company acquires us, that company, as part of the transaction or otherwise, may decide to terminate some or all of our service providers before the completion of this option exchange program. Termination of your service for this or any other reason before the restricted share unit grant date means that the election to exchange eligible options will not be accepted, you will keep your eligible options in accordance with their original terms, and you will not receive any restricted share units or other benefit for your eligible options.

Events Occurring After the Restricted Share Unit Grant Date. In the event there is a share split, a dividend payable in ordinary shares, or a combination or consolidation of the outstanding ordinary shares (by reclassification or otherwise) into a lesser number of ordinary shares, adjustments will automatically be made to the number and kind of shares reserved for issuance under the 2013 Plan and the number and kind of shares and exercise prices, if applicable, of outstanding share awards. In the event of an extraordinary dividend, a recapitalization, a spin-off or similar occurrence, the Administrator shall, in its sole discretion, make one or more of the foregoing adjustments as it deems appropriate.

In the event we are party to a merger, consolidation or change in control transaction, all outstanding share awards will be governed by the terms of the definitive transaction agreement (or, in the event the transaction does not entail a definitive agreement to which we are party, in the manner determined by the Administrator). Such treatment may include any of the following actions with respect to each outstanding share award:

- The continuation, assumption or substitution of a share award by the surviving entity or its parent;
- Full acceleration of the vesting of a share award followed by its termination prior to closing of the transaction; or
- The cancellation of a share award in exchange for a payment equal to the excess, if any, of (a) the value that the holder of an ordinary share receives in the transaction over (b) if applicable, the exercise price otherwise payable in connection with the share award; provided that such payment may be subject to the award holder's continued service on a basis no less favorable than the schedule under which the share award would have originally vested.

Unless the Administrator provides otherwise in an award agreement, in the event of a change in control, each outstanding share award under the 2013 Plan will, immediately prior to the effective date of the change in control, become fully vested and exercisable for all of the ordinary shares at the time subject to such share award. However, an outstanding share award will not accelerate vesting if, and to the extent such share award is, in connection with the change in control, either assumed by the successor corporation (or parent) or replaced with a comparable award from the successor corporation (or its parent). The Administrator also has the discretion to accelerate the vesting of outstanding share awards whether or not upon a change in control, which acceleration may or may not be conditioned upon the subsequent termination of the participant's service within a specified period following the transaction. In general, restricted share unit awards granted to Theravance Biopharma employees become fully vested if the employee is terminated without cause (as defined in the applicable award agreement) or resigns for good reason (as defined in the applicable award agreement), in either event within twenty four (24) months following a change in control. Restricted share units granted to our officers are eligible for vesting acceleration pursuant to our Change in Control Severance Plan.

For this purpose, a change in control includes:

- any merger or consolidation of Theravance Biopharma where persons who were not shareholders of Theravance Biopharma prior to such merger or consolidation own 50% or more of the total voting power of the surviving entity or its parent;
- the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets;
- a change in the composition of our board of directors as a result of which fewer than 50% of the incumbent directors either were directors on the date twelve (12) months prior to the change in control (the "Original Directors") or were appointed or nominated for election to the board of directors by a majority of the Original Directors or directors whose appointment or nomination was approved by at least 50% of the Original Directors; or
- any person acquiring beneficial ownership of at least 50% of our total voting power.

Transferability of restricted share units.

Unless the Administrator indicates otherwise in your restricted share unit agreement, restricted share units generally may not be transferred, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

Registration and sale of shares underlying restricted share units.

All of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares issuable upon the vesting of the restricted share units have been registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") on registration statements on Form S-8 filed with the SEC. Unless you are an employee who is considered an affiliate of Theravance Biopharma for purposes of the Securities Act, you will be able to sell the shares issuable upon receipt of your restricted share units free of any transfer restrictions under applicable U.S. securities laws.

Federal income tax consequences.

You should refer to "Section 14; Material income tax consequences" for a discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the restricted share units and exchanged options, as well as the consequences of accepting or rejecting this offer.

If you participate in the offer and are an employee residing in the United Kingdom (or if your home country is the United Kingdom), please refer to Schedule C of this Offer to Exchange for a description of the local tax, social insurance and other legal consequences that may apply to you.

If you are a citizen or resident of more than one country or are considered a resident of another country for local law purposes, you should be aware that there may be additional or different tax and social insurance consequences that may apply to you.

You should consult with your tax advisor to determine the personal tax consequences to you of participating in this offer.

10. Information concerning Theravance Biopharma.

Theravance Biopharma was incorporated in the Cayman Islands in July 2013 under the name Theravance Biopharma, Inc. Our registered office address in the Cayman Islands is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and the principal office of our wholly-owned U.S. operating subsidiary Theravance Biopharma US, Inc., is 901 Gateway Boulevard, South San Francisco, California 94080.

The mission of Theravance Biopharma is to create value from a unique and diverse set of assets: an approved product; a development pipeline of late-stage assets; and a productive research platform designed for long-term growth.

Our pipeline of internally discovered product candidates includes potential best-in-class opportunities in underserved markets in the acute care setting, representing multiple opportunities for value creation. VIBATIV[®] (telavancin), our first commercial product, is a once-daily dual-mechanism antibiotic approved in the United States and Europe for certain difficult-to-treat infections. TD-4208 is an investigational long-acting muscarinic antagonist (LAMA) being developed as a potential once-daily, nebulized treatment for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD). Axelopran (TD-1211) is an investigational potential once-daily, oral treatment for opioid-induced constipation (OIC). Our earlier-stage clinical assets represent novel approaches for potentially treating diseases of the lung and gastrointestinal tract and infectious disease. In addition, we have an economic interest in future payments that may be made by GlaxoSmithKline plc (together with its affiliates, "GSK") pursuant to its agreements with Theravance, Inc. ("Theravance") relating to certain drug development programs, including the combination of flucicasone furoate, umeclidinium, and vilanterol (or the "Closed Triple").

On June 1, 2014, Theravance separated its late-stage respiratory assets partnered with GSK from its biopharmaceutical operations by transferring its discovery, development and commercialization operations (the "Biopharmaceutical Business") and contributing \$393.0 million of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities into its then wholly-owned subsidiary Theravance Biopharma. On June 2, 2014 Theravance made a pro rata dividend distribution to its stockholders of record on May 15, 2014 of one ordinary share of Theravance Biopharma for every three and one half shares of Theravance common stock outstanding on the record date (the "Spin-Off"). The Spin-Off resulted in Theravance Biopharma operating as an independent, publicly-traded company. Prior to June 2, 2014, Theravance operated the Biopharmaceutical Business.

The financial information, including financial statements and the notes thereto, included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, and quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015, are incorporated herein by reference. Please see Section 17 of this Offer to Exchange titled, "Additional information," for instructions on how you can obtain copies of our SEC filings, including filings that contain our financial statements.



We had a book value of \$7.59 per share as of June 30, 2015.

The following table sets forth our ratio of earnings to fixed charges on historical basis for the periods indicated. The ratios are calculated by dividing earnings by the fixed charges:

	Year Ended	Year Ended	Quarter Ended
	December 31, 2013	December 31, 2014	June 30, 2015
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (1)			

(1) For the purposes of computing ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings consist of loss before income taxes plus fixed charges. Fixed charges consist of interest charges and that portion of rental payments under operating leases we believe to be representative of interest. Earnings for the three months ended June 30, 2015 and the years 2014 and 2013 were insufficient to cover fixed charges by \$90.1 million, \$230.7 million, and \$156.3 million, respectively.

Attached as Schedule B to this Offer to Exchange is a summary of our financial information from our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, and from our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015. Please also see Section 18 of this Offer to Exchange titled "Financial Statements" for additional information.

11. Interests of directors and executive officers; transactions and arrangements concerning the options.

A list of our current directors and executive officers as of August 28, 2015 is attached to this Offer to Exchange as Schedule A. Our executive officers and the members of our board of directors are not eligible to participate in this offer. The following tables below sets forth the beneficial ownership of each of our current executive officers and directors of options outstanding as of August 27, 2015. The percentages in the tables below are based on the total number of outstanding options (i.e., whether or not eligible for exchange) to purchase our ordinary shares, which was 4,129,437 as of August 27, 2015.

Name	Position	Number of Options Outstanding	Percentage of Total Outstanding Options
Rick E Winningham	Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board	400,000	9.7%
Leonard M. Blum	Senior VP and Chief Commercial Officer	170,000	4.1%
Renee D. Gala	Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer	170,000	4.1%
Brett K. Haumann	Senior VP, Clinical Development and Operations	59,375	1.4%
Junning Lee	Senior VP, Technical Operations	170,000	4.1%
Mathai Mammen	Senior VP, Research and Development	170,000	4.1%
Frank Pasqualone	Senior VP, Operations	100,000	2.4%
Bradford J. Shafer	Senior VP, General Counsel and Secretary	170,000	4.1%
Eran Broshy	Director	24,000	*
Henrietta H. Fore	Director	24,000	*
Robert V. Gunderson, Jr.	Director	24,000	*
Burton G. Malkiel, Ph.D.	Director	24,000	*
Dean J. Mitchell	Director	24,000	*
Susan Molineaux	Director	12,000	*



			Number of	Percentage of Total
			Options	Outstanding
Name		Position	Outstanding	Options
Peter S. Ringrose, Ph.D.	Director		24,000) *
George M. Whitesides, Ph.D.	Director		24,000) *
William D. Young	Director		24,000) *

* Less than 1%.

Except as otherwise described below, neither we, nor to the best of our knowledge, any of our directors or executive officers, nor any affiliates of ours, were engaged in transactions involving options to purchase our ordinary shares or restricted share units, or in transactions involving our ordinary shares during the sixty (60) days before and including August 28, 2015.

		Amount of		
Name of Executive Officer/ Director	Date of Transaction	Securities Involved	Price Per Share	Type of Transaction
Rick E Winningham	8/14/2015	63.140	\$ 11.79	Open market purchase of shares
	8/17/2015	16,860	\$ 12.13	Open market purchase of shares
Renee D. Gala	8/13/2015	5,000	\$ 12.19	Open market purchase of shares
	8/17/2015	5,000	\$ 12.16	Open market purchase of shares
Burton G. Malkiel	8/18/2015	10,000	\$ 12.92	Open market purchase of shares
Junning Lee	8/18/2015	9,000	\$ 12.90	Open market purchase of shares*
Leonard M. Blum	8/20/2015	934	\$ 12.98	Shares withheld from vested restricted share
				units for tax withholding
Matthai Mammen	8/20/2015	934	\$ 12.98	Shares withheld from vested restricted share units for tax withholding
Bradford J. Shafer	8/20/2015	934	\$ 12.98	Shares withheld from vested restricted share units for tax withholding

* Purchase made by executive officer's spouse.

Governance Agreement

The Governance Agreement by and between Glaxo Group Limited and us, dated March 3, 2014 (the "Governance Agreement") contains agreements relating to future acquisitions or dispositions and voting of our securities by GSK, and exempts GSK from triggering our rights agreement until December 31, 2017 (as further described under "Rights Agreement" below), among other matters. Except as otherwise noted below, the provisions of the Governance Agreement described below will terminate at the earliest of (i) when GSK beneficially owns 100% of our outstanding voting shares, (ii) the effective time of a change in control of us and (iii) December 31, 2017.

Voting Arrangements

GSK has agreed to vote the voting shares held by them (at their election) either (i) in accordance with the recommendation of our independent directors or (ii) in proportion to the votes cast by the other holders of our voting shares; however, GSK can vote as it chooses on any matter involving:

- any proposal to issue equity securities to one or more parties (other than in a public offering) that would result in that party or parties owning or having the right to acquire 20% or more of the aggregate voting power of all of our equity securities; or
- a change in control of us.

In addition, for so long as GSK owns 50.1% or more of our voting shares, it can also vote as it chooses on any matter involving:

- an acquisition by us of any business or assets that would constitute a substantial portion of our business or our assets; or
- the sale, lease, license, transfer or otherwise disposal of all or a substantial portion of our business or our assets (other than a sale, lease, license or transfer of assets in the ordinary course of our business).

If a person or group acquires 20% or more of our voting shares, GSK may vote its voting shares without any restrictions. GSK has granted an irrevocable proxy coupled with an interest in all voting shares owned by them to our board of directors. This proxy will enable the proxyholder to vote or otherwise act with respect to all of the voting shares of GSK in the manner required by the Governance Agreement.

Limitations and Exceptions to Rights to Acquire Our Securities

Limitation on Acquisition of Our Equity Securities

Except as expressly permitted by the Governance Agreement or as agreed to by us in writing following approval by a majority of our independent directors, GSK may not, directly or indirectly:

- acquire any of our equity securities;
- make or participate in any solicitation of proxies to vote from any holders of our equity securities;
- form or participate in a group with any person not bound by the terms of the Governance Agreement (other than GSK's affiliates) with respect to any
 of our voting shares;
- acquire any of our assets or rights to purchase any of our assets except for assets offered for sale by us;

- enter into any arrangement or understanding with others to do any of the actions listed immediately above; or
- act in concert with others to offer to us or any of our shareholders any business combination, restructuring, recapitalization or similar transaction involving us or otherwise seek in concert with others to control, change or influence the management, board of directors or our policies or nominate any person as a director

who is not nominated by the then incumbent directors, or propose any matter to be voted upon by our shareholders.

Permitted Purchases of Our Equity Securities from Us

GSK may acquire our equity securities from us in the following circumstances:

- if we issue equity securities to a third party (other than equity awards issued as compensation to our directors, officers, employees or consultants), including securities offered by this prospectus, GSK has rights to advance notice and to purchase from us all or a portion of the number of equity securities that would bring their percentage ownership of our voting shares to the same level that it was at immediately prior to the issuance of equity securities to the third party at the same price at which the equity securities were sold to the third party;
- the purchase, on a quarterly basis, of equity securities comparable to those that are issued as compensation to our directors, officers, employees or
 consultants during the preceding quarter pursuant to option exercises, settlement of restricted stock unit awards and vesting of restricted stock, at the
 fair market value at the time of GSK's notification to us of its intention to purchase such equity securities that would bring their percentage
 ownership of our voting shares to the same level that it was at immediately prior to such issuances or vesting;
- the acquisition of additional equity securities issued in connection with a share split or recapitalization; and
- the purchase of equity securities for a pension plan or benefit plan for the benefit of GSK's employees.

Permitted Purchases of Equity Securities from Our Shareholders

GSK may acquire our equity securities from our shareholders in the following circumstances:

- the acquisition of securities of another biotechnology or pharmaceutical company that owns our equity securities (provided that those shares will be subject to the provisions of the Governance Agreement); or
- the making of an offer to acquire equity securities if (i) a person or group (other than GSK) acquires 20% or more of our voting shares or (ii) our board of directors formally takes certain actions to facilitate a change in control of us (other than with GSK), subject to the following conditions:
 - that the offer be an offer for 100% of our voting shares;
 - that the offer include no condition as to financing; and
 - that the offer includes a condition that the holders of a majority of the voting shares not owned by GSK accept the offer by tendering their shares or voting their shares in favor of the offer.

The term "change in control" is referred to as (i) any transaction or series of related transactions (including mergers, consolidations and other forms of business consolidations) after which our continuing shareholders hold less than 50% of the outstanding voting securities of either us or the entity that survives the transaction (or the parent of the surviving entity) or (ii) subject to certain exceptions, the sale, lease, license, transfer or other disposal of all or substantially all of our business or assets other than to our majority owned and controlled subsidiaries.

The term "equity securities" is referred to as (i) any of our voting shares, (ii) our securities convertible into or exchangeable for voting shares, and (iii) options, rights and warrants issued by us to acquire voting shares.

Registration Rights Agreement

Ordinary shares issued to GSK are entitled to the rights set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement by and between GSK and us, dated March 3, 2014 (the "Registration Rights Agreement"). The rights under the Registration Rights Agreement will expire on December 31, 2024, or if GSK or its permitted assigns each hold one and a half percent or less of our then outstanding ordinary shares, if each such holder can sell its shares in a single transaction pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

Demand Registration Rights

Under the Registration Rights Agreement, GSK and its permitted assigns have the right to require that we register their ordinary shares, provided such demand comes from holders of at least 50% of the aggregate shares held by GSK and its permitted assigns and such registration relates to ordinary shares having an anticipated aggregate offering price of \$10 million. We are only obligated to effect one registration in response to these demand registration rights (subject to certain exceptions). We may postpone the filing of a registration statement for up to 90 days once in any 12-month period if our board of directors determines in good faith that the filing would be seriously detrimental to our shareholders or us. The underwriters of any underwritten offering have the right to limit the number of shares to be included in a registration statement filed in response to the exercise of these demand registration rights. We must pay all expenses, except for underwriters' discounts and commissions, incurred in connection with these demand registration rights.

Piggyback Registration Rights

If we register any securities for public sale, under the Registration Rights Agreement GSK has the right to include its shares in the registration, subject to specified exceptions. The underwriters of any underwritten offering have the right to limit the number of shares registered by GSK and its permitted assigns (but to no less than 25% of the shares to be registered in such registration) due to marketing reasons. We must pay all expenses, except for underwriters' discounts and commissions, incurred in connection with these piggyback registration rights.

S-3 Registration Rights

While we are eligible to file a registration statement on Form S-3, under the Registration Rights Agreement GSK and its permitted assigns can request that we register their shares, provided that such registration request is made by holders of not less than 10% in aggregate of GSK's and its permitted assigns shares and the total price of the ordinary shares offered to the public is at least \$10 million. GSK and its permitted assigns may only require us to file two Form S-3 registration statements in any 12-month period. We may postpone the filing of a Form S-3 registration statement for up to 90 days once in any 12-month period if our board of directors determines in good faith that the filing would be seriously detrimental to our shareholders or us. We must pay all expenses, except for underwriters' discounts and commissions, incurred in connection with these Form S-3 registration rights.

Rights Agreement

Under our rights agreement, each ordinary share has associated with it one preferred share purchase right. Each of these rights entitles its holder to purchase, at a price of \$225.00 for each, one one-thousandth of a share of Series A junior participating preferred, (each subject to adjustment) under circumstances provided for in the rights agreement. The purpose of our rights agreement is to:

- give our board of directors the opportunity to negotiate with any persons seeking to obtain control of us;
- deter acquisitions of voting control of us without assurance of fair and equal treatment of all of our shareholders; and
- prevent a person from acquiring in the market a sufficient amount of voting power over us to be in a position to block an action sought to be taken by our shareholders.

The exercise of the rights under our rights agreement would cause substantial dilution to a person attempting to acquire us on terms not approved by our board of directors, and therefore would significantly increase the price that such person would have to pay to complete the acquisition. Our rights agreement may deter a potential acquisition or tender offer. Until a "distribution date" occurs, the rights will:

- not be exercisable;
- be represented in the same book-entry form or by the same certificate that represents the shares with which the rights are associated; and
- trade together with those shares.

The rights will expire at the close of business on May 24, 2024, unless earlier redeemed or exchanged by us. Following a "distribution date," the rights would become exercisable and we would issue separate certificates representing the rights, which would trade separately from our ordinary shares. A "distribution date" would occur upon the earlier of:

- ten business days after a public announcement that the person has become an "acquiring person;" or
- ten business days (or such later date as may be determined by action of the board of directors prior to such time as any person or group of affiliated persons becomes an "acquiring person") after the commencement of, or announcement of an intention to make, a tender offer or exchange offer the consummation of which would result in the beneficial ownership by a person or group of 19% or more of the outstanding ordinary shares.

A holder of rights will not, as such, have any rights as a shareholder, including the right to vote or receive dividends.

Under our rights agreement, a person becomes an "acquiring person" if the person, alone or together with a group, acquires beneficial ownership of 19% or more of our outstanding ordinary shares. GSK is not an "acquiring person" because we have, pursuant to our governance agreement with GSK, exempted GSK from the application of our rights agreement. In addition, an "acquiring person" shall not include us, any of our subsidiaries, or any of our employee benefit plans or any person or entity acting pursuant to such employee benefit plans. Our rights agreement also contains provisions designed to prevent the inadvertent triggering of the rights by institutional or certain other shareholders.



If any person becomes an acquiring person, each holder of a right, other than the acquiring person, will be entitled to purchase, at the purchase price, a number of our ordinary shares having a market value of two times the purchase price. If, following a public announcement that a person has become an acquiring person:

- we merge or enter into any similar business combination transaction and we are not the surviving corporation; or
- 50% or more of our assets, cash flow or earning power is sold or transferred,

each holder of a right, other than the acquiring person, will be entitled to purchase a number of ordinary shares of the surviving entity having a market value of two times the purchase price.

After a person becomes an acquiring person, but prior to such person acquiring 50% of our outstanding ordinary shares, our board of directors may exchange each right, other than rights owned by the acquiring person, for

- one ordinary share;
- one one-thousandth of a share of our Series A junior preferred share; or
- a fractional share of another series of preferred share having equivalent value.

At any time until a person has become an acquiring person, our board of directors may redeem all of the rights at a redemption price of \$0.01 per right. On the redemption date, the rights will expire and the only entitlement of the holders of rights will be to receive the redemption price.

For so long as the rights are redeemable, our board of directors may amend any provisions in the rights agreement without shareholder consent. After the rights are no longer redeemable, our board of directors may only amend the rights agreement without shareholder consent if such amendment would not change the amendment provisions, adversely affect the interests of the holders of rights, or cause the rights to again become redeemable. Despite the foregoing, at no time may the redemption price of the rights be amended or changed.

Our shareholders may recognize taxable income when the rights become exercisable in accordance with the rights agreement.

12. Status of options acquired by us in the offer; accounting consequences of the offer.

Options that we acquire through the offer will be cancelled and the shares subject to those options will be returned to the pool of shares available for grants of new awards under the respective Plans from which the options were granted and will be available to be reissued under the Plans.

We account for share-based payments in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 718 ("ASC 718"). Under ASC 718, we will recognize incremental compensation expense, if any, resulting from the restricted share units granted pursuant to the offer. The incremental compensation cost will be measured as the excess, if any, of the fair value of the restricted share units granted in exchange for the exchanged options, measured as of the restricted share units granted in exchange. Any incremental compensation expense related to the restricted share units issued in the exchange program will be recognized ratably over the vesting period of the restricted share units. In the event that any of the restricted share units are forfeited prior to their vesting due to termination of service, any incremental compensation expense of the forfeited restricted share units will not be recognized.

Since the offer has been structured to replace underwater options with restricted share units of approximately similar value, the Company expects to recognize an incremental compensation expense. This incremental compensation could include compensation expense that might result from fluctuations in our share price after the exchange ratio was set (which occurred shortly before the exchange program began) but before the exchange actually occurs. As a result, the exchange program will allow the Company to realize real incentive and retention benefits from the restricted share units issued, while recognizing essentially the same amount of compensation expense as we would have recognized for the eligible options.



13. Legal matters; regulatory approvals.

We are not aware of any license or regulatory permit that appears to be material to our business that might be affected adversely by our exchange of options and issuance of restricted share units as contemplated by the offer, or of any approval or other action by any government or governmental, administrative or regulatory authority or agency or any Nasdaq Global Market listing requirements that would be required for the acquisition or ownership of our options as contemplated herein. Should any additional approval or other action be required, we presently contemplate that we will seek such approval or take such other action. If any such approval or other action is needed, we may not be able to obtain the approval or action and the conditions imposed in connection with such approvals or the failure to obtain any such approvals could result in adverse consequences to our business. Our obligation under the offer to accept elected options for exchange and to issue restricted share units for elected options is subject to the conditions described in "Section 7; Conditions of the offer."

If we are prohibited by applicable laws or regulations from granting restricted share units on the restricted share unit grant date, we will not grant any restricted share units pursuant to the offer. We are unaware of any such prohibition at this time, and we will use reasonable efforts to effect the grant, but if the grant is prohibited on the restricted share unit grant date we will not grant any restricted share units and you will not receive any other benefit for the options you elected to exchange and your eligible options will not be accepted for exchange.

14. Material income tax consequences.

Material U.S. federal income tax consequences.

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the exchange of options for restricted share units pursuant to the offer for eligible option holders subject to U.S. federal income tax. This discussion is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, its legislative history, treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, and administrative and judicial interpretations as of the date of this offering circular, all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis. This summary does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to you in light of your particular circumstances, nor is it intended to be applicable in all respects to all categories of award holders. If you are a citizen or a resident of the U.S., but also are subject to the tax laws of another country, you should be aware that there might be other tax and social insurance consequences that may apply to you. We strongly recommend that you consult with your advisors to discuss the consequences to you of this transaction.

We recommend that you consult your tax advisor with respect to the federal, state and local tax consequences of participating in the offer, as the tax consequences to you are dependent on your individual tax situation.

Eligible option holders who exchange outstanding options for restricted share units generally will not be required to recognize income for U.S. federal income tax purposes at the time of the exchange. We believe that the exchange will be treated as a non-taxable exchange.

Restricted share units.

If you are a U.S. taxpayer, you generally will not have taxable income at the time you are granted an award of restricted share units. Instead, you will recognize ordinary income as the shares subject to the restricted share units vest and are issued to you. At the same time, Theravance Biopharma will also typically have a tax withholding obligation. The amount of ordinary income you recognize will equal the fair market value of the shares. The Company will satisfy all tax withholding obligations in the manner specified in your restricted share unit agreement. Any gain or loss you recognize upon the sale or exchange of shares that you acquire through a grant of restricted share units generally will be treated as capital gain or loss and will be long-term or short-term depending upon how long you have held the shares. Shares held more than twelve (12) months are subject to long-term capital gain or loss, while shares held twelve (12) months or less are subject to short-term capital gain or loss.

You also should note that if your restricted share units constitute "deferred compensation" within the meaning of U.S. Internal Revenue Code Section 409A and (1) the vesting of all or a portion of your restricted share units is accelerated in connection with your separation from service with the Theravance Biopharma Group, and (2) you are a "specified employee" (generally, a highly placed officer of the Company) at that time, then the delivery of accelerated shares under your restricted share unit award may need to be delayed by six (6) months in order to allow you to avoid the imposition of additional taxation under U.S. Internal Revenue Code Section 409A.

We recommend that you consult your own tax advisor with respect to the federal, state, and local tax consequences of participating in the offer.

Options.

If you participate in this offer, your eligible options will be exchanged for restricted share units. So that you are able to compare the tax consequences of new restricted share units to that of your eligible options, we have included the following summary as a reminder of the tax consequences generally applicable to nonstatutory options under U.S. federal tax law.

Under current law, an option holder generally will not realize taxable income upon the grant of a nonstatutory option, nor will such option holder realize taxable income upon the vesting of the option. However, when you exercise a nonstatutory option, you generally will have ordinary income to the extent the fair market value of the shares you receive on the date of exercise is greater than the exercise price you pay.

Theravance Biopharma generally will be entitled to a deduction equal to the amount of ordinary income recognized by you if we comply with eligible reporting requirements.

Upon disposition of the shares, any gain or loss is treated as capital gain or loss. The capital gain or loss will be long-term or short-term depending on whether the shares were held for more than twelve (12) months. The holding period for the shares generally will begin just after the time you recognized income. The amount of such gain or loss will be the difference between: (i) the amount realized upon the sale or exchange of the shares, and (ii) the value of the shares at the time the ordinary income was recognized.

If you were an employee at the time of the grant of the option, any income recognized upon exercise of a nonstatutory option generally will constitute wages for which withholding will be required.

We recommend that you consult your tax advisor with respect to the federal, state, and local tax consequences of participating in the offer.

In addition, if you are a citizen or resident of more than one country, transferred employment to another country since the date your eligible options were granted or are considered a resident of another country for local law purposes, you should be aware that there might be tax and social insurance consequences for more than one country that may apply to you. Also, if you were granted eligible options while a resident or taxpayer in one country but are a resident of or taxpayer in another country when the restricted share units are granted to you pursuant to the offer, you may be subject to tax not only in the new country, but also in the original country (e.g., if the original country views the restricted share units as a replacement grant). We strongly recommend that you consult with your advisors to discuss the consequences to you of this transaction.

If you participate in the offer and are an employee residing in the United Kingdom (or if your home country is the United Kingdom), please refer to Schedule C of this Offer to Exchange for a description of the local tax, social insurance and other legal consequences of participating in this offer. We strongly recommend that you consult with your advisors to discuss the consequences to you of this transaction.

15. Extension of offer; termination; amendment.

We reserve the right, in our discretion, at any time and regardless of whether or not any event listed in "Section 7; Conditions of the offer" has occurred or is deemed by us to have occurred, to extend the period of time during which the offer is open and delay the acceptance for exchange of any options. If we elect to extend the period of time during which this offer is open, we will give you oral or written notice of the extension and delay, as described below. If we extend the expiration date, we also will extend your right to withdraw elections to exchange eligible options until such extended expiration date. In the case of an extension, we will issue a press release, e-mail or other form of communication no later than 6:00 a.m., Pacific Time, on the next U.S. business day after the previously scheduled expiration date.



We also reserve the right, in our reasonable judgment, before the expiration date to terminate or amend the offer and to postpone our acceptance and cancellation of any options elected to be exchanged if any of the events listed in "Section 7; Conditions of the offer" occurs, by giving oral or written notice of the termination or postponement to you or by making a public announcement of the termination. Our reservation of the right to delay our acceptance and cancellation of options elected to be exchanged is limited by Rule 13e-4(f)(5) under the Exchange Act which requires that we must pay the consideration offered or return the options promptly after termination or withdrawal of a tender offer.

Subject to compliance with applicable law, we further reserve the right, before the expiration date, in our discretion, and regardless of whether any event listed in "Section 7; Conditions of the offer" has occurred or is deemed by us to have occurred, to amend the offer in any respect, including by decreasing or increasing the consideration offered in this offer to eligible option holders or by decreasing or increasing the number of options being sought in this offer. As a reminder, if a particular option grant expires after commencement, but before cancellation under the offer, that particular option grant is not eligible for exchange. Therefore, if we extend the offer for any reason and if a particular option grant that was elected for exchange before the originally scheduled expiration date but before the actual cancellation date under the extended offer, that option grant would not be eligible for exchange.

The minimum period during which the offer will remain open following material changes in the terms of the offer or in the information concerning the offer, other than a change in the consideration being offered by us or a change in the amount of existing options sought, will depend on the facts and circumstances of such change, including the relative materiality of the terms or information changes. If we modify the number of eligible options being sought in this offer or the consideration being offered by us for the eligible options in this offer, the offer will remain open for at least ten (10) U.S. business days from the date of notice of such modification. If any term of the offer is amended in a manner that we determine constitutes a material change adversely affecting any holder of eligible options, we promptly will disclose the amendments in a manner reasonably calculated to inform holders of eligible options of such amendment, and we will extend the offer's period so that at least five (5) U.S. business days, or such longer period as may be required by the tender offer rules, remain after such change.

For purposes of the offer, a "U.S. business day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a U.S. federal holiday and consists of the time period from 12:01 a.m. through 12:00 midnight, Eastern Time.

16. Fees and expenses.

We will not pay any fees or commissions to any broker, dealer or other person for soliciting options to be exchanged through this offer.

17. Additional information.

This Offer to Exchange is part of a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO that we have filed with the SEC. This Offer to Exchange does not contain all of the information contained in the Schedule TO and the exhibits to the Schedule TO. We recommend that you review the Schedule TO, including its exhibits, and the following materials that we have filed with the SEC before making a decision on whether to elect to exchange your options:

- 1. Our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, filed with the SEC on March 13, 2015 (including the portion of our Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 17, 2015, incorporated by reference therein);
- 2. Our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for our fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015, filed with the SEC on August 13, 2015;

- 3. The description of ordinary shares contained in the Registration Statement No. 001-36033 on Form 10 filed with the SEC on May 7, 2014, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description; and
- 4. Our current reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 2, 2015, March 9, 2015 and April 24, 2015 and the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on April 24, 2015.

These filings, our other annual, quarterly, and current reports, our proxy statements, and our other SEC filings may be examined, and copies may be obtained, at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 U.S.A. You may obtain information on the operation of the public reference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our SEC filings also are available to the public on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

Each person to whom a copy of this Offer to Exchange is delivered may obtain a copy of any or all of the documents to which we have referred you, other than exhibits to such documents, unless such exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into such documents, at no cost, by writing to us at Theravance Biopharma, Inc., c/o Theravance Biopharma US, Inc., 901 Gateway Boulevard, South San Francisco, California 94080 U.S.A. Attention: General Counsel.

As you read the documents listed above, you may find some inconsistencies in information from one document to another. If you find inconsistencies between the documents, or between a document and this Offer to Exchange, you should rely on the statements made in the most recent document.

The information contained in this Offer to Exchange about us should be read together with the information contained in the documents to which we have referred you, in making your decision as to whether or not to participate in this offer.

18. Financial statements.

The financial information, including financial statements and the notes thereto, included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, and quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015, are incorporated herein by reference. Attached as Schedule B to this Offer to Exchange is a summary of our financial information from our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, and from our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2015. More complete financial information may be obtained by accessing our public filings with the SEC by following the instructions in "Section 17; Additional information."

19. Miscellaneous.

We are not aware of any jurisdiction where the making of the offer is not in compliance with applicable law. If we become aware of any jurisdiction where the making of the offer is not in compliance with any valid applicable law, we will make a good faith effort to comply with such law. If, after such good faith effort, we cannot comply with such law, the offer will not be made to, nor will awards be accepted from the award holders working in such jurisdiction.

We have not authorized any person to make any recommendation on our behalf as to whether you should elect to exchange your options through the offer. You should rely only on the information in this document or documents to which we have referred you. We have not authorized anyone to give you any information or to make any representations in connection with the offer other than the information and representations contained in this Offer to Exchange and in the related offer documents. If anyone makes any recommendation or representation to you or gives you any information other than the information and representations contained in the Offer to Exchange and in the related offer documents, you must not rely upon that recommendation, representation, or information as having been authorized by us.

Theravance Biopharma, Inc. August 28, 2015



SCHEDULE A

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

The directors and executive officers of Theravance Biopharma, Inc. as of August 28, 2015, are set forth in the following table:

Name	Position and Offices Held
Rick E Winningham	Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Leonard M. Blum	Senior VP and Chief Commercial Officer
Renee D. Gala	Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
Brett K. Haumann	Senior VP, Clinical Development and Operations
Junning Lee	Senior VP, Technical Operations
Mathai Mammen	Senior VP, Research and Development
Frank Pasqualone	Senior VP, Operations
Bradford J. Shafer	Senior VP, General Counsel and Secretary
Eran Broshy	Director
Henrietta H. Fore	Director
Robert V. Gunderson, Jr.	Director
Burton G. Malkiel, Ph.D.	Director
Dean J. Mitchell	Director
Susan Molineaux	Director
Peter S. Ringrose, Ph.D.	Director
George M. Whitesides, Ph.D.	Director
William D. Young	Director

The address of each executive officer and director is:

Theravance Biopharma, Inc. c/o Theravance Biopharma US, Inc. 901 Gateway Boulevard South San Francisco, California 94080

Our executive officers and members of our board of directors are not eligible to participate in this offer.

A-1

SCHEDULE B

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

Set forth below is a selected summary of certain financial information about Theravance Biopharma, Inc. This selected financial information is derived from our consolidated financial statements as filed with the SEC. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014, our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 and our other reports filed with the SEC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

	Years Ended	Decem	ber 31,	Six Months Ended June 30,			
(In thousands, except per share data)	2014		2013		2015		2014
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:							
Product sales	\$ 4,418	\$		\$	3,404	\$	1,806
Revenue from collaborative arrangements	7,270		226		24,131		2,113
Costs and expenses:							
Cost of goods sold	4,058				875		467
Research and development	168,522		120,579		66,396		88,006
Selling, general and administrative	 71,647		35,931		43,293		32,170
Total costs and expenses	244,227		156,510		110,564		120,643
Loss from operations	(232,539)		(156,284)		(83,029)		(116,724)
Interest and other income	1,865		_		414		214
Provision for income taxes	6,364		_		7,463		1,723
Net loss	\$ (237,038)	\$	(156,284)	\$	(90,078)	\$	(118,233)
Basic and diluted net loss per share	\$ (7.46)	\$	(4.92)	\$	(2.71)	\$	(3.72)
Shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share	31,755		31,741		33,183		31,768
Consolidated Balance Sheets Data (at period end):							
Cash and cash equivalents, and marketable securities	\$ 306,010	\$		\$	228,780	\$	387,427
Working capital	234,114		(22,747)		235,749		342,622
Total assets	337,771		25,177		289,479		430,588
Long-term liabilities (including long-term portion of deferred revenue)	6,728		5,359		7,328		5,718
Accumulated deficit	(139,337)				(229,415)		(20,532)
Total shareholders' equity	\$ 289,787	\$	(17,035)	\$	257,674	\$	384,759

Theravance Biopharma's book value per share as of December 31, 2014 was \$8.99. Book value per share is the value of our total shareholders' equity divided by the number of our issued and outstanding ordinary shares which at December 31, 2014 was 32,221,083. Theravance Biopharma's book value per share as of June 30, 2015 was \$7.59 based on 33,938,698 outstanding ordinary shares at June 30, 2015.

B-1

SCHEDULE C

GUIDE TO TAX ISSUES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

The following is a general summary of the material tax consequences of the voluntary cancellation of eligible options in exchange for the grant of restricted share units pursuant to the Offer to Exchange for eligible employees subject to tax in the United Kingdom. This summary is based on the tax laws in effect in the United Kingdom as of August 28, 2015. This summary is general in nature and does not discuss all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to you in light of your particular circumstances, nor is it intended to be applicable in all respects to all categories of eligible employees. Please note that tax laws change frequently and occasionally on a retroactive basis. As a result, the information contained in this summary may be out-of-date at grant or vesting of the restricted share units or when you sell shares acquired upon settlement of your restricted share units. *Accordingly, you are strongly encouraged to consult with your personal legal counsel, accountant, financial and/or tax advisor(s) regarding the tax consequences of the option exchange and grant of restricted share units in the United Kingdom.*

If you are a citizen or resident of more than one country or are considered a resident of more than one country for local law purposes, or if you are not treated as resident in the United Kingdom, the information contained in this summary may not be applicable to you. In addition, if you received your eligible options when you resided in or were otherwise subject to tax in one country, but you now reside in or are otherwise subject to tax in a different country, different tax rules may apply to you. Accordingly, you are strongly encouraged to consult with your personal legal counsel, accountant, financial and/or tax advisor(s) as to how the tax or other laws in all applicable countries apply to your specific situation.

Tax Information

Option Exchange

You will not be subject to tax as a result of the exchange of eligible options for the grant of restricted share units pursuant to the Offer to Exchange.

Grant of Restricted Share Units

You will not be subject to tax when the restricted share units are granted to you.

Vesting of Restricted Share Units

You will be subject to income tax and National Insurance Contributions ("NICs") when the restricted share units vest. The taxable amount will be the fair market value of the shares issued to you at vesting.

You will be required to pay employee NICs on the income at vesting. In addition, the restricted share units have been granted conditioned upon you agreeing to meet any liability for employer NICs, which also become due at vesting. You must execute a joint election form prior to the time your awards vest and return the joint election form to your employer. Where you execute a joint election to transfer employer's NICs, you will be eligible to receive tax relief for the NICs transferred with respect to the income tax liability which arises on vesting of your restricted share units.

Your employer will calculate the income tax and employee and employer NICs due when your restricted share units vest and intends to account for these amounts to Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs ("HMRC") through the PAYE systems. Please see below for further information.

Your employer will withhold income tax and NICs from shares otherwise to be issued to you at vesting, from proceeds of the sale of shares or from your monthly salary.

Sale of Shares

When you subsequently sell any shares acquired at vesting of the restricted share units, you may be subject to capital gains tax. The taxable amount will be the difference between the sale price and the market value of the shares at vesting. However, you will be subject to capital gains tax in any tax year only if your capital gain exceeds your annual personal exemption.



If you acquire shares, you will need to take into account the share identification rules in calculating your capital gains tax liability. Please consult your personal tax advisor to determine how the share identification rules apply in your particular situation.

Withholding and Reporting

As described above, your employer is required to withhold income tax and NICs through the PAYE system when your restricted share units vest. Please note that no shares will be issued or transferred to you unless you have made arrangements satisfactory to Theravance Biopharma for the payment of any such tax liability. However, you are ultimately responsible for payment of any income tax and NICs due. You are responsible for paying any difference between your actual tax liability and the amount withheld.

Your employer is also required to report the details of the grant and vesting and the tax withheld in its annual returns.

In addition to your employer's reporting obligations, you are responsible for reporting any income resulting from the vesting of your restricted share units, the sale of your shares and the receipt of any dividends on your annual tax return. You are also responsible for paying any tax resulting from the sale of your shares and the receipt of any dividends.

C-2

Cover E-mails

From: Rick E Winningham

To: All Employees

Subject: Launch of Option Exchange Program

Date: August 28, 2015

Dear Theravance Biopharma Employees,

I am pleased to announce that today we are launching the option exchange program and are offering eligible employees a one-time opportunity to voluntarily exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule. This offer begins today and is scheduled to expire on September 25, 2015, at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time. You can access all relevant information regarding the offer at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange.

What happens next?

Theravance Biopharma has engaged Computershare, a specialized provider of employee equity plan services, to help administer the offer. Computershare will be responsible for the day-to-day logistics of the offer, including the offer website, customer service via telephone and various communications regarding participation in the offer. **If you are eligible to participate in the offer**, you will receive an e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com today with a personalized PIN, instructions on how to log in to the offer website, and documents outlining the full terms of the offer. Upon receipt, log in to the website to view your eligible option holdings, model the potential exchange and access additional copies of certain offer documents. Once ready, you may make your election decision via the website. Any participants who do not wish to make an online election, will need to submit the provided hard copy election form, which must be properly completed, signed and *received by* Computershare no later than the above deadline.

In addition, eligible participants will receive a meeting invite for our employee information sessions to learn more about the offer.

Who is eligible?

You are eligible to participate in the offer if you have outstanding options which were granted prior to August 4, 2015 under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan or the 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan, as applicable and you are an eligible option holder as defined below.

You are an eligible option holder if you are an employee of Theravance Biopharma or any of its subsidiaries working in the U.S. or the United Kingdom as of the start of the exchange program and you remain an employee of Theravance Biopharma or any of its subsidiaries working in one of the foregoing countries through the expiration of the exchange program and the restricted share unit grant date. Our executive officers, other members of our senior leadership group, members of our board of directors and consultants are not eligible option holders and may not participate in the offer.

When is the deadline to participate?

This offer currently is scheduled to expire on September 25, 2015, at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time and restricted share units are scheduled to be granted on the same day.

We believe that this offer provides meaningful choices related to your long-term equity awards. If you are eligible to participate, please take the time to review and carefully consider the information provided to you by Computershare and then follow the provided instructions to make your election prior to the scheduled September 25, 2015 expiration date.

Best regards,

Rick E Winningham

Chief Executive Officer

From: The ravance Biopharma Option Exchange @paladinbusiness.com

To: All Eligible Employees

Subject: Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program Information [Do not reply]

Date: August 28, 2015

CONFIDENTIAL

As announced by Rick E Winningham, Theravance Biopharma is offering you a one-time opportunity to voluntarily exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule (referred to as the "offer"). Copies of the documents describing the offer are attached and are also available through the link to the offer website provided below or by calling Computershare.

If you would like to take advantage of this offer, your election must be submitted online using the offer website **on or before 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time on** September 25, 2015 (any participants who wish to participate in the offer and do not wish to make an online election, must submit the attached hard copy election form, which must be properly completed, signed and *received by* Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) no later than the above deadline).

If you choose not to participate, you do not need to take any action and you will keep your outstanding eligible options with their current terms and conditions.

To help you decide whether to participate in the offer, please review the offer documents attached to this e-mail and also available via the offer website or by calling Computershare. For security purposes, a Personal Identification Number (PIN) has been assigned to you. After you log on to the offer website, you must enter your e-mail address and the below PIN to access your current eligible options and make your election choices.

Website address: www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange

Your e-mail address is: [XXX@theravance.com]

Your PIN is: [XXXXXXXX]

If you decide to participate in the offer, you must complete and submit an online election form on or before 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time on September 25, 2015 or ensure your hard copy election form is completed, signed and *received* by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) by this deadline. Elections or changes to elections cannot be accepted after this time.

If you have any questions regarding the offer details or how to participate, please call Computershare at the number below and one of their customer service representatives will be able to assist you with your questions.

Please do not reply to this e-mail message.

This Offer expires at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time on September 25, 2015

If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. Interpreter services are available upon request.

To: [All] Employees

From: Theravance Biopharma Representative

Date: [Date] [TO BE SENT AFTER THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE OFFER]

Subject: Important Employee Meeting Today at [X:00] PM

Please join us in rooms [XXXX and XXXX] today at [X:00] PM for a brief and important employee meeting to discuss the Launch of the Option Exchange Program.

[If you are offsite and would like to call-in to the meeting, please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone at [https://XXXXX] and please dial: XXX-XXX-XXXX & conference ID: XXXXXXX (please mute your phone).]

Stay tuned as more detailed information sessions for eligible employees will be scheduled next week.

To: Eligible Employees

From: Theravance Biopharma Representative

Date: [DATE] [TO BE SENT OR POSTED AFTER THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE OFFER]

Subject: Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program - Information Sessions

To learn more about the one-time opportunity to voluntarily exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule and to answer any questions you may have, please sign-up on sharepoint and join us for [one of] the following employee meeting[s]:

[DATE], at [TIME AND LOCATION]

[If you are offsite and would like to call-in to a meeting, please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone at [https://XXXX] and please dial: XXX-XXX-XXXX & conference ID: XXXXXXX (please mute your phone, unless you plan on speaking).]

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. OFFER TO EXCHANGE CERTAIN OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

ELECTION FORM

Before signing this election form, please make sure you have received, read and understand the documents that make up this voluntary offer to exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule (referred to as the "offer"), including: (1) the Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units (referred to as the "Offer to Exchange"); (2) the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015; (3) this election form; and (4) the withdrawal form. The offer is subject to the terms of these documents as they may be amended. The offer provides eligible option holders who hold eligible options the opportunity to exchange these eligible options for restricted share units as set forth in Section 2 of the Offer to Exchange. This offer expires at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, unless extended. PLEASE FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS ATTACHED TO THIS FORM.

In accordance with the terms outlined in the offer documents, you will receive one (1) restricted share unit for every two (2) shares subject to your exchanged options, as described in Section 2 of the Offer to Exchange. If you participate in this offer, you may exchange outstanding options granted to you by Theravance Biopharma before August 4, 2015. However, options will not be eligible options (and any election with regard to such options will be disregarded) if, on the expiration date of the offer, the exercise price of the option is equal to or less than the closing price of Theravance Biopharma's ordinary shares on the expiration date. Each restricted share unit will vest in accordance with the schedule described in Section 9 of the Offer to Exchange. Vesting on any date is subject to your continued service with Theravance Biopharma (or one of its subsidiaries) (the "Theravance Biopharma Group") through each relevant vesting date. You will lose your rights to all exchanged options that are cancelled under the offer.

BY PARTICIPATING, YOU AGREE TO ALL TERMS OF THE OFFER AS SET FORTH IN THE DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE OFFER, INCLUDING DATA PROCESSING BY COMPANIES IN THE THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA GROUP AND THEIR SERVICE PROVIDERS, INCLUDING COMPUTERSHARE SHAREOWNER SERVICES LLC IN THE UNITED STATES ("COMPUTERSHARE"). YOUR PARTICIPATION IS VOLUNTARY AND ENTIRELY UP TO YOU. IF YOU DECLINE TO PARTICIPATE, YOU WILL NOT BE ABLE TO EXCHANGE YOUR OPTIONS FOR RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS, BUT YOUR EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP OR STATUS WILL NOT BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED.

DATA PRIVACY. Theravance Biopharma has engaged Computershare (a specialized provider of employee equity plan services) to assist with the implementation of the offer. For the exclusive purpose of administering your participation in the offer, Theravance Biopharma Group, Computershare and other providers will process your name, work e-mail address and, to the extent provided to the Theravance Biopharma Group, personal e-mail address, home address, telephone number, employee identification number, and details of all eligible options ("Data") in the country where you work and in the United States and in other jurisdictions that may have different data privacy laws and protections than your country. Computershare and other providers will hold and process Data under strict confidentiality agreements and only as necessary to administer the offer. The Theravance Biopharma Group and its providers may also have to share Data with tax authorities as required by law. For more information, you may contact privacy@TheravanceBiopharma.com.

If you would like to participate in this offer, please indicate your election by checking one of the boxes below and completing and signing this election form. Please be sure to follow the instructions, which are attached.

To participate in the offer to exchange some or all of your eligible options, you may complete and submit your election via the offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, unless extended.

Alternatively, you must sign, date and send the completed and attached election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) which must be received by Computershare on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, unless extended, to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

Only responses that are complete, signed and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare through the methods described above by the deadline will be accepted. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.

Please check the appropriate box (you may view your eligible option grants on the offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange):

 \Box Yes, I wish to participate in the offer as to ALL of my eligible option grants.

All of my eligible options will be cancelled irrevocably on the cancellation date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015.

OR

□ Yes, I wish to participate in the offer as to my eligible option grants listed below (please list):

Eligible Option Grant Number

Grant Date

My eligible option grants that are specifically listed above will be cancelled irrevocably on the cancellation date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015.

I understand that this election form will replace any election form I previously submitted.

Option Holder Signature

Option Holder Name (Please print)

Date and Time

E-mail Address

COMPUTERSHARE MUST RECEIVE THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 9:00 P.M., PACIFIC TIME, ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2015.

2

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. OFFER TO EXCHANGE CERTAIN OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

ELECTION INSTRUCTIONS FORMING PART OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

1. Delivery of the Election.

A properly completed election must be received either (i) via the offer website or (ii) by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 (referred to as the expiration date).

Electing Through the Offer Website:

- 1. To access the offer website, go to www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. On the welcome page of the website, you may access various documents that provide further details about the offer. Select the "Continue" button to log in to the site.
- To log in to the site, enter your Theravance Biopharma e-mail address and your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received in the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com on August 28, 2015 and select the "Continue" button. If you do not know your PIN, you may select the "Forgot Your PIN" link or contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada).
- 3. You will be directed to the Option Exchange Election Form where you can review your eligible options and access the option exchange analysis tool, which will enable you to enter hypothetical future share prices and see the share price's effect on the potential future values of your eligible options or restricted share units.
- 4. To make your election, indicate the eligible options that you would like to exchange by selecting "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" next to the eligible option grants.
- 5. Click on the "Submit" button to finalize your elections.
- 6. After you submit your election, you will be directed to the "Election Confirmation" page. Print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records.

Your election must be <u>received</u> by Computershare on or before the expiration date, currently expected to be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

Electing via Mail or Delivery Service:

If you choose not to utilize the offer website acceptance process, you may submit your election by sending your completed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address provided below. You do not need to submit an election by mail or delivery service if you accept the offer via the offer website. To send your election by mail or delivery service, you must do the following on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on the expiration date, currently expected to be September 25, 2015:

- 1. Properly complete and sign the election form.
- 2. Send the completed and signed election form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

The delivery of all required documents, including election forms, is at your risk. Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by the deadline will be accepted. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Computershare intends to confirm the receipt of your election form via an e-mail generated from the offer website within two (2) U.S. business days if your election was received by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Please note that if you submit an election form via mail or delivery service within the last two (2) U.S. business days prior to the expiration of the offer, time constraints may prevent Computershare from providing a confirmation by e-mail prior to the expiration of the offer. Confirmation statements for submissions through the offer website may be obtained by printing the "Election Confirmation" page after submitting your election; you should print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records. If you have not received a confirmation, it is your responsibility to confirm that Computershare has received your election. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.

Computershare's receipt of your election is not by itself an acceptance of your eligible options for exchange. For purposes of the offer, we will be deemed to have accepted options for exchange that are validly submitted and not properly withdrawn as of when we give oral or written notice to the option holders generally of our acceptance for exchange of such options, which notice may be made by press release, e-mail or other method of communication.

Theravance Biopharma or Computershare will not accept any alternative, conditional or contingent elections. Although it is Computershare's intent to send you an e-mail confirmation of receipt of this election form if you submit your election via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), or provide a confirmation statement on the offer website if you submit your election via the offer website, by completing and submitting this election, you waive any right to receive any notice of the receipt of the election of your options, except as provided for in the Offer to Exchange. Any confirmation of receipt sent to you merely will be a notification that Computershare has received your election and does not mean that your options have been cancelled. Your eligible options that are accepted for exchange will be cancelled on the same U.S. calendar day as the expiration of the offer (but following the expiration of the offer), which cancellation is scheduled to be September 25, 2015.

2. Withdrawal and Additional Elections.

Elections to exchange options through the offer may be withdrawn at any time on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015. If Theravance Biopharma extends the offer beyond that time, you may withdraw your options elected for exchange at any time until the extended expiration of the offer. In addition, although Theravance Biopharma currently intends to accept your validly elected options promptly after the expiration of the offer, if we have not accepted your options by 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, you may withdraw your elected options at any time thereafter.

To withdraw some or all of your elected eligible options you must deliver a properly completed withdrawal via the offer website at www.corpaction.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange or by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) while you still have the right to withdraw the eligible options to the address below:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

You may not rescind any withdrawal and any eligible options withdrawn will not be deemed properly elected for exchange for purposes of the offer, unless you properly re-elect to exchange those options before the expiration date.

To re-elect to exchange some or all of your withdrawn options or to elect to exchange additional eligible options, you must submit a new election via the offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange or by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address below:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

Your new election must be submitted before the expiration date in accordance with the procedures described in these instructions. Because any prior election will be disregarded, your new election must indicate <u>all</u> eligible options you wish to exchange, not just those you wish to add. Your new election must include the required information regarding all of the options you want to exchange and must be signed and clearly dated after the date of your original election form and any withdrawal you have submitted. Upon the receipt of such a new, properly filled out, signed and dated election, any previously submitted elections and/or withdrawals will be disregarded and will be considered replaced in full by the new election. You will be bound by the last properly submitted election and/or withdrawal we receive prior to the expiration date.

3. Elections.

If you intend to exchange eligible options through the offer, you must exchange all of your shares subject to each eligible option grant, except as noted herein.

You may pick and choose which of your eligible option grants you wish to exchange. If you have exercised a portion of an eligible option grant, your election will apply to the portion that remains outstanding and unexercised. However, if an eligible option grant is subject to a domestic relations order (or comparable legal document as the result of the end of a marriage), only the portion beneficially owned by the eligible option holder may be elected for exchange in the offer; such portion must be exchanged for all remaining outstanding shares.



4. Signatures on this Election.

If the election is being submitted via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), it must be signed by the holder of the eligible options and the signature must correspond with the name as written on the face of the option agreement or agreements to which the options are subject without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever. If this election is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, that person should so indicate when signing, and proper evidence satisfactory to Theravance Biopharma of the authority of that person to act in that capacity must be submitted with this election.

Elections by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity may **not** be submitted via the offer website.

Elections submitted via the offer website:

Entering your username and personal identification number (PIN) and submitting the election via the offer website is the equivalent of signing your name on a paper form and has the same legal effect as your written signature.

5. Other Information on this Election.

If you are submitting the election via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), in addition to signing the election form, you must print your name and indicate the date and time at which you signed. You also must include a current e-mail address.

6. Requests for Assistance or Additional Copies.

Any questions and any requests for additional copies of the Offer to Exchange or this election form may be directed to the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. Copies will be furnished promptly at Theravance Biopharma's expense.

7. Irregularities.

We will determine, in our discretion, all questions as to the form of documents and the validity, form, eligibility, including time of receipt, and acceptance of any options. Our determination of these matters will be given the maximum deference permitted by law. However, you have all rights accorded to you under applicable law to challenge such determination in a court of competent jurisdiction. Only a court of competent jurisdiction can make a determination that will be final and binding upon the parties. We reserve the right to reject any elections or any options elected to be exchanged that we determine are not in appropriate form or that we determine are unlawful to accept. We will accept all properly elected options for exchange that are not validly withdrawn. We also reserve the right to waive any of the conditions of the offer or any defect or irregularity in any election of any particular options or for any particular option holder, provided that if we grant any such waiver, it will be granted with respect to all option holders and elected options. No election to exchange options will be deemed to have been properly made until all defects or irregularities have been cured by the relevant option holder or waived by us. Neither we nor any other person (including Computershare) is obligated to give notice of any defects or irregularities in elections, nor will anyone incur any liability for failure to give any notice. This is a one-time offer, and we will strictly enforce the election period, subject only to an extension that we may grant in our discretion.

Important: The election must be <u>received</u> on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, via the offer website at www.corpaction.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange or by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address below:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

8. Additional Documents to Read.

You should be sure to read the Offer to Exchange, all documents referenced therein, and the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015, before deciding to participate in the offer.

9. Important Tax Information.

Please refer to Section 14 and Schedule C of the Offer to Exchange, which contain important tax information. We also recommend that you consult with your personal advisors before deciding whether or not to participate in this offer.



COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM ONLY IF YOU HAVE CHANGED YOUR MIND AND YOU DO NOT WANT TO EXCHANGE SOME OR ALL OF YOUR ELIGIBLE OPTIONS

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. OFFER TO EXCHANGE CERTAIN OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

WITHDRAWAL FORM

You previously received (1) a copy of the Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units (the "Offer to Exchange"); (2) the email from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015; (3) an election form; and (4) this withdrawal form. You completed and submitted an election, in which you elected to ACCEPT Theravance Biopharma's voluntary offer to exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule (referred to as the "offer"). You should submit this form only if you now wish to change that election and REJECT Theravance Biopharma's offer to exchange some or all of your eligible options.

To withdraw your election to exchange some or all of your eligible options, you may complete and submit your withdrawal via the offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, unless extended.

Alternatively, you must sign, date and send the completed withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) which must be <u>received</u> by Computershare (the specialized provider of employee equity plan services that Theravance Biopharma has engaged to assist with the implementation of the offer) on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 (unless we extend the offer), to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

Only responses that are complete, signed and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare through the methods described above by the deadline will be accepted. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax, or e-mail are not permitted.

You should note that if you withdraw your acceptance of the offer with respect to some or all of your eligible options, you will not receive any restricted share units pursuant to the offer in replacement for the withdrawn options. You will keep all of the options that you withdraw. These options will continue to be governed by the Company's 2013 Equity Incentive Plan or the Company's 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan, as applicable, and by the existing option agreements between you and Theravance Biopharma.

You may change this withdrawal, and again elect to exchange some or all of your eligible options by submitting a new election received by Computershare, on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 (unless we extend the offer).

Please check the appropriate box (you may view your eligible option grants on the offer website at www.corpaction.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange):

□ I wish to withdraw my election to exchange and instead REJECT the offer to exchange all of my eligible options. I do not wish to exchange any eligible options.

OR

□ I wish to withdraw my election to exchange eligible options as to my eligible option grants listed below (please list). Any eligible options previously elected to be exchanged by me in my most recent election but not withdrawn below will remain elected for exchange in the offer. I do not wish to exchange these listed eligible option grants:

Eligible Option Grant Number

Grant Date

Please sign this withdrawal form and print your name exactly as it appears on the election form you previously submitted.

Option Holder Signature

Option Holder Name (Please print)

Date and Time

E-mail Address

COMPUTERSHARE MUST <u>RECEIVE</u> THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 9:00 P.M., PACIFIC TIME, ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2015.



THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. OFFER TO EXCHANGE CERTAIN OUTSTANDING OPTIONS FOR RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS

WITHDRAWAL INSTRUCTIONS

FORMING PART OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

1. Delivery of the Withdrawal.

A properly completed withdrawal must be received either (i) via the offer website or (ii) by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015 (referred to as the expiration date).

Withdrawal Through the Offer Website:

- Go to www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange and log in to the site by entering your Theravance Biopharma e-mail address and your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received in the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com on August 28, 2015. If you do not know your PIN, you may select the "Forgot Your PIN" button or contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. ad Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada).
- 2. If you have already made an election with respect to your eligible options, you will be directed to the "Election Summary" page which summarizes your prior election.
- 3. To make your withdrawal election, select the "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" buttons next to the eligible option grants.
- 4. Click on the "Submit" button to finalize your elections.
- 5. After you submit your withdrawal, you will be directed to the "Election Confirmation" page. Print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records.

Your withdrawal must be received by Computershare on or before the expiration date, currently expected to be 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015.

Withdrawal via Mail or Delivery Service:

If you choose not to utilize the offer website, you may submit your withdrawal by sending your withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address provided below. You do not need to submit your withdrawal by mail or delivery service if you already have done so via the offer website. To send your withdrawal by mail or delivery service, you must do the following before the expiration date:

- 1. Properly complete and sign the withdrawal form.
- 2. Send the completed and signed withdrawal form via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

If Theravance Biopharma extends the offer, the properly completed withdrawal must be <u>received</u> by Computershare by the date and time of the extended expiration of the offer.

The delivery of all required documents, including withdrawal forms, is at your risk. Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare by the deadline will be accepted. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery. Computershare intends to confirm the receipt of your withdrawal form via an e-mail generated from the offer website within two (2) U.S. business days if your withdrawal was received by Computershare via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service). Please note that if you submit a withdrawal form via mail or delivery service within the last two (2) U.S. business days prior to the expiration of the offer, time constraints may prevent Computershare from providing a confirmation by e-mail prior to the expiration of the offer. Confirmation statements for submissions through the offer website may be obtained by printing the "Election Confirmation" page after submitting your withdrawal; you should print and save a copy of the confirmation for your records. If you have not received a confirmation, it is your responsibility to confirm that Computershare has received your withdrawal. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax or e-mail are not permitted. Although by submitting a withdrawal you have withdrawn some or all of your previously elected options from the offer, you may change your mind and re-elect to exchange some or all of the withdrawn eligible options until the expiration of the offer. You should note that you may not rescind any withdrawal and any eligible options withdrawn will not be deemed properly elected for exchange for purposes of the offer, unless you properly re-elect to exchange those eligible options before the expiration date. You may re-elect to exchange eligible options at any time before the expiration date. If Theravance Biopharma extends the offer beyond that time, you may re-elect to exchange your eligible options at any time until the extended expiration date of the offer.

To re-elect to exchange the withdrawn eligible options, you must either submit an election via the offer website or deliver an election form with the required information via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), after the date of the last withdrawal but on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, to the address below:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

Upon the receipt of such a new, properly completed election, any previously submitted elections and/or withdrawals will be disregarded and will be considered replaced in full by the new election. Because any prior election will be disregarded, your new election must indicate <u>all</u> eligible option grants you wish to exchange, not just those you wish to add. You will be bound by the last properly submitted election and/or withdrawal received by Computershare prior to the expiration date.

Although it is Computershare's intent to send you an e-mail confirmation of receipt of this withdrawal if you submit your withdrawal via mail or delivery service, or provide a confirmation on the offer website if you submit your withdrawal via the offer website, by completing and submitting this withdrawal, you waive any right to receive any notice of the withdrawal of your eligible options for exchange.

2. Signatures on this Withdrawal.

If the withdrawal is being submitted via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), it must be signed by the holder of the eligible options and the signature must correspond with the name as written on the face of the option agreement or agreements to which the eligible options are subject without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever. If this withdrawal is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, that person should so indicate when signing, and proper evidence satisfactory to Theravance Biopharma of the authority of that person to act in that capacity must be submitted with this withdrawal.

Withdrawals by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity may **not** be submitted via the offer website.

Withdrawals submitted via the offer website:

Entering your username and personal identification number (PIN) and submitting the withdrawal via the offer website is the equivalent of signing your name on a paper form and has the same legal effect as your written signature.

3. Other Information on this Withdrawal.

If you are submitting the withdrawal via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service), in addition to signing the withdrawal form, you must print your name and indicate the date and time at which you signed. You must also include a current e-mail address.

4. Requests for Assistance or Additional Copies.

Any questions and any requests for additional copies of the Offer to Exchange, the election form or this withdrawal form may be directed to the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. Copies will be furnished promptly at Theravance Biopharma's expense.

5. Irregularities.

We will determine, in our discretion, all questions as to the form of documents and the validity, form, eligibility, including time of receipt, and acceptance of any withdrawal forms. Our determination of these matters will be given the maximum deference permitted by law. However, you have all rights accorded to you under applicable law to challenge such determination in a court of competent jurisdiction. Only a court of competent jurisdiction can make a determination that will be final and binding upon the parties. We reserve the right to reject any withdrawals that we determine are not in appropriate form or that we determine are unlawful to accept. We also reserve the right to waive any of the conditions of the offer or any defect or irregularity in any withdrawal form or for any particular option holder, provided that if we grant any such waiver, it will be granted with respect to all option holders and elected options. No withdrawal of eligible options will be deemed to have been properly made until all defects or irregularities have been cured by the withdrawing option holder or waived by us. Neither we nor any other person (including Computershare) is obligated to give notice of any defects or irregularities in withdrawals, nor will anyone incur any liability for failure to give any notice. This is a one-time offer, and we will strictly enforce the election period, subject only to an extension that we may grant in our discretion.

Important: The withdrawal must be <u>received</u> on or before 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015, via the offer website at www.corpaction.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange or by U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) to the address below:

Computershare Trust Company 480 Washington Blvd, 27th floor c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions Jersey City, NJ 07310

6. Additional Documents to Read.

You should be sure to read the Offer to Exchange, all documents referenced therein, and the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015, before making any decisions regarding participation in, or withdrawal from, the offer.

7. Important Tax Information.

You should refer to Section 14 and Schedule C of the Offer to Exchange, which contain important tax information. We also recommend that you consult with your personal advisors before deciding whether or not to participate in this offer.

5

Confirmation Email

Your election has been received for the Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program.

If you did not submit this request or feel you received this message in error, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday, from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Pacific Time at 866-305-9582 (from within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada).

Forms of Reminder E-mails — Dates may change if expiration date of offer is extended

September 8, 2015 — One and a Half Weeks After Offer Commences

Reminder — Option Exchange Program Expiration Date is Approaching

This is a reminder that Theravance Biopharma's voluntary offer to exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule (referred to as the "offer") is scheduled to expire at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015. If you wish to exchange any of your eligible option grants for a lesser number of restricted share units, you must complete and submit your election prior to the expiration of the offer. If you have already submitted your election, you have until the offer expires to withdraw your elected options or change your election.

You may notify us of your election (or change in your election) in one of the following two ways:

- By making an election online at the offer website at www.Corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. Your online election must be submitted before the offer expires.
- By completing an election form or withdrawal form. To request a copy of the applicable form, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. You must complete, sign and return the election form or withdrawal form to Computershare (the specialized provider of employee equity plan services that Theravance Biopharma has engaged to assist with the implementation of the offer) via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) according to the instructions contained in the election form or withdrawal form before the offer expires.

Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare by the offer's expiration will be accepted. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax or e-mail are not permitted. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. Interpreter services are available upon request.

This notice does not constitute the terms of the offer. The full terms of the offer are described in (1) the Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units, and all documents referenced therein; (2) the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015; (3) the election form; and (4) the withdrawal form. You also may access these documents through the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission's website at www.sec.gov.

September 17, 2015 — Offer Expires in One Week

Reminder - Option Exchange Program Expires in One Week

This is a reminder that Theravance Biopharma's voluntary offer to exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule (referred to as the "offer") is scheduled to expire at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015. If you wish to exchange any of your eligible option grants for half the number of restricted share units, you must complete and submit your election prior to the expiration of the offer. If you have already submitted your election, you have until the offer expires to withdraw your elected options or change your election.

You may notify us of your election (or change in your election) in one of the following two ways:

- By making an election online at the offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. Your online election must be submitted before the offer expires.
- By completing an election form or withdrawal form. To request a copy of the applicable form, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. You must complete, sign and return the election form or withdrawal form to Computershare (the specialized provider of employee equity plan services that Theravance Biopharma has engaged to assist with the implementation of the offer) via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) according to the instructions contained in the election form or withdrawal form before the offer expires.

Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare by the offer's expiration will be accepted. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax or e-mail are not permitted. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. Interpreter services are available upon request.

This notice does not constitute the terms of the offer. The full terms of the offer are described in (1) the Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units, and all documents referenced therein; (2) the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015; (3) the election form; and (4) the withdrawal form. You also may access these documents through the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission's website at www.sec.gov.

2

September 24, 2015 — Offer Expires in One Day

Final Reminder - Option Exchange Program Expires Tomorrow (September 25, 2015 at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time)

This is a reminder that Theravance Biopharma's voluntary offer to exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule (referred to as the "offer") is scheduled to expire at 9:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on September 25, 2015. If you wish to exchange any of your eligible option grants for half the number of restricted share units, you must complete and submit your election prior to the expiration of the offer. If you have already submitted your election, you have until the offer expires to withdraw your elected options or change your election.

You may notify us of your election (or change in your election) in one of the following two ways:

- By making an election online at the exchange offer website at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange. Your online election must be submitted before the offer expires.
- By completing an election form or withdrawal form. To request a copy of the applicable form, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open 24 hours a day, 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. You must complete, sign and return the election form or withdrawal form to Computershare (the specialized provider of employee equity plan services that Theravance Biopharma has engaged to assist with the implementation of the offer) via U.S. mail (or other post) or Federal Express (or similar delivery service) according to the instructions contained in the election form or withdrawal form before the offer expires.

Only responses that are complete and actually <u>received</u> by Computershare by the offer's expiration will be accepted. Responses submitted by any other means, including hand delivery, interoffice delivery, fax or e-mail are not permitted. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (within the U.S. and Canada) or +1-781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S. and Canada). The Call Center is open from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 5 days a week, Monday through Friday Pacific Time. Interpreter services are available upon request.

This notice does not constitute the terms of the offer. The full terms of the offer are described in (1) the Offer to Exchange Certain Outstanding Options for Restricted Share Units, and all documents referenced therein; (2) the e-mail from Rick E Winningham, dated August 28, 2015 and the e-mail from TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com, dated August 28, 2015; (3) the election form; and (4) the withdrawal form. You also may access these documents through the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission's website at www.sec.gov.

3



WELCOME TO THE THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA OPTION EXCHANGE PROGRAM WEB SITE

Click on the links below to view details of the Option Exchange Program:

Offer to Exchange
 Employee Presentation

If you are a Theravance Biopharma Option holder eligible to participate, please click the Continue button to log in.



These documents are in Adobe Portable Document Format (PDF). You will need Adobe Acrobat Reader software to read the files. If you do not have Acrobat, please click on the icon to download the software or contact your local IT support.



Theravance Biopharma may extend the expiration date of the Stock Option Exchange Program in its discretion

The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



Enter your 9-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN) that you received via e-mail on Friday, August 28, 2015. Please do not enter spaces.



Continue

The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



Forgot your PIN?

Please enter your Employee ID Number below. Your Employee ID Number is the four digit number on your paystub, i.e. "0123" or "1234". (Please ask your local HR contact for your Employee ID Number if not shown on your paystub.)

If you cannot locate your Employee ID Number, please contact the Computershare Call Center at the number below to request your PIN.

Once entered, please click Continue and your PIN will be sent to the e-mail address on file.



The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



Medicines That Make a Difference*

Employee ID

0001

Current Date Aug-28-2015

Name and Address FirstName LastName

Address1 Address2 Address3 City, PA 12345-6789 United States

Hello FirstName, below are your current outstanding Eligible Options.

Please make your exchange selection by clicking the "Exchange" or "Do Not Exchange" button for each Eligible Option and then click Submit.

Click here to access the Exchange Analysis Tool to help you evaluate your eligible options.

Grant ID#	Grant Date	Options Outstanding	Exercise Price	Exchange Ratio	RSU grant if share options outstanding are exchanged	Make ONE Election for each eligible option	Post Exchange Vesting Schedule
00000001	Jun-3-2014	3,000	\$23.51	2:1	1,500	 Exchange Do Not Exchange 	Vest quarterly over approximately 3 years, first vesting date is 11/20/2015
0000002	Jul-1-2014	2,750	\$33.85	2:1	1,375	 Exchange Do Not Exchange 	Vest quarterly over approximately 3 years, first vesting date is 11/20/2015

You acknowledge that: (1) the Option Exchange Program is a discretionary program established by Theravance Biopharma and may be suspended, modified or terminated by Theravance Biopharma at any time, as provided in the Offer to Exchange; (2) the RSUs to be granted under the program are discretionary in nature and such issue does not create any contractual or other right to receive future equity or cash compensation, payments or benefits.

By Clicking below you agree to the terms and conditions of this Exchange Program as described in the Exchange Offer document.

Submit

The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



Theravance Biopharma - Exchange Analysis Tool

This tool is designed to help you decide if you want to participate in this program. Click the "Update" button after you have entered any new prices to see the revised potential gains.

Current Date Aug-28-2015 Employee ID 0001

Name and Address FirstName LastName Address1 Address2 Address3 City, PA 12345-6789 United States

\$20.00 Insert Assumed Future Stock Price

Update Updates the chart to compare what the potential gains' could be on your original grants versus the new grants.

Option Grant#	Grant Date	Eligib	le Outstand Options	ling	Exercise Price	Assumed Pre-Tax Gain on Options	Exchange Ratio	New RSUs if Outstanding Options	Assumed Pre-Tax Value	Est. Break Even Price
or and a		Vested	Unvested	Total	rice	Outstanding	Millo	Exchanged	of New RSUs	
00000001	Jun-03-2014	1,125	1,875	3,000	\$ 23.51	N/A	21	1,500	\$ 30,000	\$ 47.02
00000002	Jul-01-2014	745	2,005	2,750	\$ 33.85	N/A	21	1,375	\$ 27,500	\$ 67.70



Assumed Pre-Tax Gain on Options Outstanding Assumed Pre-Tax Value of New RSUs * Modeling does not take into account potential differences in tax or vesting implications



Return to the Stock Option Exchange Election Form

The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



ELECTION SUMMARY

Current Date Aug-28-2015 Employee ID 0001

Confirmation# 22222222082815111226

Name and Address FirstName LastName Address1 Address2 Address3 City, PA 12345-6769 United States

Welcome back FirstName, the election reflected below was submitted on Aug-28-2015 08:19:21 AM Pacific Time. Click the "Exchange" or "Do not Exchange" button for each eligible RSU you intend to update, and then click Submit. If you would like to keep your elections below click on the "Log Out" button.

Grant ID#	Grant Date	Options Outstanding		Exchange Ratio	RSU grant if share options outstanding are exchanged	Election Made	Post Exchange Vesting Schedule
00000001	Jun-3-2014	3,000	\$23.51	21	1,500	 Exchange Do Not Exchange 	Vest quarterly over approximately 3 years, first vesting date is 11/20/2015
00000002	Jul-1-2014	2,750	\$33.85	21	1,375	 Exchange Do Not Exchange 	Vest quarterly over approximately 3 years, first vesting date is 11/20/2015

Submit

Log Out

The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



ELECTION CONFIRMATION

Current Date Aug-28-2015 Employee ID 0001

Name and Address FirstName LastName Address1 Address2 Address3 City, PA 12345-6789 United States Confirmation# 22222222082815111226

Please print this page for your records. Please note, you may re-enter the site to view and/or change your election until the expiration date.

Grant ID#	Grant Date	Options Outstanding		Exchange Ratio	RSU grant if share options outstanding are exchanged	Election Made	Post Exchange Vesting Schedule
00000001	Jun-3-2014	3,000	\$23.51	2:1	1,500	Do Not Exchange	Vest quarterly over approximately 3 years, first vesting date is 11/20/2015
0000002	Jul-1-2014	2,750	\$33.85	2:1	1,375	Exchange	Vest quarterly over approximately 3 years, first vesting date is 11/20/2015

New RSU award agreements will be viewable on the E*TRADE web site approximately 3-4 weeks after the exchange offer has concluded.

Please be advised that you cannot update your election(s) after the Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. However, you may return to this web site at any time before the Exchange Program expiration datentime to update your election(s).

Log Out

The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:



You have logged out of the Theravance Biopharma Exchange Program web site.

Please be advised that you cannot update your election(s) after the Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. However, you may return to this web site at any time before the Exchange Program expiration date/time to update your election(s).

> The Theravance Biopharma Option Exchange Program expires at 9:00 PM Pacific Time on September 25, 2015. If you have questions, please contact the Computershare Call Center, Monday through Friday between the hours of 5:00 AM to 5:00 PM Pacific Time at:

Theravance Biopharma, Inc. RSU-for-Option Exchange Program

Employee Presentation August 2015

Agenda

- Why are we making this offer?
- What is the RSU-for-Option Exchange Program?
- Overview of options versus RSUs at TBPH
- Who is eligible to participate?
- Which options are eligible to be exchanged?
- How many RSUs will I receive?
- When will I receive the new RSUs?
- What vesting will apply to the new RSUs?
- What are the tax implications of an exchange?
- What should I consider in making my decision?
- How do I participate in the exchange?
- What happens following close of the offer?
- What if I have questions?
- Demo of offer website

Why are we making this offer?

- Our share price has declined significantly and is subject to market volatility
- As a result of the decline in our share price, a significant number of our options are underwater
- Primary purpose of the exchange program is to restore the intended retention and incentive value of our equity awards

What is the RSU-for-Option Exchange Program?

- An offer to:
 - exchange certain underwater options
 - for restricted share units (RSUs)
 - at a ratio of 1:2 (or 1 RSU for every 2 shares subject to an exchanged option)
 - subject to a new vesting schedule quarterly over approximately 3 or 4 years
- Offer is filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as part of a tender offer statement on Schedule TO available at www.sec.gov
- Offer is open August 28, 2015 September 25, 2015 at 9 p.m. Pacific Time
- Participation is voluntary

Overview of Options versus RSUs at TBPH

	Options	Restricted Share Units (RSUs)
Gives you the right to	 Purchase a specified number of shares In the future At a fixed price (known as the "exercise price" and equal to the closing share price on the date of grant) 	 Receive a specified number of shares In the future No purchase price paid by you for the shares
You earn this right (known as vesting)	Typically over 4 years: 25% after 1 year; monthly thereafter, subject to continued service	Typically over 4 years: 25% after approximately 1 year; quarterly thereafter, subject to continued service (However, an approximately 3- or 4-year quarterly vesting schedule will apply to RSUs received via this exchange offer)
Once you vest	You determine if and when to exercise (i.e., purchase) the shares	You automatically own shares upon vesting
Has value when	The share price is greater than the exercise price	Virtually guaranteed to have value (as long as share price is >\$0)
Potential value to you is equal to	Difference between current share price and exercise price, less taxes*	Actual share price, less taxes*

* UK employees should refer to the country-specific tax disclosure

Who is eligible to participate?

- All employees of TBPH or its subsidiaries who work in an eligible country as of the start of the offer, provided that:
 - Executive officers and other members of the Senior Leadership Group are <u>not</u> eligible
 - Board members and consultants are <u>not</u> eligible
- Who remain an employee working in an eligible country as of the expiration of the offer
- Eligible countries include the United States and United Kingdom
 - An employee on an international assignment within the TBPH group of companies will be considered to be working in the employee's home country and not in the country of the international assignment

Which options are eligible to be exchanged?

- Options that meet all of the following criteria are eligible:
 - Granted by TBPH prior to August 4, 2015
 - Remain outstanding and unexercised as of the offer expiration date
 - Are underwater as of the offer expiration date (i.e., exercise price is greater than TBPH's closing share price on the offer expiration date)
 - Theravance, Inc. options are <u>not</u> eligible
- Employees may elect to participate on a grant-by-grant basis
 - No partial exchange of an option grant
 - If you choose to exchange an option grant, must exchange all vested and unvested outstanding shares subject to that option grant

How many RSUs will I receive?

- For each eligible option you elect to exchange, you will receive half the number of RSUs, i.e. 1 RSU for each 2 shares subject to an exchanged option
- Fractional RSUs will be rounded down to the nearest whole RSU on a grant-by-grant basis
- Example: If you hold an eligible option to purchase 1,000 shares and you elect to exchange the option, you will receive 500 RSUs (1,000/2)

When will I receive the new RSUs?

- Grant date for new RSUs is September 25, 2015 (unless offer extended)
- You will be notified via email when the RSU Agreement is available in your E*TRADE TBPH Stock Plan Account.

What vesting will apply to the new RSUs?

- Each new RSU grant will have a new vesting schedule
 - New vesting schedule is based on the date of grant of the exchanged option
 - No RSUs are vested on the RSU grant date
 - Vesting begins on the first Company Vesting Date after close of the offer (expected to be 11/20/15), subject to continued service through each Company Vesting Date
 - Any unvested RSUs are forfeited upon termination of service
 - Our "Company Vesting Dates" are February 20, May 20, August 20 and November 20 each year

Exchanged Option Grant Date:	New RSU Vesting Schedule:
Prior to January 1, 2015	Approximately 3 years (1/12 th on each Company Vesting Date following expiration of the offer)
On or after January 1, 2015	Approximately 4 years (1/16 th on each Company Vesting Date following expiration of the offer)

What are the tax implications of an exchange?

- The exchange itself is not a taxable event
- Tax implications typically differ for options versus RSUs*
- For an option, there are generally no tax implications until you exercise the option. When you exercise an option, the difference between the fair market value of the shares purchased and the exercise price of the option shares is considered taxable income, subject to tax withholding.
- For an RSU, you recognize taxable income when the RSUs vest and shares are issued to you. Your taxable income is equal to the fair market value of the shares and is subject to tax withholding. Generally, shares are sold on your behalf the day following the vesting date to satisfy the tax withholding obligation.
- In either case, if you sell the shares acquired pursuant to your option or RSU, you will recognize capital gain or loss.
- Please carefully review the tax disclosures included in the Offer to Exchange document and consult your tax advisor

*UK employees should refer to the country specific tax-disclosure in the offering document.

What should I consider in making my decision?

- Potential future value of your eligible options vs. replacement RSUs
 - Based on your assumptions about future share price
 - You can model scenarios on the offer website
- Your risk tolerance
- Vesting schedules
- Differences in tax implications and/or timing of taxes between options and RSUs
 - Refer to tax disclosures provided in Offer to Exchange document
 - Consult with your tax advisor
- Carefully review the information provided in the Offer to Exchange and supplemental documents
- TBPH is not making any recommendation as to whether or not you should participate

How do I participate in the exchange?

- Log-on to the offer website at <u>www.corp-</u> action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange
- Enter your TBPH email address and PIN
 - PIN was emailed to you on August 28th by <u>TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange@paladinbusiness.com</u>
 - You may request your PIN via the website or by calling the Computershare Call Center at 866-305-9582 (toll-free within the U.S.) or 781-575-2643 (collect outside the U.S.)
- Review the offer materials and view your eligible option holdings
 - Model the potential gains for your options versus RSUs via the offer website
- Make your election decision online or deliver a hard copy election (or withdrawal) form to Computershare
- May withdraw or change your election at any time prior to offer close
- All final elections must be submitted and received no later than September 25, 2015 at 9 p.m. Pacific Time

What happens following the close of the offer?

- All properly submitted elections will be processed
- Exchanged options will be immediately canceled
- New RSUs granted on September 25, 2015 following close of offer
- Shortly after expiration of the offer, you will receive your RSU grant agreement, which you must accept in your E*TRADE TBPH Stock Plan Account by following the provided instructions

What if I have questions?

- Refer to the offer materials available at <u>www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange</u> or via www.sec.gov
- Contact the Computershare Call Center at:
 - 866-305-9582 (toll-free within the U.S.) or
 - 781-575-2643 (call collect outside the U.S.)
 - Available 5 AM to 5 PM Monday through Friday Pacific Time

Intranet Communications and Newsletter Announcements

Initial Postings on Intranet and announcements in newsletter

Intranet Page Header: Option Exchange Program

Announcement Subj. Line: Option Exchange Offer is Underway

Theravance Biopharma is offering eligible employees a one-time opportunity to voluntarily exchange certain options for half the number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule. This offer is scheduled to expire on September 25, 2015, at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time. For more information, view Rick E Winningham's launch announcement [insert link] and attend an upcoming employee meeting [insert link to meeting schedule].

You can access all relevant information regarding the offer and make your elections at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange.

Posting on intranet home page:

Attend an employee meeting to learn more about Theravance Biopharma's Option Exchange offer [insert link to intranet posting] before the opportunity to participate expires on September 25, 2015.

Final Reminders on Intranet and newsletter

Announcement Subj. Line: Option Exchange Offer Expires September 25, 2015 at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time

The deadline for participation in Theravance Biopharma's Option Exchange offer is approaching. Eligible employees have a one-time opportunity to voluntarily exchange certain underwater options for a lesser number of restricted share units, subject to a new vesting schedule. This offer is scheduled to expire on September 25, 2015 at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time.

You can access all relevant information regarding the offer and make your elections at www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange.

Posting on intranet home page:

Act now: Theravance Biopharma's Option Exchange offer www.corp-action.net/TheravanceBiopharmaOptionExchange expires on September 25, 2015 at 9:00 p.m. Pacific Time.

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. 2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD

You have been granted the number of restricted share units indicated below by Theravance Biopharma, Inc. (the "Company") on the following terms:

Name:

Restricted Share Unit Award Details:

«Name»

Date of Grant: Restricted Share Units:

«DateGrant» «TotalShares»

Each restricted share unit (the "**restricted share unit**") represents the right to receive one Ordinary Share of the Company subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Restricted Share Unit Agreement (the "**Agreement**").

Vesting Schedule:

Vesting is dependent upon continuous service as an Employee or Consultant ("Service") throughout the vesting period. The restricted share units will vest as follows: , provided that you remain in continuous Service through each such date.

You and the Company agree that your right to receive the restricted share units is granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of the Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the "**Plan**") and of the Agreement that is attached to and made a part of this document. Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Plan.

You agree that the Company may deliver by email all documents relating to the Plan or this award (including, without limitation, prospectuses required by the Securities and Exchange Commission) and all other documents that the Company is required to deliver to its security holders (including, without limitation, annual reports and proxy statements). You also agree that the Company may deliver these documents by posting them on a web site maintained by the Company or by a third party under contract with the Company. If the Company posts these documents on a web site, it will notify you by email.

You agree to cover the applicable withholding taxes as set forth more fully herein. In connection with your receipt of the restricted share units, you are simultaneously entering into a trading arrangement that complies with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (a "10b5-1 Plan"). As of the date of the Agreement, you are not aware of any material nonpublic information concerning the Company or its securities, or, as of the date any sales are effected pursuant to the 10b5-1 Plan, you will not effect such sales on the basis of material nonpublic information about the securities or the Company of which you were aware at the time you entered into the Agreement.

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. 2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN: RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AGREEMENT

Grant of Units	Subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, this Restricted Share Unit Agreement (the "Agreement") and the Plan, the Company has granted to you the number of restricted share units set forth in the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award.
Payment for Units	No payment is required for the restricted share units you are receiving.
Nature of Units	Your restricted share units are bookkeeping entries. They represent only the Company's unfunded and unsecured promise to issue Ordinary Shares on a future date. As a holder of restricted share units, you have no rights other than the rights of a general creditor of the Company.
Settlement of Units	Each of your restricted share units will be settled when it vests (unless you and the Company have agreed to a later settlement date pursuant to procedures that the Company may prescribe at its discretion).
	At the time of settlement, you will receive one Ordinary Share for each vested restricted share unit.
Vesting	The restricted share units that you are receiving will vest as shown in the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award.
	In addition, the restricted share units will vest in full if the Company is subject to a " Change in Control " (as defined in the Plan) before your Service terminates and the restricted share units are not assumed or replaced with a new award as set forth in Section 10.1 of the Plan. In addition, the restricted share units shall vest in full if the Company is subject to a Change in Control before your Service terminates, and you are subject to an Involuntary Termination (as defined below) within 24 months after the Change in Control.
	For purposes of this Agreement, " Cause " means (i) the unauthorized use or disclosure of the confidential information or trade secrets of the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, which use causes material harm to the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, (ii) conviction of a felony under the laws of the United States or any state thereof, (iii) gross negligence or (iv) repeated failure to perform lawful assigned duties for thirty days after receiving written notification from the Board of Directors.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Involuntary Termination" means a termination of your Service by reason of:

- (a) an involuntary dismissal or discharge by the Company (or Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) for reasons other than for Cause; or
- (b) your voluntary resignation following one of the following that is effected by the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) without your consent (i) a change in your position with the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) which materially reduces your level of responsibility, (ii) a material reduction in your base compensation or (iii) a relocation of your workplace by more than fifty miles from your workplace immediately prior to the Change in Control that also materially increases your one-way commute, provided that in either case a "separation from service" (as defined in the regulations under Code Section 409A) occurs. In order for your resignation under clause (b) to constitute an "Involuntary Termination," all of the following requirements must be satisfied: (1) you must provide notice to the Company of your intent to resign and assert an Involuntary Termination pursuant to clause (b) within 90 days of the initial existence of one or more of the conditions set forth in subclauses (i) through (iii), (2) the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) will have 30 days from the date of such notice to remedy the condition and, if it does so, you may withdraw your resignation or resign without any vesting acceleration, and (3) any termination of Service under clause (b) must occur within two years of the initial existence of one or more of the conditions set forth in subclauses (i) through (iii). Should the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) remedy the condition as set forth above and then one or more of the conditions arises again within two years following the occurrence of a Change in Control, you may assert clause (b) again subject to all of the conditions set forth herein.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Service" means your continuous service as an Employee or Consultant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are or become eligible to participate in the Company's Change in Control Severance Plan (the "Severance Plan"), the vesting acceleration provisions in the Severance Plan shall apply instead of those contained herein.

No additional restricted share units vest after your Service has terminated for any reason, except as set forth in the Severance Plan to the extent you are eligible for benefits thereunder. It is intended that vesting in the restricted share units is commensurate with a full-time work schedule. For possible adjustments that may be made by the Company, see the Section below entitled "Leaves of Absence and Part-Time Work."

Forfeiture	If your Service terminates for any reason, then your restricted share units that have not vested before the termination date and do not vest as a result of the termination pursuant to this Agreement or as set forth on the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award will be forfeited. This means that the restricted share units will revert to the Company. You receive no payment for restricted share units that are forfeited. The Company determines when your Service terminates for all purposes of your restricted share units.
Leaves of Absence and Part- Time Work	For purposes of this award, your Service does not terminate when you go on a military leave, a sick leave or another <i>bona fide</i> leave of absence, if the leave was approved by the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) in writing. If your leave of absence (other than a military leave) lasts for more than 6 months, then vesting will be suspended on the day that is 6 months and 1 day after the leave of absence began. Vesting will resume effective as of the second vesting date after you return from leave of absence provided you have worked at least one day during that vesting period.
	In the case of all leaves, your Service terminates when the approved leave ends, unless you immediately return to active work.
	If you and the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) agree to a reduction in your scheduled work hours, then the Company reserves the right to modify the rate at which the restricted share units vest, so that the rate of vesting is commensurate with your reduced work schedule.
	The Company shall not be required to adjust any vesting schedule pursuant to this subsection.
Share Certificates	No Ordinary Shares shall be issued to you prior to the date on which the restricted share units vest. After any restricted share units vest pursuant to this Agreement, the Company shall promptly cause to be issued in book-entry form, registered in your name or in the name of your legal representatives, beneficiaries or heirs, as the case may be, in the register of members of the Company, the number of Ordinary Shares representing your vested restricted share units. No fractional shares shall be issued.
Section 409A	Unless you and the Company have agreed to a deferred settlement date (pursuant to procedures that the Company may prescribe at its discretion), settlement of these restricted share units is intended to be exempt from the application of Code Section 409A pursuant to the "short-term deferral exemption" in Treasury Regulation 1.409A-1(b)(4) and shall be administrated and interpreted in a manner that complies with such exemption.

	Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent it is determined that settlement of these restricted share units is not exempt from Code Section 409A as a short-term deferral or otherwise and the Company determines that you are a "specified employee," as defined in the regulations under Code Section 409A, at the time of your "separation from service," as defined in those regulations, then any restricted share units that otherwise would have been settled during the first six months following your separation from service will instead be settled on the first business day following the earlier of the six-month anniversary of your separation from service or your death, unless the event triggering
	vesting is an event other than your separation from service.
No Shareholder Rights	The restricted share units do not entitle you to any of the rights of a shareholder of Ordinary Shares (except as set forth below under "Dividend Equivalent Rights"). Upon settlement of the restricted share units into Ordinary Shares, you will obtain full voting and other rights as a shareholder of the Company.
Dividend Equivalent Rights	In the event the Company pays a cash dividend on its Ordinary Shares, in accordance with the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and subject to applicable law, prior to the vesting and settlement of these restricted share units, the Company shall credit you with a dollar amount equal to (i) the per share cash dividend paid by the Company on one Ordinary Share multiplied by (ii) the total number of Ordinary Shares underlying the unvested restricted share units that are outstanding on the record date for that dividend (a "Dividend Equivalent Right"). Any Dividend Equivalent Rights credited pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be subject to the same terms and conditions, including vesting, as the restricted share units to which they relate; provided, however, that they will be paid in cash, subject to availability of sufficient profits or share premium of the Company, upon vesting of the underlying restricted share units. No crediting of Dividend Equivalent Rights shall be made with respect to any restricted share units which, as of the record date for that dividend, have either vested and settled or were forfeited in accordance with this Agreement.
Units Restricted	You may not sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of any restricted share units or rights under this Agreement other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive any property distributable with respect to the restricted share units upon your death. A beneficiary designation must be filed with the Company on the proper form.
Withholding Taxes	No shares will be distributed to you unless you have made arrangements acceptable to the Company (and/or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) to pay any withholding taxes
4	

that may be due as a result of the vesting and/or settlement of this award ("**Tax Withholding Obligations**"). Prior to the relevant taxable event, you shall pay or make adequate arrangements satisfactory to the Company (and/or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) to satisfy the Tax Withholding Obligations.

You authorize the Company to instruct the broker whom it has selected for this purpose to sell a number of Ordinary Shares to be issued upon the vesting of your restricted share units or a lesser number necessary to meet the Tax Withholding Obligations. Such sales shall be effected at a market price following the date that the restricted share units vest (unless you and the Company have agreed to a later settlement date pursuant to procedures that the Company may prescribe at its discretion).

You acknowledge that the proceeds of any such sale may not be sufficient to satisfy the Tax Withholding Obligations. To the extent the proceeds from such sale are insufficient to cover the Tax Withholding Obligations, the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) may in its discretion (a) withhold the balance of the Tax Withholding Obligations from your wages or other cash compensation paid to you by the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) and/or (b) withhold in Ordinary Shares, provided that the Company only withholds an amount of shares not in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy the minimum withholding amount. The fair market value of withheld shares, determined as of the date taxes otherwise would have been withheld in cash, will be applied against the Tax Withholding Obligations. If the Company satisfies the Tax Withholding Obligations by withholding a number of Ordinary Shares as described above, you are deemed to have been issued the full number of shares subject to the award of restricted share units.

Rule 10b5-1 Plan

You acknowledge that the instruction to the broker to sell in the foregoing section is intended to comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(B) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), and to be interpreted to comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1) under the Exchange Act (a "10b5-1 Plan"). This 10b5-1 Plan is adopted to be effective as of the first date on which the restricted share units vest. This 10b5-1 Plan is being adopted to permit you to sell a number of shares awarded upon the vesting of restricted share units sufficient to pay the Tax Withholding Obligations that become due as a result of this award or the vesting of the restricted share units or, if you elect within thirty days following notification via the broker whom the Company has selected for this purpose of your restricted share unit award, to permit you to sell all of the vested restricted share units. You hereby appoint the Company as your agent and attorney-in-fact to instruct the broker with respect to the number of shares to be sold under this 10b5-1 Plan.

	You hereby authorize the broker to sell the number of Ordinary Shares determined as set forth above and acknowledge that the broker is under no obligation to arrange for such sale at any particular price. You acknowledge that the broker may aggregate your sales with sales occurring on the same day that are effected on behalf of other Company employees pursuant to sales of shares vesting under Company options, restricted share awards or restricted share unit awards and your proceeds will be based on a blended price for all such sales. You acknowledge that you will be responsible for all brokerage fees and other costs of sale, and you agree to indemnify and hold the Company harmless from any losses, costs, damages, or expenses relating to any such sale. You acknowledge that it may not be possible to sell Ordinary Shares during the term of this 10b5-1 Plan due to (a) a legal or contractual restriction applicable to you or to the broker, (b) a market disruption, (c) rules governing order execution priority on the Nasdaq Global Market, (d) a sale effected pursuant to this 10b5-1 Plan that fails to comply (or in the reasonable opinion of the broker's counsel is likely not to comply) with Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, if applicable, or (e) if the Company determines that sales may not be effected under this 10b5-1 Plan. You acknowledge that this 10b5-1 Plans.
Restrictions on Issuance	The Company will not issue shares to you if the issuance of shares at that time would violate any law or regulation.
Restrictions on Resale	You agree not to sell any Ordinary Shares you receive under this Agreement at a time when applicable laws, regulations, Company trading policies (including the Company's Insider Trading Policy, a copy of which can be found on the Company's intranet) or an agreement between the Company and its underwriters prohibit a sale. This restriction will apply as long as your Service continues and for such period of time after the termination of your Service as the Company may specify.
No Retention Rights	Your award or this Agreement does not give you the right to be employed or retained by the Company (or a Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate) in any capacity. The Company and its Parents, Subsidiaries and Affiliates reserve the right to terminate your Service at any time, with or without cause.
Recoupment Policy	This award, and the shares acquired upon settlement of this award, shall be subject to any Company recoupment policy in effect from time to time.
Adjustments	In the event of a share split, a share dividend or a similar change in the Ordinary Shares, the number of restricted share units may be adjusted pursuant to the Plan.
	6

Effect of Significant Corporate Transactions	If the Company is a party to a merger, consolidation or certain change in control transactions, then this award will be subject to the applicable provisions of Article XI of the Plan, provided that any action taken must either (a) preserve the exemption of your restricted share units from Section 409A of the Code or (b) comply with Section 409A of the Code.
Applicable Law	This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced with respect to issues of contract law under the laws of the Cayman Islands (without regard to its choice-of-law provisions).
The Plan and Other Agreements	The text of the Plan is incorporated in this Agreement by reference. A copy of the Plan is available on the Company's intranet or by request to the Finance Department. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Plan.
	This Agreement, the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, and the Plan constitute the entire understanding between you and the Company regarding this award. Any prior agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning this award are superseded. This Agreement may be amended only by another written agreement between the parties.
BY ACCEPTING THIS RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD, YOU AGREE TO	
ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS DESCRIBED ABOVE AND IN THE PLAN.	
	7

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. 2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

NOTICE OF RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD

You have been granted the number of restricted share units indicated below by Theravance Biopharma, Inc. (the "Company") on the following terms:

Name:

Restricted Share Unit Award Details:

«Name»

Date of Grant: Restricted Share Units: «DateGrant» «TotalShares»

Each restricted share unit (the "**restricted share unit**") represents the right to receive one Ordinary Share of the Company subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Restricted Share Unit Agreement (the "**Agreement**").

Vesting Schedule:

Vesting is dependent upon continuous service as an Employee or Consultant ("Service") throughout the vesting period. The restricted share units will vest as follows: , provided that you remain in continuous Service through each such date.

You and the Company agree that your right to receive the restricted share units is granted under and governed by the terms and conditions of the Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the "**Plan**"), the UK Addendum thereto and the Agreement that is attached to and made a part of this document. Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Plan or the UK Addendum thereto.

You agree that the Company may deliver by email all documents relating to the Plan or this award (including, without limitation, prospectuses required by the Securities and Exchange Commission) and all other documents that the Company is required to deliver to its security holders (including, without limitation, annual reports and proxy statements). You also agree that the Company may deliver these documents by posting them on a web site maintained by the Company or by a third party under contract with the Company. If the Company posts these documents on a web site, it will notify you by email.

You agree to cover the Tax Liabilities as set forth more fully herein. In connection with your receipt of the restricted share units, you are simultaneously entering into a trading arrangement that complies with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (a "10b5-1 Plan"). As of the date of the Agreement, you are not aware of any material nonpublic information concerning the Company or its securities, or, as of the date any sales are effected pursuant to the 10b5-1 Plan, you will not effect such sales on the basis of material nonpublic information about the securities or the Company of which you were aware at the time you entered into the Agreement.

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC. 2013 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN: RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AGREEMENT

Grant of Units	Subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, this Restricted Share Unit Agreement (the "Agreement"), the Plan and the UK Addendum thereto, the Company has granted to you the number of restricted share units set forth in the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award. It is a condition of grant that you enter into an agreement in such form agreed by HM Revenue & Customs with the Company or relevant Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate who employs you, whereby the employer's liability for Secondary Class 1 national insurance contributions arising in connection with the Restricted Share Units is transferred to you.
Payment for Units	No payment is required for the restricted share units you are receiving.
Nature of Units	Your restricted share units are bookkeeping entries. They represent only the Company's unfunded and unsecured promise to issue Ordinary Shares on a future date. As a holder of restricted share units, you have no rights other than the rights of a general creditor of the Company.
Settlement of Units	Each of your restricted share units will be settled when it vests (unless you and the Company have agreed to a later settlement date pursuant to procedures that the Company may prescribe at its discretion).
	At the time of settlement, you will receive one Ordinary Share for each vested restricted share unit.
Vesting	The restricted share units that you are receiving will vest as shown in the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award.
	In addition, the restricted share units will vest in full if the Company is subject to a " Change in Control " (as defined in the Plan) before your Service terminates and the restricted share units are not assumed or replaced with a new award as set forth in Section 10.1 of the Plan. In addition, the restricted share units shall vest in full if the Company is subject to a Change in Control before your Service terminates, and you are subject to an Involuntary Termination (as defined below) within 24 months after the Change in Control.
	For purposes of this Agreement, " Cause " means (i) the unauthorized use or disclosure of the confidential information or trade secrets of the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, which use causes material harm to the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate, (ii) conviction of a felony under the laws of the United States or any

state thereof, (iii) gross negligence or (iv) repeated failure to perform lawful assigned duties for thirty days after receiving written notification from the Board of Directors.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Involuntary Termination" means a termination of your Service by reason of:

- (a) an involuntary dismissal or discharge by the Company (or Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) for reasons other than for Cause; or
- (b) your voluntary resignation following one of the following that is effected by the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) without your consent (i) a change in your position with the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) which materially reduces your level of responsibility, (ii) a material reduction in your base compensation or (iii) a relocation of your workplace by more than fifty miles from your workplace immediately prior to the Change in Control that also materially increases your one-way commute, provided that in either case a "separation from service" (as defined in the regulations under Code Section 409A) occurs. In order for your resignation under clause (b) to constitute an "Involuntary Termination," all of the following requirements must be satisfied: (1) you must provide notice to the Company of your intent to resign and assert an Involuntary Termination pursuant to clause (b) within 90 days of the initial existence of one or more of the conditions set forth in subclauses (i) through (iii), (2) the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) will have 30 days from the date of such notice to remedy the condition and, if it does so, you may withdraw your resignation or resign without any vesting acceleration, and (3) any termination of Service under clause (b) must occur within two years of the initial existence of one or more of the conditions set forth in subclauses (i) through (iii). Should the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) remedy the condition as set forth above and then one or more of the conditions arises again within two years following the occurrence of a Change in Control, you may assert clause (b) again subject to all of the conditions set forth herein.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Service" means your continuous service as an Employee or Consultant.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if you are or become eligible to participate in the Company's Change in Control Severance Plan (the "Severance Plan"), the vesting acceleration provisions in the Severance Plan shall apply instead of those contained herein.

No additional restricted share units vest after your Service has

	terminated for any reason, except as set forth in the Severance Plan to the extent you are eligible for benefits thereunder. It is intended that vesting in the restricted share units is commensurate with a full-time work schedule. For possible adjustments that may be made by the Company, see the Section below entitled "Leaves of Absence and Part-Time Work."
Forfeiture	If your Service terminates for any reason, then your restricted share units that have not vested before the termination date and do not vest as a result of the termination pursuant to this Agreement or as set forth on the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award will be forfeited. This means that the restricted share units will revert to the Company. You receive no payment for restricted share units that are forfeited. The Company determines when your Service terminates for all purposes of your restricted share units.
Leaves of Absence and Part- Time Work	For purposes of this award, your Service does not terminate when you go on a military leave, a sick leave or another <i>bona fide</i> leave of absence, if the leave was approved by the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) in writing. If your leave of absence (other than a military leave) lasts for more than 6 months, then vesting will be suspended on the day that is 6 months and 1 day after the leave of absence began. Vesting will resume effective as of the second vesting date after you return from leave of absence provided you have worked at least one day during that vesting period.
	In the case of all leaves, your Service terminates when the approved leave ends, unless you immediately return to active work.
	If you and the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) agree to a reduction in your scheduled work hours, then the Company reserves the right to modify the rate at which the restricted share units vest, so that the rate of vesting is commensurate with your reduced work schedule.
	The Company shall not be required to adjust any vesting schedule pursuant to this subsection.
Share Certificates	No Ordinary Shares shall be issued to you prior to the date on which the restricted share units vest. After any restricted share units vest pursuant to this Agreement, the Company shall promptly cause to be issued in book-entry form, registered in your name or in the name of your legal representatives, beneficiaries or heirs, as the case may be, in the register of members of the Company, the number of Ordinary Shares representing your vested restricted share units. No fractional shares shall be issued.
Section 409A	Unless you and the Company have agreed to a deferred settlement date (pursuant to procedures that the Company may prescribe at its discretion), settlement of these restricted share units is intended to be
	3

	exempt from the application of Code Section 409A pursuant to the "short-term deferral exemption" in Treasury Regulation 1.409A-1(b)(4) and shall be administrated and interpreted in a manner that complies with such exemption.
	Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent it is determined that settlement of these restricted share units is not exempt from Code Section 409A as a short-term deferral or otherwise and the Company determines that you are a "specified employee," as defined in the regulations under Code Section 409A, at the time of your "separation from service," as defined in those regulations, then any restricted share units that otherwise would have been settled during the first six months following your separation from service will instead be settled on the first business day following the earlier of the six-month anniversary of your separation from service.
No Shareholder Rights	The restricted share units do not entitle you to any of the rights of a shareholder of Ordinary Shares (except as set forth below under "Dividend Equivalent Rights"). Upon settlement of the restricted share units into Ordinary Shares, you will obtain full voting and other rights as a shareholder of the Company.
Dividend Equivalent Rights	In the event the Company pays a cash dividend on its Ordinary Shares, in accordance with the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and subject to applicable law, prior to the vesting and settlement of these restricted share units, the Company shall credit you with a dollar amount equal to (i) the per share cash dividend paid by the Company on one Ordinary Share multiplied by (ii) the total number of Ordinary Shares underlying the unvested restricted share units that are outstanding on the record date for that dividend (a "Dividend Equivalent Right"). Any Dividend Equivalent Rights credited pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be subject to the same terms and conditions, including vesting, as the restricted share units to which they relate; provided, however, that they will be paid in cash, subject to availability of sufficient profits or share premium of the Company, upon vesting of the underlying restricted share units. No crediting of Dividend Equivalent Rights shall be made with respect to any restricted share units which, as of the record date for that dividend, have either vested and settled or were forfeited in accordance with this Agreement.
Units Restricted	You may not sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of any restricted share units or rights under this Agreement other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive any property distributable with respect to the restricted share units

upon your death. A beneficiary designation must be filed with the Company on the proper form.
No shares will be distributed to you unless you have made arrangements acceptable to the Company (and/or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) to pay any Tax Liabilities that may be due as a result of the vesting and/or settlement of this award. Prior to the relevant taxable event, you shall pay or make adequate arrangements satisfactory to the Company (and/or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) to satisfy the Tax Liabilities.
You authorize the Company to instruct the broker whom it has selected for this purpose to sell a number of Ordinary Shares to be issued upon the vesting of your restricted share units or a lesser number necessary to meet the Tax Liabilities. Such sales shall be effected at a market price following the date that the restricted share units vest (unless you and the Company have agreed to a later settlement date pursuant to procedures that the Company may prescribe at its discretion).
You acknowledge that the proceeds of any such sale may not be sufficient to satisfy the Tax Liabilities. To the extent the proceeds from such sale are insufficient to cover the Tax Liabilities, the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) may in its discretion (a) withhold the balance of the Tax Liabilities from your wages or other cash compensation paid to you by the Company (or the Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate employing you) and/or (b) withhold in Ordinary Shares, provided that the Company only withholds an amount of shares not in excess of the amount necessary to satisfy the minimum withholding amount. The fair market value of withheld shares, determined as of the date taxes otherwise would have been withheld in cash, will be applied against the Tax Liabilities. If the Company satisfies the Tax Liabilities by withholding a number of Ordinary Shares as described above, you are deemed to have been issued the full number of shares subject to the award of restricted share units.

Taxes

Rule 10b5-1 PlanYou acknowledge that the instruction to the broker to sell in the foregoing section is intended to comply with the
requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1)(i)(B) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), and to be
interpreted to comply with the requirements of Rule 10b5-1(c)(1) under the Exchange Act (a "10b5-1 Plan"). This
10b5-1 Plan is adopted to be effective as of the first date on which the restricted share units vest. This 10b5-1 Plan is
being adopted to permit you to sell a number of shares awarded upon the vesting of the restricted share units or, if you
elect within thirty days following notification via the broker whom the Company has selected for this purpose of your
restricted

- •	6
Recoupment Policy	This award, and the shares acquired upon settlement of this award, shall
No Retention Rights	Your award or this Agreement does not give you the right to be employed or retained by the Company (or a Parent, Subsidiary or Affiliate) in any capacity. The Company and its Parents, Subsidiaries and Affiliates reserve the right to terminate your Service at any time, with or without cause.
Restrictions on Resale	You agree not to sell any Ordinary Shares you receive under this Agreement at a time when applicable laws, regulations, Company trading policies (including the Company's Insider Trading Policy, a copy of which can be found on the Company's intranet) or an agreement between the Company and its underwriters prohibit a sale. This restriction will apply as long as your Service continues and for such period of time after the termination of your Service as the Company may specify.
Restrictions on Issuance	The Company will not issue shares to you if the issuance of shares at that time would violate any law or regulation.
	Plan. You hereby authorize the broker to sell the number of Ordinary Shares determined as set forth above and acknowledge that the broker is under no obligation to arrange for such sale at any particular price. You acknowledge that the broker may aggregate your sales with sales occurring on the same day that are effected on behalf of other Company employees pursuant to sales of shares vesting under Company options, restricted share awards or restricted share unit awards and your proceeds will be based on a blended price for all such sales. You acknowledge that you will be responsible for all brokerage fees and other costs of sale, and you agree to indemnify and hold the Company harmless from any losses, costs, damages, or expenses relating to any such sale. You acknowledge that it may not be possible to sell Ordinary Shares during the term of this 10b5-1 Plan due to (a) a legal or contractual restriction applicable to you or to the broker, (b) a market disruption, (c) rules governing order execution priority on the Nasdaq Global Market, (d) a sale effected pursuant to this 10b5-1 Plan that fails to comply (or in the reasonable opinion of the broker's counsel is likely not to comply) with Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, if applicable, or (e) if the Company determines that sales may not be effected under this 10b5-1 Plan. You acknowledge that this 10b5-1 Plans.
	share unit award, to permit you to sell all of the vested restricted share units. You hereby appoint the Company as your agent and attorney-in-fact to instruct the broker with respect to the number of shares to be sold under this 10b5-1

	be subject to any Company recoupment policy in effect from time to time.
Adjustments	In the event of a share split, a share dividend or a similar change in the Ordinary Shares, the number of restricted share units may be adjusted pursuant to the Plan.
Effect of Significant Corporate Transactions	If the Company is a party to a merger, consolidation or certain change in control transactions, then this award will be subject to the applicable provisions of Article XI of the Plan, provided that any action taken must either (a) preserve the exemption of your restricted share units from Section 409A of the Code or (b) comply with Section 409A of the Code.
Applicable Law	This Agreement will be interpreted and enforced with respect to issues of contract law under the laws of the Cayman Islands (without regard to its choice-of-law provisions).
The Plan and Other Agreements	The text of the Plan and the UK Addendum thereto are incorporated in this Agreement by reference. A copy of the Plan is available on the Company's intranet or by request to the Finance Department. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Plan and the UK Addendum thereto.
	This Agreement, the Notice of Restricted Share Unit Award, the Plan and the UK Addendum thereto constitute the entire understanding between you and the Company regarding this award. Any prior agreements, commitments or negotiations concerning this award are superseded. This Agreement may be amended only by another written agreement between the parties.
BY ACCEPTING THIS RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT AWARD, YOU AGREE TO	
ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS DESCRIBED ABOVE, IN THE PLAN AND THE UK ADDENDUM.	